CITY OF ELKO

X * CITY MANAGER
1751 COLLEGE AVENUE
;f ELKO, NEVADA 89801

(775) 777-7110/FAX (775) 777-7119

The Elko City Council will meet in regular session on Tuesday, January 9, 2018
Elko City Hall, 1751 College Avenue, Elko, NV 89801, at 4:00 P.M., P.D.S.T.
Attached with this notice is the agenda for said meeting of the Council.

In accordance with NRS 241.020, the public notice and agenda was posted on the City of Elko
Website, http://www.elkocitynv.gov/, the State of Nevada’s Public Notice Website,

https://notice.nv.gov, and in the following locations:

ELKO COUNTY COURTHOUSE
571 Idaho Street, Elko, NV 89801
Date/Time Posted: January 4, 2018 at 8:50 a.m.

ELKO COUNTY LIBRARY
720 Court Street, Elko, NV 89801
Date/Time Posted: January 4, 2018 at 9:00 a.m.

ELKO POLICE DEPARTMENT
1448 Silver, Elko NV 89801
Date/Time Posted: January 4, 2018 at 8:40 a.m.

ELKO CITY HALL
1751 College Avenue, Elko, NV 89801
Date: Time Posted: January 4, 2018 at 8:30 a.m.

Posted by: Kim Wilkinson _ Administrative Assistant Mgeu@éww
Name Title Signature

The public may contact Kim Wilkinson by phone at (775)777-7110 or email at
kwilkinson@elkocitynv.gov to request supporting material for the meeting described herein. The
agenda and supporting material is available at Elko City Hall, 1751 College Avenue, Elko, NV or
on the City website at http://www.elkocitynv.gov/

Dated this 4" day of January, 2018

NOTICE TO PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES

Members of the public who are disabled and require special accommodations or assistance at the
meeting are requested to notify the Elko City Council, }J51 Collegg Avenue, Elko, Nevada 89801,
or by calling (775) 777-7110.

lot s bl

Curtis Calder, City Manager




CITY OF ELKO
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA
REGULAR MEETING
4:00 P.M., P.D.S.T., TUESDAY, JANUARY 9, 2018
ELKO CITY HALL, 1751 COLLEGE AVENUE., ELKO, NEVADA

CALL TO ORDER

The Agenda for this meeting of the City of Elko City Council has been properly posted for
this date and time in accordance with NRS requirements.

ROLL CALL

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

COMMENTS BY THE GENERAL PUBLIC
Pursuant to N.R.S. 241, this time is devoted to comments by the public, if any, and discussion of
those comments. No action may be taken upon a matter raised under this item on the agenda until

the matter itself has been specifically included on a successive agenda and identified as an item
for possible action. ACTION WILL NOT BE TAKEN

APPROVAL OF MINUTES December 12,2017 Special Session
December 12,2017 Regular Session
L PRESENTATIONS
A. Presentation and possible approval of the Consolidated Annual Financial Report

and Audit for the City of Elko for the Fiscal Year ending June 30, 2017, and matters
related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

Mike Spilker with Hinton Burdick CPAs will be in attendance to present the City
of Elko’s Fiscal Year 2016/2017 Financial Report. JJ

IL PERSONNEL
A. Employee Introductions:
1.) Ashley Cooper, Police Records Technician 11, Police Department
2) Andrew Kellum, Patrol Officer I, Police Department
3) Melinda Black, Patrol Officer I, Police Department
4.) Dean Pinkham, Patrol Officer 1, Police Department
III. APPROPRIATIONS

A. Review and possible approval of Warrants, and matters related thereto. FOR
POSSIBLE ACTION
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01/09/2018

Review and possible approval of Print ‘N Copy Warrants, and matters related
thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

Review and possible approval of Great Basin Engineering Warrants, and matters
related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

Review, consideration, and possible approval to solicit bids for the City of Elko
Water Main Removal and Replacement Project, and matters related thereto. FOR
POSSIBLE ACTION

This project is included in the current fiscal year budget. There are four alley
locations targeted for replacement in this project. These locations have been
selected based on the high volume of waterline repairs in these areas (9 this past
year). RL

Review, consideration, and possible approval to solicit equipment bids for the
WRF- Emergency Diesel Generator Project, and matters related thereto. FOR
POSSIBLE ACTION

The current generator (700 KW) in undersized to run all of the necessary plant
equipment during power outages and high flows or full plant load. A minimum
generator size of 1000 KW is required to do that. Staff desires to solicit bids for a
new, larger, 1250 KW generator. This project is budgeted for in the current fiscal
year. RL

Review, consideration, and possible approval to solicit construction bids for the
WRF-Emergency Diesel Generator Project, and matters related thereto. FOR
POSSIBLE ACTION

The current generator (700 kW) in undersized to run all of the necessary plant
equipment during power outages and high flows or full plant load. A minimum
generator size of 1000 kW is required to do that. Staff desires to replace this
generator with a larger unit (1250 kW) and solicit bids for the necessary related
construction work to remove and replace this unit. This project is budgeted for in
the current fiscal year. RL

Review, consideration, and possible final acceptance of the Chilton Centennial
Tower Construction Project, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE
ACTION

This project was awarded to YESCO in the amount of $183,860.00 on August 22,
2017. This project had no change orders and was completed on time and in
conformance with the plans and specifications. BT

Review, consideration, and possible approval for the Fire Department to accept a
Local Giving Grant of $2,500.00 from Wal-Mart Stores Inc. to assist with cost
associated with fire prevention education, and matters related thereto. FOR
POSSIBLE ACTION
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Wal-Mart Stores Inc. has established grants to assist local agencies to fund public
education. The City of Elko Fire Department Prevention Bureau has been selected
as the recipient of a $2,500.00 grant for community fire prevention education
materials. Wal-Mart has been a great supporter of the Elko Fire Department’s fire
prevention efforts for many years. JH

IV.  UNFINISHED BUSINESS

A.

» Review, consideration, and possible approval of a lease agreement between the City

of Elko and the Elko Television District, for 2,500 square feet of property located
at Elko Regional Airport, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

The Elko Television District is requesting to lease 2,500 square feet of property in
the vicinity of the airport beacon, for the purposes of installing a utility building
and related Elko Television District equipment. A copy of the proposed lease has
been included in the agenda packet for review. CC

V. NEW BUSINESS

A.

01/09/2018

Review, consideration, and passible action to accept the resignation of Arts and
Culture Advisory Board Member Simone Turner, and matters related thereto. FOR
POSSIBLE ACTION '

Ms. Simone Turner’s letter of h‘es1gnat10n has been included in the agenda packet
for review. CC g

Review, discussion, and possible authorization to advertise for one (1) vacant
position on the Arts and Culture Advisory Board, and matters related thereto. FOR
POSSIBLE ACTION |

Arts and Culture Advisory Hoard Member Simone Turner has submitted her
resignation from the Board, w}}ich leaves one vacant position. CC

Review, consideration, and p04s1ble action to modify the fees currently charged for
reuse water as defined in Résolutxon 2-08, and matters related thereto. FOR
POSSIBLE ACTION

At the December 12, 2017 douncil meeting, “a Motion was made by Mayor
Johnson, seconded by Councilwoman Simons, to direct Staff to solicit bids for the
WREF Fill Station less the scope of work of the electronic reader that the City of
Elko would not bill for effluent water”.

1
Currently, construction water 1$ the only use which we bill for reuse water. RL

|
Review, consideration, and pojssible action to initiate an amendment to Title 4,
Chapter 6 of the Elko City Code entitled “Room Tax,” and matters related thereto.
FOR POSSIBLE ACTION |

|
{
l
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City Staff is recommending several changes to the Room Tax Code to assist with
reporting deadlines and auditing compliance. SO

Review, consideration, and possible initiation for the adoption of the ‘2018
International Existing Building Code’ and possible amendments to related existing
City Code sections and/or the model IEBC, and matters related thereto. FOR
POSSIBLE ACTION

The Council took action at its meeting on April, 11 2017 directing Staff to adopt
the 2018 Building Code. Currently the City has adopted the 2009 Building code.
During the 2015 code change cycle the international code council membership
voted to delete Chapter 34, Existing Structures, from the 2015 IBC code and
reference the International Existing Building Code (IEBC). As a result, the City
will be required to adopt the International Existing Building Code as a separate
model code. The 2015 IEBC contains more extensive provisions than Chapter 34
of the 2009 IBC, such as seismic and energy requirements. Staff will evaluate the
appropriateness of the level of adoption and make a recommendation to the
Council. JF
Review, consideration, and possible initiation for the adoption of the ‘2018
International Property Maintenance Code’ and possible amendments to related
existing City Code sections and/or the model IPMC, and matters related thereto.
FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

1
The Council took action at its ‘i‘neeting on April 11 2017 directing Staff to adopt
the 2018 Building Code. Currently the City has adopted the 2009 Building code.
The 2018 Building Code contains a section entitled “International Property
Maintenance Code”. Enforcement of this code will require additional Staff and
training. As a result, Staff is not recommending adoption of this model code. In
addition, the adoption process would require a business impact statement. JF

1‘
Review, consideration, and discussion for the appointment of one (1) new member
to the Parks and Recreation Advisory Board, and matters related thereto. FOR
POSSIBLE ACTION

i
|

Council authorized Staff to advertise for one (1) open position on the Parks and
Recreation Advisory Board at a previous meeting in early 2017. Since then, Staff
has received three letters of interest from Ms. Katie Archuleta, Mr. Christopher
Kentopp, and Ms. Amber Fox. All have expressed a desire to serve as a member on
the Board. The appointment will be for the remainder of the vacant term through
June 30, 2019. JW

i
VL PETITIONS, APPEALS, AND COI\lﬁMUNICATIONS

A.

01/09/2018

1
Review, consideration, and pogsible action to accept a petition for annexation of
property to the City, filed and brocessed as Annexation No. 3-17 by Swire Coca-
Cola, Inc., consisting of approximately 3 acres of property located on the north side
of West Idaho Street, and mattérs related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

i
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Ratification of the Police Chief issuing a 30-day temporary Retail Liquor License
and Caterer’s Liquor License and issuing a regular Retail Liquor License and
Caterer’s Liquor License to Mai Burrows, Jaden Enterprises, LLC dba Cowboys,
located at 442 Idaho Street, Elko, NV 89801, and matters related thereto. FOR
POSSIBLE ACTION

VII. 5:30 P.M. PUBLIC HEARINGS

A.

01/09/2018

Review, consideration, and possible adoption of Resolution No. 01-18, a resolution
of the Elko City Council amending the Elko City Master Plan Acknowledgments,
Land Use and Transportation components, and the Land Use and Transportation
Atlas Maps #5, #6, #8 & #12, filed as Elko City Master Plan Amendment No. 1-
17, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

On December 5, 2017, the Planning Commission adopted its Resolution No. 1-17
to amend the Acknowledgments, Land Use and Transportation components, and
the Land Use and Transportation Atlas Maps #5, #6, #8 & #12 of the current Elko
City Master Plan, and also took action to recommend City Council adopt said
amendment via a resolution. An amendment of this type requires positive action by
both the Planning Commission and the Council. If the Council suggests any
changes to the Master Plan amendment as adopted by the Planning Commission,
the Master Plan must first go back to the Planning Commission for review and
approval. CL

Review, consideration, and possible action on the Planning Commission's
recommendation that the Council deny Zoning Ordinance Amendment 3-17,
Ordinance No. 825, amending Title 3, Chapter 2 of the Elko City Code (entitled
"Zoning Regulations") adding a new Section 29 entitled "Marijuana Establishments
and Medical Marijuana Establishments Prohibited,” and matters related thereto.
FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

At its December 5, 2017 meeting, the Planning Commission considered the action
initiated by the Council to establish a new Section 3-2-29 of the Elko City Code to
prohibit marijuana establishments and medical marijuana establishments in all
zoning districts. Under State law, marijuana establishments and medical marijuana
establishments cannot be licensed in areas where such uses are precluded by
zoning. The Planning Commission voted to recommend denial of the amendment,
in part, because Elko City Code 4-1-5 prevents the City from issuing business
licenses to applicants for businesses that violate Federal law, including marijuana
establishments and medical marijuana establishments. The Council must either
approve or deny the Planning Commission's recommendation. CL

Review, consideration, and possible action on an appeal filed pursuant to Elko City
Code 3-2-18(E)(3), appealing the Elko City Planning Commission’s decision to
deny Conditional Use Permit No. 6-17, filed by Lyfe Recovery Services, LLC.,
which seeks permission to operate a halfway house within an R (Single Family and
Multiple Family Residential) Zoning District, located generally on the east side of
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Winchester Drive approximately 400 feet north of Orchard Cove Drive (1683
Winchester Drive), and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

Pursuant to Elko City Code 3-2-25, the Council may affirm, modify or reverse the
decision of the Planning Commission.

The Planning Commission considered the subject conditional use permit on
December 5, 2017 and took action to deny the conditional use permit.
Subsequently, of the applicant appealed the Planning Commission’s decision. CL

Review and consideration of the Business Impact Statement for Zoning Application
Fee increases, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

Pursuant to NRS 237.090, a Business Impact Statement must be prepared and
considered by the City Council prior to the adoption of a resolution increasing
Zoning Application Fees. SO

VIII. REPORTS

TOZZU AT IOTMEBUQWR

Mayor and City Council

City Manager

Assistant City Manager

Utilities Director

Public Works

Airport Manager

City Attorney

Fire Chief

Police Chief

City Clerk-Financial Disclosure Statement
City Planner

Development Manager
Administrative Services Director
Parks and Recreation Director ,
Civil Engineer

Building Official

COMMENTS BY THE GENERAL PUBLIC

Pursuant to N.R.S. 241, this time is devoted to comments by the public, if any, and
discussion of those comments. No action may be taken upon a matter raised under this item
on the agenda until the matter itself has been specifically included on a successive agenda
and identified as an item for possible action. ACTION WILL NOT BE TAKEN

NOTE:

01/09/2018

The Mayor, Mayor Pro Tempore, or other Presiding Officer of the City Council
reserves the right to change the order of the agenda, and if the agenda has not been
completed, to recess the meeting and continue on another specified date and time.
Additionally, the City Council reserves the right to combine two or more agenda
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items, and/or remove an item from the agenda, or delay discussion relating to an
item on the agenda at any time.

ADJOURNMENT

Curtis Calder
City Manager
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City of Elko )
County of Elko )
State of Nevada ) SS December 12,2017

The City Council of the City of Elko, State of Nevada met for a special meeting
beginning at 3:30 p.m., Tuesday, December 12, 2017.

This meeting was called to order by Mayor Chris Johnson.
ROLL CALL
Mayor Present: Chris J. Johnson

Council Present: Councilman John Rice
Councilwoman Mandy Simons
Councilman Robert Schmidtlein arrived at 3:46pm
Councilman Reece Keener arrived at 3:34pm

City Staff Present: Curtis Calder, City Manager
Scott Wilkinson, Assistant City Manager
Shanell Owen, City Clerk
Jeremy Draper, Development Manager
Diann Byington, Recording Secretary

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
COMMENTS BY THE GENERAL PUBLIC
Pursuant to N.R.S. 241, this time is devoted to comments by the public, if any, and
discussion of those comments. No action may be taken upon a matter raised under this
item on the agenda until the matter itself has been specifically included on a successive
agenda and identified as an item for possible action. ACTION WILL NOT BE TAKEN
There were no public comments.

I PRESENTATION

A. Presentation of the 2017 Mayor’s Arts Awards, and matters related thereto.
INFORMATION ITEM ONLY-NON ACTION ITEM

Mayor Johnson thanked everyone for coming to the 3" Annual Mayor Arts Awards and thanked
the Arts & Culture Advisory Board for all of their hard work to pull this together. He gave a
presentation (Exhibit “A”).

The awards were as follows:

Chosen ATtist ........cceereevenenieceeeeeeeereeenene Barry Crawford
Individual Artist.......cccceeeveeiinnerninrenerirenenas Sandy Beeler
Arts Education .........cceccevvvevveeieniiiniecreeeennen, Patty Fox
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Art Organization ...........ccceeveveercervennenennennne Duncan Little Creek
Service to the Arts.......ccccevveeeieveneneneiennene Elko Broadcasting

COMMENTS BY THE GENERAL PUBLIC
Pursuant to N.R.S. 241, this time is devoted to comments by the public, if any, and
discussion of those comments. No action may be taken upon a matter raised under this
item on the agenda until the matter itself has been specifically included on a successive
agenda and identified as an item for possible action. ACTION WILL NOT BE TAKEN

There were no public comments.

There being no further business, Mayor Chris Johnson adjourned the meeting.

Mayor Chris Johnson Shanell Owen, City Clerk
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City of Elko )
County of Elko )
State of Nevada ) SS December 12, 2017

The City Council of the City of Elko, State of Nevada met for a regular meeting
beginning at 4:00 p.m., Tuesday, December 12, 2017.

This meeting was called to order by Mayor Chris Johnson.
ROLL CALL
Mayor Present: Chris J. Johnson

Council Present: Councilman John Rice
Councilwoman Mandy Simons
Councilman Robert Schmidtlein
Councilman Reece Keener

City Staff Present: Curtis Calder, City Manager
Scott Wilkinson, Assistant City Manager
Ryan Limberg, Utilities Director
Shanell Owen, City Clerk
Jonnye Jund, Administrative Services Director
Aubree Barnum, Human Resources Manager
Cathy Laughlin, City Planner
Ty Trouten., Police Captain
Jeremy Draper, Development Manager
Bob Thibault, Civil Engineer
Jeff Ford, Building Official
Matt Griego, Fire Chief
John Holmes, Fire Marshal
Jim Foster, Airport Manager
Mike Haddenham, WRF Superintendent
James Wiley, Parks and Recreation Director
Dave Stanton, City Attorney
Diann Byington, Recording Secretary

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

COMMENTS BY THE GENERAL PUBLIC
Pursuant to N.R.S. 241, this time is devoted to comments by the public, if any, and
discussion of those comments. No action may be taken upon a matter raised under this
item on the agenda until the matter itself has been specifically included on a successive

agenda and identified as an item for possible action. ACTION WILL NOT BE TAKEN

There were no public comments.
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APPROVAL OF MINUTES: November 28, 2017 Regular Session
The minutes were approved by general consent.
L PRESENTATIONS

A. A Presentation of a Nevada LTAP Road Scholar Certificate to James Pauley, and
matters related thereto. INFORMATION ONLY - NON ACTION ITEM

Dennis Strickland spoke about the Nevada LTAP program and handed out information (Exhibit
“A”). He presented James Pauley with his Road Scholar Certification.

Paul Algerio, Street Superintendent, said this will be the first of many. There are others taking
the classes. We may have another presentation in another month or so.

B. Review, consideration, and possible authorization for the City of Elko to enter
into an agreement with Building Reports/Compliance Center to provide 3™ party
inspection reports to City of Elko Departments (Fire, Community Development,
Water and Engineering), and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

A few years ago the previous Fire Marshal approached Council regarding the
same type of 3™ party reporting company. However, that company (Compliance
Engine) charges for their inspections. The current company Building,
Reports/Compliance Center does not charge the community due to Major
Company contributions. This reporting system will help City Departments with
compliance reporting of required inspection. JH

John Holmes, Fire Marshal, gave a presentation (Exhibit “B”).

Councilman Keener asked if all of the inspection data will be hosted by this website. (Yes)
What is the duration of the agreement?

Mr. Holmes answered until we decide not to have it. We can cancel as long as we give a 90 day
notice. There are no fees associated with it.

Councilman Keener was worried that since our data will be on their site, they will start charging
an annual fee to access it.

Chief Griego said this will not have all of our inspection data. John will go out and do the
annual inspections and those are on our emergency reporting. This is for specific things such as
compliance with fire alarms. Are third parties coming in to inspect the fire alarms or backflow
preventers? This company is helping aggregate these things; the compliance things that the city
has to track.

Mayor Johnson said he didn’t know what this was. He stated that he has a conflict of interest

because this reporting will benefit a company like his. He abstained from voting. Mayor Pro
Tem Rice will finish this item.
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Mayor Pro Tem Rice asked for a motion.

*x A motion was made by Councilman Keener, seconded by Councilwoman Simons, to
allow the city to enter into an agreement with Building Reports/Compliance Center to
provide services outlined in the agreement.

The motion passed. (4-0 Mayor Johnson abstained.)
IL APPROPRIATIONS

E. Review, consideration, and possible authorization for the transfer of ownership of
Elko Police Department’s Canine Niels to Officer Jason Checketts in exchange
for the adoption fee of $85.00, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE
ACTION

Elko Police Dog Niels is a ten (10) year old Belgian Malinois who is in need of
retirement. It is in the best interest of the City of Elko to transfer ownership of a
highly trained Police Dog to its current handler. Officer Jason Checketts desires to
purchase Niels. Canine Niels’ selling price was determined by using the amount
set for dog adoptions at the City of Elko Animal Shelter. BR

Ty Trouten, Police Captain, said this is the third K9 that has retired from the Police Department.
Niels is ten years old and showing his age with grey in the muzzle. He has been with Officer
Checketts for the last 7 years. This is a trained animal and would need a handler that is likewise
trained to manage and care for that animal.

*x A motion was made by Councilman Schmidtlein, seconded by Councilwoman
Simons, to authorize Elko Police Department to transfer ownership of K9 Niels to Officer
Jason Checketts in exchange for the adoption fee paid for by the City Council Members of
$85.00.

The motion passed unanimously. (5-0)

F. Review, consideration, and possible final project acceptance and assessment of
liquidated damages for the Elko Police Station, and matters related thereto. FOR
POSSIBLE ACTION

At the February 25, 2015 Council meeting, the project for the construction of the
City of Elko Police Station was awarded to MGM Construction in the amount of
$5, 377,979. During construction a total of nine (9) change orders were approved
totaling $260, 949.29, approximately 4.8% of the base bid, bringing the total
project cost to $5,638,928.29. Substantial completion for the project was issued
on June 13, 2016, fourteen (14) days after the contract substantial completion of
May 30, 2016. Per the contract with MGM Construction the project liquidated
damages are assessed at a rate of $500 per day, for a total of $7,000. The final
punch list was completed and incomplete set of as-builts and record drawing were
provided to the City of Elko on November 7, 2017. JD
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Mayor Johnson stated he had a conflict of interest because of his business affiliation with MGM
Construction on another project, and he plans to bid future projects with MGM. He turned it
over to Mayor Pro Tem Rice.

Jeremy Draper, Development Manager, said Byron Smith from LCA was present. There was a
letter/email in the packet from MGM Construction. A memo was sent out today rebutting
MGM'’s comments. He went over the memo (included in the packet).

Councilwoman Simons asked Mr. Stanton if number two did constitute a de facto occupancy.

Dave Stanton, City Attorney, said moving furniture into a building does not define a substantial
completion. He wasn’t involved in contract administration and he is getting his information
from those that were. It sounds like they are trying to key substantial completion to the date we
started moving property into the facility. That doesn’t equate to substantial completion.

Councilwoman Simons asked about holding up a valid draw request. Was there a time stipulated
in which we could?

Mr. Draper said typically our contracts are 30 to 45 days.

Councilwoman Simons asked about No. 4, the amount of retention was contrary to NRS
338.530, but then Mr. Draper cited NRS 338.525. What does 530 say?

Mr. Draper answered 530 deals with the payment of interest on amounts withheld improperly. If
we hold retention over 30 days improperly we pay interest on it. NRS 338.525 deals with the
process for holding that retainage for reasons. Part of those reasons were that we had a large
punch list that needed to be completed. We do have to notify the contractor of those reasons and
we did that in writing and through weekly meetings with them.

Councilman Schmidtlein asked when the city made use of the property.

Mr. Draper answered it was his understanding that we did that on June 5, 2016. We started
moving furniture in two to three weeks prior to that. He references a letter dated April 11, 2016
where we laid out the items that needed to be completed for substantial completion. Those
included the use of the main building, the use of the accessory building and the security fence
being completed. The security fence held them up. Once the security fence was completed we
issued a notice of substantial completion for June 13th.

Councilman Schmidtlein asked how many days are allowed on a punch list. Some projects are
30 days and some are 60 days. It has been over a year?

Mr. Draper answered if you go through the technical specifications that we identified in this
memo, they were supposed to have all of those documents that we just got last month, to us prior
to us asking an inspection for that substantial completion and to develop that punch list. Byron
had several conversations with them and we went round and round with them trying to get that
punch list done and get the documents in hand. Those didn’t get to us until November 6 of this
year, almost 18 months after we took occupancy.
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Scott Wilkinson, Assistant City Manager, said we can characterize MGM towards the end of the
project as non-responsive. Some of the points made today were not brought to our attention at
the time. Supposedly when we didn’t process a payment in a timely manner, that wasn’t
communicated as being an issue to the City of Elko until this item was on the agenda.

Councilman Keener said the liquidated damages are .0012% of the project cost. It is a miniscule
amount and 18 months after the fact. The liquidated damages are put in a contract to motivate
the contractor to get the job done in a timely manner. It is important that we enforce those.

Mayor Pro Tem Rice asked if anyone from MGM was present. (no)

Mr. Draper said he didn’t get an indication that they would be present but he did send them a
copy of this memo as soon as he sent it out to the Council Members.

Councilman Schmidtlein said we need to support the design team. There were a lot of hurdles
and weather. We did grant them an additional 123 working days gave them suitable time. He
agreed that they were non-responsive.

*ok A motion was made by Councilwoman Simons, seconded by Councilman Keener, to
provide final acceptance of the Elko Police Station Project and assess MGM Construction
with 14 days of liquidated damages totally $7,000.

The motion passed. (4-0 Mayor Johnson abstained.)

G. Review, consideration, and possible authorization to solicit bids for the WRF Fill
Station Project, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

This project is budgeted in the current fiscal year budget. The project would
consist of a reuse water fill station with card reader system and would be located
on vacant property adjacent to the WRF.

Attached as backup is letter from NDEP dated June 27, 2016 recommending this
project. RL

Ryan Limberg, Utilities Director, said Lana Carter, our design engineer was present. So was the
WREF superintendent, Mike Haddenham. There are three drivers on this project and they all tie to
regulations. The first regulation is the WRF discharge permit. The second is the Class B water
regulations. The third would be the city’s storm water permit regulations. We are trying to
control public access, restrict human contact, no release off the property and no release/runoff of
that water to the storm drain system. If we take the card reader assembly from the project we can
reduce the costs. There are some other things we can do to reduce the costs but we wanted to
create something that will last a long time and have some efficiencies for finance and other
things.

Councilman Schmidtlein asked how much usage is done by contractors around town.

Mike Haddenham, WRF Superintendent, answered it was close to three million gallons.
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Councilman Schmidtlein had an issue with the card reader. We have to dispose of this anyhow.
We are doing anything we can to distribute it on the golf course and the new sports complex.
We should be giving it away for free.

Councilman Keener thought that was a great point. If we offered it for free maybe there would
there be more demand for it and there would be less that would end up in the perk pond. He
would be in favor of doing away with the card reader system all together.

Mr. Haddenham clarified that the card reader isn’t just the computer, it is the complete fill
system. It includes the plumbing, the fill pipe, the winter encasement to keep it from freezing in
the winter months, and stuff like that.

Councilwoman Simons noted we can’t eliminate the full $50,000 or else we wouldn’t have a fill
pump. What portion is just the card reader?

Mr. Limberg said if you look at the last line item, there is a fill station for $50,000. While part of
that would still stay in there is also other parts in these costs above that would come out. As far
as the value of reuse water, you see that increasing each year throughout communities. The
demand for that is growing. When we have the most water is the winter time when nobody
needs it. We want to use it all up and we don’t want to be over committed.

Councilman Rice felt this water is an asset and we should be cautious giving away assets when
they are part of an enterprise fund.

Mr. Limberg said the potable water is $1.50 a thousand gallons and the reuse water is $0.40 a
1000 gallons. Staff will be fine with whatever council decides.

Councilman Schmidtlein asked irrigating at the sports complex, if the drainage heads towards the
river will we have fines?

Mr. Limberg answered if it heads to the river there is no issue. If it goes into the river it is a big
issue. We have a WRF Operating Permit that contains terms and conditions. There are several
outfalls listed, locations where we can use that water. To get those locations listed we also have
to have an effluent management plan for each of those locations. One of the locations we will
have that plan for is the Sports Complex. We will have that by the time the water goes there.
There are terms and conditions on the effluent management plans. Many of those terms and
conditions are those that he has previously mentioned such as public access and human contact.
When those things do occur, and they inevitably do, it is a violation of our permit and we have to
submit data to the NDEP explaining why that happened.

Councilman Rice felt this was a good long-term plan that takes into account costs that will be
incurred if we don’t do this. The project will pay for itself in the long run. Effluent water is an
asset that the city controls and we need to be cautious giving it away. These things cost money
and part of it is driven by new regulations from the state.

Curtis Calder, City Manager, said the effluent sales over the last two years has been under
$25,000. We are not talking about a lot of money.
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Mr. Limberg cautioned council. It isn’t about the money coming in, it is about what we are
saving by not putting in more ribs or wells. It is an important feature to have. It may not make a
lot of money but it can potentially save a lot of money.

Mayor Johnson said to move ahead with the project but forget about the reader.

*x A motion was made by Mayor Johnson, seconded by Councilwoman Simons, to
direct staff to solicit bids for the WRF Fill Station less the scope of work of the electronic
reader that the City of Elko would not bill for effluent water.

The motion passed. (4-1 Councilman Schmidtlein voted no.)

H. Review, consideration, and possible final acceptance for the demolition of the
former Elko Police Station, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE
ACTION

At the October 10, 2017 Council meeting, Council awarded a contract to Q&D
Construction for the demolition of the former Elko Police Station. All work has
been completed, there were no change orders on the project, and Staff
recommends final acceptance. JD

Jeremy Draper, Development Manager, explained the project is complete. The value is listed in
the agenda. The total cost to demo this, including asbestos abatement, was $241,000.

*k A motion was made by Councilman Keener, seconded by Councilman Rice, for final
acceptance of the Demolition of the Former Elko Police Station Project.

The motion passed unanimously. (5-0)
III. NEW BUSINESS

A. Review and consideration of submitted data and/or arguments as to whether the
proposed increase in zoning application fees will impose a direct and significant
burden upon a business or directly restrict the formation, operation, or expansion
of a business, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

Pursuant to NRS 237.080, the City of Elko notified trade associations or owners
and officers of businesses which may be affected by increased zoning application
fees. Responses were due to the City by 5:00 pm on Friday, December 1%. No
responses were received. After making a determination regarding the proposed
rule, Staff will prepare a business impact statement which will be considered
during a subsequent public hearing. SO

Shanell Owen, City Clerk, explained a copy of the proposed rule notification was included in the
packet. We mailed out 415 notices on November 3. The deadline to submit comments was
December 1. The notice was published in the Elko Daily Free Press on November 3™ and
posted on the City of Elko website on November 3™. The notice was also posted at City Hall.
There were no comments received. If Council would like to proceed with the fee increases then
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the action would be to declare that the fees proposed will not impose a direct and significant
burden upon a business or directly restrict the formation, operation or expansion of a business.

** A motion was made by Councilman Keener, seconded by Councilman Rice, to
advise the Clerk’s Office to move forward with an increase in Zoning Application Fees and
the findings are that this will not impose a direct and significant burden upon a business or
directly restrict the formation, operation or expansion of a business.

The motion passed unanimously. (5-0)

B. Review and possible approval of an agreement Carter Engineering, LLC, to
Adopt-a-Street for litter collection in the public right-of-way on Cedar Street from
D Street to 6™ Street, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

Carter Engineering, LLC, is interested in volunteering for the Adopt-a-Street
program. Cedar Street from D Street to 6™ Street is currently available for
adoption. DS

Dennis Strickland, Public Works Director, explained Ms. Carter was present. She has been
gracious enough to volunteer her services to clean that area.

*k A motion was made by Councilman Schmidtlein, seconded by Councilman Rice, to
approve the agreement with Carter Engineering, LLC to Adopt-a-Street for litter
collection in the public right-of-way on Cedar Street from D Street to 6™ Street.

The motion passed unanimously. (5-0)

C. Review, consideration, and possible approval of Map of Reversion to Acreage
No. 1-17, filed by Idaho Street Properties, LLC, for the purpose of reverting to
acreage Parcel 2 as shown on the Parcel Map File No. 684789 and Lot 1B as
shown on Parcel Map File No. 606122, identified as APN 001-564-034 & 001-
564-043, located generally south of the intersection of Ruby Vista Drive, and
Doerr Drive, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

Cathy Laughlin, City Planner, explained we had an application for a rezone for these properties.
We did approve a rezone for both to be Industrial Commercial. At that time the developer was
thinking of using the property that is closest to the new hotel and now they plan to make a larger
facility that will spread over the property line. It would be a requirement of ours that they
remove that interior property line and make that into one parcel instead of two.

*k A motion was made by Councilman Schmidtlein, seconded by Councilman Keener,
to conditionally approve Map of Reversion to Acreage No. 1-17, with conditions listed in
the Planning Department’s memo. ’

The motion passed unanimously. (5-0)

D. Review, consideration, and discussion for the appointment of one (1) new

member to the Parks and Recreation Advisory Board, and matters related thereto.
FOR POSSIBLE ACTION
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City Council authorized Staff to advertise for an open position on the Parks and
Recreation Advisory Board at a previous meeting in early 2017. Since then, Staff
received one letter of interest from Andrew Storla expressing a desire to serve as a
member on the Board. The appointment will be for a four (4) year term. JW

James Wiley, Parks and Recreation Director, explained we have had a vacancy on this board for
most of 2017. He recommended appointing Mr. Storla to a four year term while they try to fill
the other vacancy.

Andrew Storla, 711 Bronco Dr., Spring Creek, thanked the council for letting him serve and
looks forward to it.

Ryan Limberg, Utilities Director, said Mr. Storla is an employee of the Water Department.

*x A motion was made by Councilman Rice, seconded by Councilman Keener, to
recommend approve the nomination and application of Andrew John Storla to serve on the
Parks and Recreation Advisory Board.

The motion passed unanimously. (5-0)

II. APPROPRIATIONS (Cont.)

A. Review and possible approval of Warrants, and matters related thereto. FOR
POSSIBLE ACTION

Councilman Schmidtlein asked about a Green Day payment. It says repair and replace drainage
concrete at PD. Is that the old PD or the new PD?

James Wiley, Parks and Recreation Director, answered this was at the new Police Station. On
the rear side of the new building we have downspouts that drain into the landscape. That is an
extremely large roof to be shedding water and snow and we have had some issues with ponding
of water right up against the backside of the building. Our answer to that was to install this
drainage system that takes the water from the rear around to the front.

** A motion was made by Councilwoman Simons, seconded by Councilman
Schmidtlein, to approve the regular warrants.

The motion passed unanimously. (5-0)

B. Review and possible approval of Print ‘N Copy Warrants, and matters related
thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

*x A motion was made by Councilman Rice, seconded by Councilwoman Simons, to
approve the Print ‘N Copy warrants.

The motion passed. (4-0 Councilman Keener abstained.)
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C. Review and possible approval of Great Basin Engineering Warrants, and matters
related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

*x A motion was made by Councilwoman Simons, seconded by Councilman Rice, to
approve the Great Basin Engineering warrants.

The motion passed. (4-0 Councilman Schmidtlein abstained.)

D. Review and possible approval of Chester Plumbing and Heating, and matters
related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

ok A motion was made by Councilwoman Simons, seconded by Councilman Keener, to
approve the Chester Plumbing and Heating warrants.

The motion passed. (4-0 Mayor Johnson abstained.)
IV. REPORTS

A. Mayor and City Council
Councilman Keener thanked councilmembers and the Mayor for
participating in the broadband meetings that were held this past Wednesday
and Thursday. He thinks we will see some positive changes.
Mayor Johnson reported on the lighting of the tower and the positive
things people have said to him about it.
Councilman Rice thanked the City Manager for putting together a nice
Christmas Party.
B. City Manager
Dr. Jack Walther passed away recently. His obituary will probably be in
the paper soon. We will be sending flowers on the City Council’s behalf. We
are sad to see him go but he left a lasting impression on the Animal Shelter.
C. Assistant City Manager
Scott Wilkinson said James Wiley, Bob Thibault and he have been working
with MGB+A to put together a base bid for the Sports Complex project.
D. Utilities Director
Ryan Limberg said nicely done to Council and the staff involved on the
tower.
E. Public Works
Dennis Strickland reported on the leaf collection this year.
Airport Manager
James Foster reported on the FAA inspection.
City Attorney
Fire Chief
Police Chief
Ty Trouten thanked Council for helping Olfficer Checketts with the K9
adoption. He reported on the local doctor issue.
City Clerk
K. City Planner

e
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Development Manager
Jeremy Draper thanked council for a great centennial year. It has been a
fun year. There was a good turnout for the tower event last weekend.
Administrative Services Director
Parks and Recreation Director
Civil Engineer
Building Official

NOZE

COMMENTS BY THE GENERAL PUBLIC

Pursuant to N.R.S. 241, this time is devoted to comments by the public, if any, and
discussion of those comments. No action may be taken upon a matter raised under this
item on the agenda until the matter itself has been specifically included on a successive
agenda and identified as an item for possible action. ACTION WILL NOT BE TAKEN

There were no public comments.

There being no further business, Mayor Chris Johnson adjourned the meeting.

Mayor Chris Johnson Shanell Owen, City Clerk
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Agenda Item LA.

10.

11.

12.

13.

Elko City Council
Agenda Action Sheet

Title: Presentation and possible approval of the Consolidated Annual Financial
Report and Audit for the City of Elko for the Fiscal Year ending June 30, 2017, and
matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

Meeting Date: January 9, 2018
Agenda Category: PRESENTATION
Time Required: 30 Minutes

Background Information: Mike Spilker with Hinton Burdick CPAs will be in
attendance to present the City of Elko’s Fiscal Year 2016/2017 Financial Report. JJ

Budget Information:

Appropriation Required: N/A
Budget amount available: N/A
Fund name: N/A

Business Impact Statement: Not Required

Supplemental Agenda Information: Fiscal Year 2016/2017 Annual Audit Report,
Communication charged to governance, Findings & Recommendations.

Recommended Motion: Approve the City of Elko’s Fiscal Year 2016/2017 Annual
Audit as presented.

Prepared By: Jonnye Jund, Administrative Services Director
Committee/Other Agency Review:
Council Action:

Agenda Distribution: Mike Spilker, Hinton Burdick CPAs and Advisors
mspilker @hintonburdick.com

Jeff Bauer, Hinton Burdick CPAs and Advisors
jbauer @hintonburdick.com

Created on 01/03/2018 Council Agenda Action Sheet Page 10of 1
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November 6, 2017

To the Honorable Mayor and City Council
City of Elko
Elko, Nevada

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of City of Elko for the year ended June 30,
2017, and have issued our report thereon dated November 6, 2017. Professional standards require that we
provide you with information about our responsibilities under generally accepted auditing standards (and,
if applicable, Government Auditing Standards and the Uniform Guidance), as well as certain information
related to the planned scope and timing of our audit. We have communicated such information in our
letter to you dated April 18, 2017. Professional standards also require that we communicate to you the
following information related to our audit.

Significant Audit Findings
Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The significant
accounting policies used by the City are described in Note 1 to the financial statements. No new
accounting policies were adopted that had a significant effect on the financial statements. We noted no
transactions entered into by the City during the year for which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or
consensus. All significant transactions have been recognized in the financial statements in the proper
period.

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are
based on management’s knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions about
future events. Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the
financial statements and because of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ
significantly from those expected. The most sensitive estimates affecting the financial statements were:

Management’s estimate of depreciation expense is based on the assigned depreciation
lives. We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop the depreciation
lives in determining that it is reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a
whole.

Management’s estimate of capital contributed by developers is based on the estimated
value of the developers’ construction costs. We evaluated the key factors and assumptions
used to develop the amount of contributed capital in determining that it is reasonable in
relation to the financial statements taken as a whole. While the procedures used by
management to estimate these costs appear reasonable, there may be differences between
the City’s estimates and actual costs paid by developers, and these differences may be
material.
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Management’s estimate of the compensated absences accrual is based on current pay rates
and accrued vacation and sick pay hours. We evaluated the key factors and assumptions
used to develop the compensated absences accrual in determining that it is reasonable in
relation to the financial statements taken as a whole.

Management’s estimate of other postemployment benefit obligations payable is based on
an independent actuarial valuation as of April 28, 2015. The key factors and assumptions
used to develop the valuation and the accrual appear reasonable in relation to the financial
statements taken as a whole.

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and
deferred inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, management’s
estimates have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by the Nevada
Public Employee Retirement System (PERS). The City’s net pension liability was
measured as of June 30, 2016, and the total pension liability used to calculate the net
pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date. Allocations
between governmental and business-type activities are based on the pro-rata share of
pension contributions. The key factors and assumptions used to develop the valuation and
the accrual appear reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole.

The financial statement disclosures are neutral, consistent, and clear.
Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing our
audit.

Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements

Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified during the
audit, other than those that are clearly trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of
management. Management has corrected all such misstatements.

Disagreements with Management

For purposes of this letter, a disagreement with management is a financial accounting, reporting, or
auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be significant to the financial
statements or the auditor’s report. We are pleased to report that no such disagreements arose during the
course of our audit. -

Management Representations

We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the management
representation letter dated November 6, 2017.

Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting
matters, similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations. If a consultation involves
application of an accounting principle to the City’s financial statements or a determination of the type of
auditor’s opinion that may be expressed on those statements, our professional standards require the
consulting accountant to check with us to determine that the consultant has all the relevant facts. To our
knowledge, there were no such consultations with other accountants.

Other Audit Findings or Issues

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing
standards, with management each year prior to retention as the City’s auditors. However, these
discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship and our responses were not a
condition to our retention.



Other Matters

We applied certain limited procedures to management’s discussion and analysis (MD&A), Budgetary
Comparison Schedules, pension-related schedules and the Schedule of Funding Progress for other
postemployment benefit which are required supplementary information (RSI) that supplements the basic
financial statements. Our procedures consisted of inquiries of management regarding the methods of
preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to
our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the
basic financial statements. We did not audit the RSI and do not express an opinion or provide any
assurance on the RSI.

We were engaged to report on the supplementary information including the combining statements,
individual nonmajor fund and enterprise fund budgetary comparison schedules, statistical section, and
schedule of fees imposed subject to the provision of NRS 354.5989, as listed in the table of contents,
which accompanies the financial statements but are not RSI. With respect to this supplementary
information, we made certain inquiries of management and evaluated the form, content, and methods of
preparing the information to determine that the information complies with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America, the method of preparing it has not changed from the prior
period, and the information is appropriate and complete in relation to our audit of the financial statements.
We compared and reconciled the supplementary information to the underlying accounting records used to
prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves.

We were not engaged to report on the Statistical Information, which accompanies the financial statements
but is not RSI. We did not audit or perform other procedures on this other information and we do not
express an opinion or provide any assurance on it.

Restriction on Use

This information is intended solely for the use of City Council and management of City of Elko and is not
intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Very truly yours,

Jluite ity PLLC

HintonBurdick, PLLC
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Findings and Recommendations
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017

The Honorable Mayor and City Council
City of Elko, Nevada

Professional standards require that we communicate, in writing; deficiencies in internal control over
financial reporting that are considered significant deficiencies or material weaknesses that are identified
during the audit of the financial statements. During our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in
internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies; however, we did
note one compliance findings for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017.

INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING:
Material Weaknesses:

None noted.

Significant Deficiencies:

None noted.

Compliance/Other:

2017-001 Interest of member of governing body

Criteria: The requirements NRS 332.800 state: “A member of the governing body may
not be interested, directly or indirectly, in any contract entered into by the governing
body, but the governing body may purchase supplies, not to exceed $1,500 in the
aggregate in any 1 calendar month, from a member of such governing body when not to
do so would be of great inconvenience due to a lack of any other local source.”

Condition: We noted that the City made a payment to a business which is directly owned
by one of the City Councilmembers for $3,103. We also noted that the City identified the
billing error before payment was made and contacted the parties involved to resolve the
situation.

Cause: It appears that the City did not follow established procedures to ensure
compliance with NRS 332.800. Apparently the councilmembers business is a
subcontractor for a major supplier of the City. During a project, the materials used were
paid for by the councilmembers business instead of allowing the City to purchase them
directly. Thus, the $3,103 payment was a reimbursement for those materials purchased
and an invoice was submitted to the city for payment from the Councilmembers business
and the City paid the invoice.
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Effect. The City was not in compliance with NRS 332.800.

Recommendation: We recommend the City follow established procedures to ensure
compliance with NRS 332.800 and review transactions for direct or indirect conflicts
prior to payment.

It has been a pleasure to be of service to the City this past year. We would like to express special thanks
to the City staff that assisted us so efficiently in this year's audit. We invite you to ask questions of us
throughout the year as you feel it necessary and we look forward to a continued pleasant professional
relationship.

Sincerely,

Jlaiter F iy PLLC

HintonBurdick, PLLC
November 6, 2017
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Independent Auditors’ Report

The Honorable Mayor and City Council
City of Elko, Nevada

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Elko, Nevada, as of
and for the year ended June 30, 2017, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively
comprise the City’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance

with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design,

implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
| financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

| An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
| financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of
| the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation
of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we
express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinions.
Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the
aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Elko, as of June 30, 2017, and the respective changes in
financial position, and where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

CEDAR CITY - FLAGSTAFF - HURRICANE - MESQUITE - PHOENIX - RICHFIELD -+ ST. GEORGE
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Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s
discussion and analysis, the schedule of the proportionate share of the net pension liability, the schedule of
contributions, the schedule of funding progress-other postemployment benefit plans, and the budgetary
comparison and reconciliation information and related notes, as listed in the table of contents, be presented to
supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial
statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential
part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or
historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of
inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for
consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge
we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any
assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to
express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the City of Elko’s basic financial statements. The combining statements and individual nonmajor
fund and enterprise fund budgetary comparison schedules, statistical section, and schedule of fees imposed
subject to the provision of NRS 354.5989 are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a
required part of the basic financial statements. The schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for
purposes of additional analysis as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200,
Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements of Federal Awards, and is
also not a required part of the financial statements. The combining statements and individual nonmajor fund
and enterprise fund budgetary comparison schedules and the schedule of expenditures of federal awards are the
responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to
prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional
procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our
opinion, the combining statements, individual nonmajor fund and enterprise fund budgetary comparison
schedules, and the schedule of expenditures of federal awards are fairly stated in all material respects in
relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

The statistical section and the schedule of fees imposed subject to the provision of NRS 354.6989 have not
been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and,
accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on them.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated November 6, 2017,
on our consideration of the City’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance
with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of
that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on
compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering the City’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

HintonBurdick, PLLC

Juitle Fomtidey PLLC.

St. George, Utah
November 6, 2017
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The following management’s discussion and analysis (MD & A) is presented to provide the reader with an overview of the financial
activity and overall financial condition of the City of Elko (the City).

The MD&A is a component of Required Supplementary Information and introduces the basic financial statements and provides an
analytical overview of the City’s financial activities.

Overview of the Financial Statements
The City’s basic financial statements include the following elements:
Government-wide Financial Statements

Government-wide financial statements provide both long-term and short-term information about the City’s overall financial condition.
Changes in the City’s financial position may be measured over time by increases and decreases in the Statement of Net Position.
Information on how the City’s net position changed during the fiscal year is presented in the Statement of Activities.

Fund Financial Statements

Fund financial statements focus on individual parts of the City, reporting the City’s operations in more detail than the government-
wide financial statements. Fund financial statements include the statements for governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary funds.

Notes to the Financial Statements

Notes to the financial statements provide additional information that is essential to the full understanding of the data provided in the
government-wide and fund financial statements.

Refer to Note 1 to the financial statements for more detailed information on the elements of the financial statements. Table 1 below
summarizes the major features of the basic financial statements.

Table 1: Major Features of the Basic Financial Statements

Fund Financial Statements
Government-Wide

Financial Statements Governmental Funds Proprietary Funds Fiduciary Funds
Scope Entire City government  Activities of the City that  Activities of the City Instances in which the
(except Fiduciary Funds)  are not proprietary or that are operated City is the trustee agent
fiduciary similar to private for someone else’s
businesses resources
Required Statement of Net Position Balance Sheet Statement of Net Statement of Fiduciary Net
Financial Statement of Activities Statement of Revenues, Position Position
Statements Expenditures, and Statement of Revenues, Statement of Changes in
Changes in Fund Expenses, and Fiduciary Net Position
Balances Changes in Net Position
Statement of Cash
Flows
Accounting Accrual accounting and  Modified accrual Accrual accounting Accrual accounting
Basis and €CONnomic resources accounting and current and economic No measurement focus
Measurement focus financial resources focus  resources focus ’
Focus
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Fund Financial Statements
Government-Wide

Financial Statements Governmental Funds Proprietary Funds Fiduciary Funds
Type of All assets and liabilities, Only assets expectedto  All assets and All assets and liabilities,
Asset/Liability  both financial and be used up and liabilities  liabilities, both both short-term and long-
Information capital, and short-term  that come due during the  financial and capital, term
and long-term year or soon thereafter; and short-term and

no capital assets included long-term

Type of All revenues and Revenues for which All revenues and Results of operations
Inflow/Outflow expenses during the cash is received during expenses during the are not measured
Information year, regardless of or soon after the end of  year, regardless of

when cash is received the year. Expenditures when cash is received

or paid when goods or services or paid

have been received and
payment is due during
the year or soon
thereafter
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Condensed Statement of Net Position

The largest component, $111,177,626, of the City’s net position reflects its investment in capital assets (i.e. land, infrastructure,
buildings, equipment, and others), less any related debt outstanding that was needed to acquire or construct the assets. The City uses
these capital assets to provide services to the citizens and businesses in the City; consequently, these capital assets are not available for
future spending. Restricted net position is the next component, totaling $9,285,747. Restricted net position represents resources that
are subject to external restrictions, constitutional provisions, or enabling legislation on how they can be used. Unrestricted net

position totals $9,816,629 and is available for the City’s operations.

Table 2 below presents the City’s condensed statement of net position as of June 30, 2017 with comparisons for June 30, 2016. These

are derived from the government-wide statement of net position.

Current and other
assest
Capital assets

Total assets
Deferred outflows
of resources
Current and other

liabilities

Long-term liabilities

Total liabilities

Deferred inflows
of resources

Net position
Net investment in

capital assets

Restricted
Unrestricted

Total net position

Overall Analysis

Financial highlights for the City, as a whole, during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017, include the following:

e The assets and deferred outflows of resources of the City exceeded its liabilities and deferred inflows of resources (net position) at

Table 2: Condensed Statement of Net Position

As of June 30, 2017 and 2016

Government Activities

Business-type Activities

Total Government

2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
$ 21,738,161 $ 22,252,480 $ 27,885,453 $ 26,903,202 $ 49,623,614 $ 49,155,682
46,677,507 48,469,598 85,575,018 83,053,619 132,252,525 131,523,217
68,415,668 70,722,078 113,460,471 109,956,821 181,876,139 180,678,899
5,332,506 3,247,934 1,370,159 831,873 6,702,665 4,079,807
4,091,833 3,401,486 1,348,322 1,902,762 5,440,155 5,304,248
41,985,970 42,083,294 8,608,439 8,429,301 50,594,409 50,512,595
46,077,803 45,484,780 9,956,761 10,332,063 56,034,564 55,816,843
1,801,382 2,444,443 462,856 626,079 2,264,238 3,070,522
28,113,936 28,804,151 83,063,690 80,351,066 111,177,626 109,155,217
9,060,808 9,847,450 224,939 176,248 9,285,747 10,023,698
(11,305,755) (12,610,812) 21,122,384 19,303,238 9,816,629 6,692,426

§25.868.980  §$26040789 §104411,013 §99.830,552  § 130,280.002 $ 125,871,341

the close of the fiscal year by $25.8 million for governmental activities and by $104.4 million for business-type activities.

e The City’s total net position increased during the year by $4,408,661 or by 3.5 percent. Net position of governmental activities
decreased by $171,800 or by 0.67 percent, while net assets of business-type activities increased by $4,580,461 or by 4.6 percent.
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Condensed Statement of Activities

Table 3 presents the City’s condensed statement of activities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017, with
comparisons for June 30, 2016, as derived from the government-wide Statement of Activities.

Revenues:
Program revenues:
Charges for Services
Operating Grants and
Contributions
Capital Grants and
Contributions
General Revenues:
Ad Valorem Taxes
Consolidated Taxes
Motor Vehicle Fuel Taxes
Room Taxes
Other Taxes
Gaming Licenses
Franchise Fees
Miscellaneous Revenues
Gain (loss) on Sale of Assets
Interest Income

Total Revenues

Expenses:
General government
Judicial
Public safety
Public works
Health and sanitation
Culture and recreation
Community support
Interest on long-term debt
Water
Sewer
Landfill
Airport
Golf

Total Expenses

Increase(decrease) in net
assets before transfers
Special Item

Transfers

Change in net position
Beginning net position

Prior period adjustment

Ending net position

Table 3: Condensed Statement of Activities
For Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2017 and 2016

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Totals
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
$2,020,424 $2,173,011 $13,155,927  $12,554,105 $15,176,351 $14,727,116
$0 $0
341,270 255,350 - - $341,270 $255,350
368,492 595,076 4,279,271 8,150,358 $4,647,763 $8,745,434
5,096,380 4,795,350 - - $5,096,380 $4,795,350
13,057,838 13,193,107 - - $13,057,838 $13,193,107
1,186,204 1,195,078 - - $1,186,204 $1,195,078
3,607,717 3,472,448 - - $3,607,717 $3,472,448
116,282 116,660 - - $116,282 $116,660
104,354 109,051 - - $104,354 $109,051
806,375 853,766 - - $806,375 $853,766
3,100 18,851 - - $3,100 $18,851
106,947 - (169,209) (183,789) (862,262) (5183,789)
112,851 63,431 147,867 90,287 $260,718 $153,718
26,928,234 26,841,179 17,413,856 20,610,961 44,342,090 47,452,140
2,352,443 1,984,492 - - 2,352,443 1,984,492
311,799 313,302 - - 311,799 313,302
10,595,010 10,203,279 - - 10,595,010 10,203,279
5,925,232 5,521,001 - - 5,925,232 5,521,001
704,116 677,439 - - 704,116 677,439
6,027,580 3,456,505 - - 6,027,580 3,456,505
96,435 96,479 - - 96,435 96,479
571,365 532,413 - - 571,365 532,413
- - 3,550,580 3,370,941 3,550,580 3,370,941
- - 4,164,327 4,375,283 4,164,327 4,375,283
- - 1,674,231 1,557,394 1,674,231 1,557,394
- - 3,349,722 3,405,566 3,349,722 3,405,566
- - 604,587 730,078 604,587 730,078
26,589,980 22,784,910 13,343,447 13,439,262 39,933,427 36,224,172
338,254 4,056,269 4,070,409 7,171,699 4,408,663 11,227,968
(510,054) 74,342 510,054 (74,342) - -
(171,800) 4,130,611 4,580,463 7,097,357 4,408,663 11,227,968
26,040,789 22,219,316 99,830,550 92,424,055 125,871,339 114,643,371
- (309,138) - 309,138 - -
$25,868,989  $26,040,789 $104,411,013  $99,830,550  $130,280,002  $125,871,339
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Condensed Statement of Activities (continued)

Over time, increases and decreases in net position measure whether the City’s financial position is improving or deteriorating. Overall
the City’s total net position increased by $4,408,661 or 3.5 percent. The net position of the governmental activities decreased by
$171,800 or by 0.7 percent, and the net position of the business-type activities increased by $4,580,461 or by 4.6 percent. The
following is a breakdown of the major changes that occurred during fiscal year 2017:

The City’s general revenues increased by $87,055 or 0.3 percent. The increase was a combination of increases in some revenues and
decreases in others. Ad valorem taxes increased by $301,030 or 6.3 percent and charges for services’ revenues decreased by $152,587
or 7 percent. The majority of this was due to a decrease in building permit issuances. Transient lodging taxes increased by $135,269
or 9.7 percent, mainly due to the opening of new hotels in the City.

The City received a total of $4,467,763 in grants and capital contributions. The majority of the grant funds received were for the
airport and totaled $4,279,271. The water fund received $196,010 in connection fees and the sewer fund received $220,914 in
connection fees.

The City’s general expenditures were up with an increase of $3,805,070 or 16.7 percent from the prior year. The majority of this
change was in the Recreation fund for $2,571,075, due to purchases and subsequent transfer of the irrigation system and bond proceed
transfer to the Golf Fund. This was significantly below the budgeted amount of $37,846,668 by $11,256,688 or 30%. This variance is
due in total to timing of projects which were budgeted in 2017 and were not started. The City budgets almost one hundred percent of
resources annually to dedicate funds for large projects that are not able to be completed within a current year with current resources.

The City’s business-type activities expenditures decreased $3,269,265 or 0.4% percent due to general operating expenses and capital
outlay reductions. Revenues for the business-type activities decreased by 4.8% due to decreased capital contributions from airport
grants of $3,8,71,087 or 47.5 percent; the water fund experienced a decrease in connection fees of $268,101 or 58 percent; and the
sewer fund had a decrease in connection fees of $306,755 or 58 percent. In the prior years the City had several large apartment
complexes and hotels constructed which generated an abnormally large amount of connection fees for both the water and sewer funds.
Airport grant funding varies greatly from year to year based on federal funding as well as the type of projects the airport has in its
capital improvement plan.
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Program Expenses and Revenues for Governmental Activities

Table 4 presents program expenses and revenues for governmental activities. Overall, program revenues were not sufficient to cover
program expenses for governmental activities. The net program expenses of these governmental activities were, therefore, supported
by general revenues, mainly taxes.

Table 4: Program Expenses and Revenues
For Governmental Activities
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2017 and 2016

Net Program Net Program
Expenses Expenses
Program Program (Revenues) (a) (Revenues) (a)

City Programs Expenses Revenues 2017 2016
General Government $ 2,352,443 $ 999,948 $ 1,352,495 $ 745,760
Judicial 311,799 124,723 187,076 142,404
Public Safety 10,595,010 309,641 10,285,369 9,834,947
Public Works 5,925,232 634,084 5,291,148 4,776,302
Health 704,116 145,150 558,966 547,780
Culture & Recreation 6,027,580 514,240 5,513,340 3,096,558
Debt Service - interest 577,365 - 577,365 532,413
Community Support 96.435 2.400 94.035 85.309

Totals _$26,589980 _  $2,730,186 $23,859,794 $19,761,473

(a) Net program expenses are mainly supported by taxes.
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Program Expenses and Revenues for Business-type Activities

Table 5 presents program expenses and revenues for business-type activities. Program revenues generated from business-type
activities were sufficient to cover program expenses.

Table 5: Program Expenses and Revenues
For Business-type Activities
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017 and 2016

Net Program Net Program
Expenses Expenses
Program Program (Revenues) (Revenues)
City Programs Expenses Revenues 2017 2016

Water Enterprise $ 3,350,580 $ 3,568,297 $ QU $ (515,708)
Sewer Enterprise 4,164,327 6,093,882 (1,929,555) (2,044,955)
Landfill Enterprise 1,674,231 1,803,544 (129,313) (160,478)
Airport Enterprise 3,349,722 2,659,375 690,347 (4,579,755)

Golf Enterprise 604,587 2.663.015 (a) (2.058.,428) 35,695
Totals _$13.143.447 16,788,113 $ (3.644,666) $ (7.265.201)

(a) Contributed Proceeds/Capital from Bond Proceeds for Golf Course Irrigation Project.
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Fund Analysis

Funds that experienced significant changes during the year are as follows:

Governmental Funds

At the close of the fiscal year ending June 30, 2017, the City’s governmental funds reported a combined ending fund balance of
$18,506,307, with $1,784,517 reported as unassigned fund balance, $2,703,609 reported as assigned for the next year’s budget
shortfall, $8,287,672 reported as restricted, $5,718,410 reported as committed, and the remaining amount of $12,099 as non-
spendable. See Note 1 to the financial statements for an explanation of the different types of fund balance categories.

Major Funds:

General Fund

Fund balance at June 30, 2017, totaled $6,285,445, which includes $1,785,220 from the revenue stabilization fund. This represents an
increase of $232,786 for the general fund or 3.8 percent and an increase of $38,320 or 2.2 percent for the revenue stabilization fund
during the fiscal year. The increase is mainly due to property taxes coming in higher than the prior year in the amount of $301,030.
There was an increase in overall expenditures of $657,840 or 3.6 percent. There was a $163,424 transfer to the airport fund to pay for
administrative and ARFF fire services as well as AIP grant matches for the Elko Regional Airport. There was also an annual transfer
of excess fund balance to the following in compliance with City Code: revenue stabilization fund- $28,165, facility fund - $42,248,
and capital equipment fund - $42,248. That brought the total transfers out of the general fund to $276,085.

Recreation Fund

Fund balance at June 30, 2017, totaled $7,291,046 of which, $50,759 is committed for the Recreation Facilities Bond payment for the
following year. In addition, $5,937,414 is restricted for recreation facilities associated with the bond issue. This is a decrease of
$478,657 or 6.2 percent during the fiscal year. Transient lodging tax increased $135,269 or 3.9 percent mainly due to the construction
of new properties within the City. Total expenditures for the fund were $2,966,278 which included replacement of the swimming pool
boiler for $208,599; $8,614 for the sports complex design; and $994,938 for the golf course irrigation upgrade project.

Nonmajor funds:

Ad Valorem Capital Projects Fund

Fund balance at June 30, 2017, totaled $631,880, which is a increase of $69,662 or 12.4 percent during the fiscal year. The City had
one major project in the Ad Valorem Capital Projects fund for fiscal year 2017 totaling $486,953 for the Flagview Safe Routes to
School sidewalk, curb and gutter project. The project was funded 100% by the City. This fund is used to leverage grant funding for
infrastructure projects in the City. The total revenue received from the $0.05 cent property tax for capital projects was $293,814.

Capital Equipment Reserve Fund

Fund balance at June 30, 2017, totaled $1,234,356, which is an increase of $324,257 or 35.6 percent during the fiscal year. The City
uses this fund for all major equipment purchases for governmental funds including fire trucks and police squad cars. The City made
multiple purchases from this fund in fiscal year 2016/2017; purchases for general government totaled $56,392 which were for
computer information systems equipment; equipment purchases for public safety departments totaled $270,047; and equipment
purchases for public works departments totaled $191,397.

Capital Construction Fund

Fund balance at June 30, 2017 totaled $498,511, which is a decrease of $507,131 or 50.4 percent. The City had one major project in
the Capital Construction fund for fiscal year 2017 which was the Cedar Street Reconstruction Phase I project totaling $1,343,558.
These monies are accumulated over several years until such time there are sufficient resources to fund major street construction or
reconstruction projects. The City will be starting the Cedar Street Phase II project in FY 2018 and will continue accumulating funds
for the project.

Redevelopment Fund

Fund balance at June 30, 2017 totaled $931,314 which is an increase of $302,554 or 48.2 percent. The only expenses was $24,646;
$8,440 for legal and consulting fees related to redevelopment and $15,949 for engineering of the Chilton Centennial Tower in the
downtown corridor. Total tax revenues for the fund for fiscal year 2017 were $322,484.

10
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Proprietary Funds

The City’s proprietary funds reported net position of $104,414,013 for fiscal year ending June 30, 2017. Following is a list of the
proprietary funds and their respective net position at June 30, 2017 and 2016 with the percentage change.

Fund June 30, 2017 June 30, 2016 Change %Change
Water Enterprise $23,469,699 $23,424,356 $ 45,343 0.2%
Sewer Enterprise 40,985,132 39,098,835 1,886,297 4.8%
Landfill Enterprise 3,130,696 2,991,927 138,769 4.6%
Airport Enterprise 32,952,196 33,177,607 (225,411) (0.7%)
Golf Enterprise 3.876,290 1,137.827 2,738,463 (a) 240.7%
Total Net Position $104,414,013  $99.830,552  $4,583.461 4.6%

(a) Contributed Proceeds/Capital from Bond Proceeds for Golf Course Irrigation Project

11
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Capital Asset and Long-term Debt Activity

Capital Asset Activity

At June 30, 2017, the City reported $46.7 million in capital assets for governmental activities and $85.6 million in capital assets for
business-type activities. Major capital asset additions for the governmental activities were $128,675, for upgrades to information
systems equipment and infrastructure; $265,187 in public safety vehicles, equipment and facility improvements; $2,043,204 in public
works projects which included the Cedar Street Phase I reconstruction project as well as the Flagview sidewalk, curb and gutter
project; and various equipment purchases totaling $212,693.

Major capital additions for business-type activities for projects included $219,377 for the Exit 298 water line project; $225,774 for the
water meter pit project and improvements on Cedar Street; as well as $438,131 for a hydro excavation truck and an additional
$243,623 for various equipment purchases in the water fund. $1,156,663 for an odor control load out facility; $385,143 for
improvements to Hot Springs Road; $155,941 for a new sewer line on Ruby Vista Drive; $132,846 for a sewer slip line project;
$110,359 for primary digester improvements; and $151,107 for various equipment purchases in the sewer fund. $523,600 for a new
refuse compactor; $46,240 for fencing; $33,699 for equipment purchases in the landfill fund. $111,307 for snow removal equipment;
$323,844 on the airport 10 year master plan update; and $135,514 on various equipment and small projects in the airport fund,
$1,058,901 for the golf course irrigation project and $12,000 for cultivation equipment purchases in the golf course fund. Refer to
Notes 6 and 11 to the financial statements for additional information on capital assets.

Long-term Debt Activity

Long-term debt outstanding at June 30, 2017, excluding the annual required contribution for other post-employment benefits and the
net pension liability, totaled $22,713,536, a decrease of 5.27 percent when compared to the prior year.

As of June 30, 2017, the City of Elko had a bond rating of AA- from Standard & Poors Rating Services on the Airport Improvement
Bonds, Series 2009A and Series 2009B as well as the 2015 Limited Tax Recreational Facilities Bonds and the 2010 Limited Tax
Street Bonds.

As of June 30, 2017, the City of Elko had $20,370,000 of general obligation debt outstanding, which is subject to the legal debt
margin. This is well below the legal limit of $148,509,560 by $128,139,560. Refer to Note 7 of the financial statements for additional
information on long-term debt.

Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budget and Rates

The user fees for water users remained unchanged in fiscal year 2017/2018; there has been no change for the last eight years. The last
sewer user fee increase was in fiscal year 2012/2013 to help fund minor shortfalls in required resources. During the year, there was a
small increase to landfill tonnage fees to offset increased operating and capital costs in the fund. All fees are reviewed annually to
determine whether increases are required to properly fund operational expenses as well as capital projects for both replacement and
new capital purchases.

The consolidated tax revenues increased $53,542 or 4.9 percent for fiscal year 2016/2017. In fiscal year 2017/2018 we have seen a
slight increase of 1 percent in consolidated tax revenues for the first three months and the revenues are $261,395 above the budget for
the same period. As consolidated tax revenues make up over 65 percent of the general fund revenues, any fluctuations either positive
or negative can have significant impacts on the City’s ability to provide the required services to its citizens. It is the City’s policy to
put most of the excess revenues into one time purchases for much needed improvements in capital projects as well as equipment
purchases. This puts the City in a much better situation going forward as we don’t increase staffing with the increased consolidated
tax revenues. We will monitor all economic situations to determine whether any adjustments need to be made in order to keep the
City fiscally sound.

All of these factors were considered in preparing the City of Elko’s budget for the 2018 fiscal year.
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City of Elko
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
June 30,2017

Requests for Information

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the financial activity of the City of Elko to all having an interest in
the City of Elko. Questions conceming any of the information provided in this report or requests of additional financial information
should be addressed to the City of Elko Finance Department, 1751 College Avenue, Elko, Nevada 89801.
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CITY OF ELKO, NEVADA
Statement of Net Position
June 30,2017

Governmental  Business-type

Activities Activities Total
Assets
Cash and investments $ 11,384,119 $ 26,091,220 $ 37475339
Receivables (net of allowance) 3,723,774 1,490,987 5,214,761
Interest receivable 947 25,019 25,966
Inventories and prepaids 81,462 51,999 133,461
Restricted assets:
Temporarily restricted:
Cash and investments 6,547,859 226,228 6,774,087
Capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation):
Land and water rights 432912 1,677,189 2,110,101
Buildings 9,332,190 6,644,609 15,976,799
Improvements 6,523,729 39,499,132 46,022,861
Infrastructure 23,369,123 29.477,652 52,846,775
Machinery, equipment, and vehicles 6,344,587 6,677,368 13,021,955
Construction-in-progress 674,966 1,599,068 2,274,034
Total assets 68,415,668 113,460,471 181,876,139
Deferred outflows of resources
Deferred outflows related to pensions 5,332,506 1,370,159 6,702,665
Liabilities
Accounts payable and other current liabilities 1,570,519 643,611 2,214,130
Retainage payable 50,001 289,203 339,204
Unearned revenue 218,175 7,503 225,678
Refundable deposits 293,639 40,808 334,447
Accrued interest 132,607 31,670 164,277
Noncurrent liabilities:
Due within one year 1,826,892 335,527 2,162,419
Due in more than one year 41,985,970 8,608,439 50,594,409
Total liabilities 46,077,803 9,956,761 56,034,564
Deferred inflows of resources
Deferred inflows related to pensions 1,801,382 462,856 2,264,238
Net position
Net investment in capital assets 28,113,936 83,063,690 111,177,626
Restricted for:
Debt service 477838 185,420 663,258
Capital projects 6,584,889 - 6,584,889
Judicial 109,038 - 109,038
Elko Redevelopment Agency 931314 - 931,314
Health insurance claims 957,729 - 957,729
Refundable deposits - 39,519 39,519
Unrestricted (11,305,755) 21,122,384 9,816,629
Total net position $ 25868989 $ 104411013 $ 130,280,002

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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CITY OF ELKO, NEVADA
Statement of Activities
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017

Program Revenues

Operating Capital
Charges for Grants & Grants &
Functions/Programs Expenses Services Contributions  Contributions
Governmental activities:
General government $ 2352443 $ 633616 $ - 8 366,332
Judicial 311,799 124,723 - -
Public safety 10,595,010 173,689 135,952 -
Public works 5,925,232 634,084 - -
Health 704,116 128,837 16,313 -
Culture and recreation 6,027,580 325475 186,605 2,160
Community support and development 96,435 - 2,400 -
Interest on long-term debt 577,365 - - -
Total governmental activities 26,589,980 2,020424 341,270 368,492
Business-type activities:
Water 3,550,580 3,372,287 - 196,010
Sewer 4,164,327 5,872,968 - 220,914
Airport 3,349,722 1,460,043 - 1,199,332
Landfill 1,674,231 1,803,544 - -
Golf 604,587 647,085 - 2,663,015
Total business-type activities 13,343,447 13,155,927 - 4279271
Total primary government $ 39933427 § 15176351 $ 341270 § 4,647,763
General revenues:
Taxes:
Ad valorem taxes
Consolidated tax
Motor vehicle fuel taxes
Room tax
Other
Gaming licenses
Franchise fees
Miscellaneous

Gain (loss) on disposal of capital assets
Unrestricted investment earnings
Transfers
Total general revenues and transfers
Change in net position
Net position - beginning
Net position - ending

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

18



Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes in Net Position

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total

$ (1352495 § - § (1,352,495)
(187,076) - (187,076)
(10,285,369) - (10,285,369)
(5,291,148) - (5,291,148)
(558,966) - (558,966)
(5,513,340) - (5,513,340)
(94,035) - (94,035)
(577,365) - (577,365)
(23,859,794) - (23,859,794)

- 17,717 17,717

- 1,929,555 1,929,555
- (690,347) (690,347)

- 129,313 129,313

- 2,705,513 2,705,513

- 4,091,751 4,091,751

5,096,380 - 5,096,380

13,057,838 - 13,057,838

1,186,204 - 1,186,204

3,607,717 - 3,607,717

116,282 - 116,282

104,354 - 104,354

806,375 - 806,375

3,100 - 3,100
106,947 (169,209) (62,262)

112,851 147,867 260,718

(510,054) 510,054 -

23,687,994 488,712 24,176,706

(171,800) 4,580,463 4,408,663

26,040,789 99,830,550 125,871,339

$ 25868989 § 104411013 $ 130,280,002
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CITY OF ELKO, NEVADA

Balance Sheet
Governmental Funds
June 30, 2017
Special
Revenue
Other Total
Recreation  Governmental Governmental
General Fund Fund Funds Funds
Assets
Cash and investments $ 4679473 $ 1,186,898 $§ 4522686 § 10,389,057
Receivables:
Property taxes 43,652 - 31,165 74,817
Room taxes receivable - 503,935 - 503,935
Interest receivable 4271 6,796 4,711 15,778
Other 201,519 13,210 329 215,058
Due from other governments 2,519,503 - 392,655 2912,158
Inventories and prepaids 12,099 - - 12,099
Restricted cash and investments - 5,988,173 559,686 6,547,859
Total assets $ 7460517 § 7699012 § 5511232 § 20,670,761
Liabilities
Accounts payable $ 548422 § 150,821 § 54404 § 753647
Retainage payable - - 50,001 50,001
Accrued liabilities 440424 - 7,078 447,502
Due to other governments 2,554 257,145 - 259,699
Customer deposits 16,149 - 277490 293,639
Unearned revenue 123,871 - 94,304 218,175
Total liabilities 1,131,420 407,966 483,277 2,022,663
Deferred inflows of resources
Unavailable revenue - fuel taxes - - 66,974 66,974
Unavailable revenue - property taxes 43652 - 31,165 74,817
Total deferred inflows of resources 43,652 - 98,139 141,791
Fund balances
Nonspendable:
Inventories and prepaids 12,099 - - 12,099
Restricted for:
Debt service - 50,759 559,686 610,445
Judicial - - 109,038 109,038
Capital projects - 5937414 647475 6,584,889
Public Safety - - 3,139 3,139
Culture and recreation - - 48,847 48,847
Redevelopment Agency - - 931,314 931314
Committed:
Revenue stabilization 1,785,220 - - 1,785,220
Debt service - - 675,808 675,808
Capital projects - 1,302,873 1,954,509 3,257,382
Assigned to:
Next year's budget appropriation 2,703,609 - - 2,703,609
Unassigned 1,784,517 - - 1,784,517
Total fund balances 6,285,445 7,291,046 4929816 18,506,307
Total liabilities, deferred inflows
of resources, and fund balances $ 7460517 $ 7699012 $ 5511232 § 20,670,761

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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CITY OF ELKO, NEVADA
Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet of Governmental Funds
to the Statement of Net Position
June 30,2017

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net position are
different because:

Total fund balances - total governmental funds

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and,
therefore, are not reported in the funds.

\ Governmental capital assets $ 76,770,273

| Accumulated depreciation (30,092,766)

Some liabilities, including bonds payable, and interest payable are not due and
payable in the current period and therefore are not reported in the funds.

Bonds payable $ (17,870,000)
Premium on bonds payable (693,571)
Interest payable (132,607)
Compensated absences (1,380,034)
Other postemployment benefits Lability (2,121,564)
Net pension liability (21,747,693)

Unavailable revenue associated with property taxes is recognized as revenue in
the government-wide statements.

An internal service fund is used by management to charge the costs of the self-
funded health insurance program for City employees, dependents and retirees.

| The assets and liabilities of the internal service fund are included in
governmental activities in the statement of net position.

Deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to pensions are applicable to
future reporting periods and, therefore, are not reported in the funds.
Deferred outflows related to pensions $ 5,332,506
Deferred inflows related to pensions (1,801,382)

Net position of governmental activities

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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46,677,507

(43.945469)

141,791

957,729

3,531,124
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CITY OF ELKO, NEVADA
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances
Governmental Funds

For the Year Ended June 30, 2017

Revenues

Taxes

Licenses, permits and fees
Intergovernmental revenue
Charges for services
Fines and forfeitures
Other revenues
Investment earnings

Total revenues

Expenditures
Current:
General government
Judicial
Public safety
Public works
Health
Culture and recreation
Community support and development
Debt service:
Principal
Interest
Capital outlay

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures

Other financing sources (uses)
Transfers in
Transfers out

Total other financing sources (uses’

Net change in fund balances
Fund balances, beginning of year

Fund balances, end of year

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

Special
Revenue

Other Total
Recreation Governmental Governmental

General Fund Funds Funds

\

$ 2990916 $ 3,607,717 $ 2,105463 $ 8,704,096
1,626,787 - - 1,626,787
13,352,210 - 1,576,403 14,928,613
865,232 - 159,841 1,025,073
114,464 - - 114,464
203,489 128,134 145,596 477,219
24,320 58,223 26,261 108,804
19,177418 3,794,074 4,013,564 26,985,056
2,255979 - 5310 2,261,289
321273 - - 321,273
10,150,217 - 25,670 10,175,887
4,235,632 - 24,646 4,260,278
693,333 - - 693,333
1,225,183 1,754,392 197,529 3,177,104
99,362 - - 99,362
- - 1,060,000 1,060,000
- - 626915 626915
- 1,211,886 2,511,780 3,723,666
18,980,979 2,966,278 4,451,850 26,399,107
196,439 827,796 (438,286) 585,949
312432 - 760,052 1,072,484
(276,085) (1,306,453) - (1,582,538)
36,347 (1,306,453) 760,052 (510,054)
232,786 (478,657) 321,766 75,895
6,052,659 7,769,703 4,608,050 18,430,412
$ 6,285,445 $ 7291046 $ 4929816 $ 18,506,307
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CITY OF ELKO, NEVADA
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues,

Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds

to the Statement of Activities
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are
different because:

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds
Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the
statement of activities, the costs of those assets is allocated over their estimated
useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. This is the difference between
depreciation expense and capital outlay in the current period.
Capital outlay $ 3,794,149
Depreciation expense (2,735,032)

The statement of activities reports losses from capital asset deletions. Conversely,
governmental funds do not report any gain or loss on the retirement of capital
assets.

Repayment of bond principal is an expenditure in the governmental funds, but the
repayment reduces long-term liabilities in the statement of net position.

Governmental funds report the effect of premiums, discounts, and similar items
when debt is first issued, whereas these amounts are deferred and amortized in
the statement of activities.

Amortization of premium on bonds

Accrued interest for long-term debt is not reported as an expenditure for the
current period while it is recorded in the statement of activities. This adjustment
reflects the change in interest payable.

Because some property taxes will not be collected in time to pay for obligations in
the current period, they are not considered available revenues in the governmental
funds and are instead reported as deferred revenues. These revenues are
accounted for as revenue in the statement of activities.

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of the self-
funded health insurance program for City employees, dependents and retirees to
individual funds.
Pension contributions are reported as expenditures in the governmental funds
when made. However, they are reported as deferred outflows of resources in the
statement of net position because the net pension liability is measured a year
before the government's report date. Pension expense, which is the change in the
net pension liability adjusted for changes in deferred outflows and inflows of
resources related to pensions, is reported in the statement of activities.
Pension contributions $ 2,728.328
Pension expense ‘ (2,855,447)

Compensated absences and other postemployment benefit obligation expenses
reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of current financial
resources and therefore are not reported as expenditures in governmental funds.
This adjustment reflects the change in compensated absences and other
postemployment benefit obligations.

Change in net position of governmental activities

$ 75,895

1,059,117

(2,851.208)

1,060,000

41,875

7,675

(60,368)

599,523

(127,119)

23,310

$__(171,800)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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CITY OF ELKO, NEVADA
Statement of Net Position
Proprietary Funds

Assets

Current assets:

Cash and investments
Receivables
Due from other governments
Interest receivable
Inventory
Prepaid expense

Total current assets

Noncurrent assets:
Restricted cash and investments
Capital assets:
Land and water rights
Buildings
Improvements
Infrastructure
Machinery, equipment and vehicles
Construction-in-progress
Less accumulated depreciation
Total noncurrent assets
Total assets

Deferred outflows of resources
Deferred outflows related to pensions
Liabilities
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Retainage payable
Accrued liabilities
Refundable deposits
Accrued interest
Unearned revenue
Compensated absences
Bonds payable - current
Total current liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities:
Compensated absences
Other postemployment benefits obligation
Bonds payable
Net pension liability
Total noncurrent liabilities
Total liabilities
Deferred inflows of resources
Deferred inflows related to pensions

Net position

Net investment in capital assets

Restricted for group health insurance claims
Restricted for debt service

Restricted for refundable deposits
Unrestricted

Total net position

June 30, 2017
Governmental
Business-type Activities Activities
Total Internal

Water Fund Sewer Fund _Airport Fund Landfill Fund Golf Fund Enterprise Funds _Service Fund
$ 8018826 $15428877 § 742,824 § 12327752 § 667941 $ 26091220 § 995062
340,491 593,729 35,355 230,801 1,391 1,201,767 2,028
- - 289,220 - - 289,220 -
7,658 14,684 866 1,185 626 25,019 947
51,999 - - - - 51,999 -
- - - - - - 69,363
8418974 16,037,290 1,068,265 1,464,738 669,958 27,659,225 1,067,400
39,519 - 185,420 1,289 - 226,228 -
573,740 207,668 884,269 2467 9,045 1,677,189 -
1,665,568 1,791,956 6,120,631 668,955 782,983 11,030,093 -
20,299,349 46,853,019 118,341 1,064,624 3,228,933 71,564,266 -
681,773 - 48,573,657 - - 49,255.430 -
2,617,330 2,960,311 3,561,579 2,999,260 692,865 12,831,345 -
35,684 230,394 1,332,990 - - 1,599,068 -
(9,039,707) _ (25,200,372) _ (25,203,052) (1,881.833) (1,057,409) (62,382,373) -
16,873,256 26,842,976 35,573,835 2,854,762 3,656417 85,801,246 -
25,292 230 42,880,266 36,642,100 4,319,500 4,326,375 113460471 1,067,400
409,533 393,112 201,214 267,436 98,364 1,370,159 -
150,211 249,807 40,984 50,152 19,694 510,848 109,671
- - 289,203 - - 289,203 -
43,039 37,032 15,728 25406 11,558 132,763 -
39,519 - - 1,289 - 40,808 -
- - 31,670 - - 31,670 -
- - 7,503 - - 7,503 -
19,020 48497 13,176 39,817 8,792 129,302 -
- - 206,225 - - 206,225 -
251,789 335,336 604,489 116,664 40,044 1,348,322 109,671
19,019 48497 13,176 39,818 8,791 129,301 -
155,703 168,379 79,762 118,723 63,515 586,082 -
- - 2,305,103 - - 2,305,103 -
1,670,208 1,603,236 820,616 1,090,692 403,201 5,587,953 -
1,844,930 1,820,112 3,218,657 1,249.233 475,507 8,608,439 -
2,096,719 2,155,448 3,823,146 1,365,897 515,551 9,956,761 109,671
138,345 132,798 67,972 90,343 33,398 462,856 -
16,833,737 26,842,976 32,877,087 2,853,473 3,656,417 83,063,690 -
- - - - - - 957,729
- - 185,420 - - 185,420 -

39,519 - - - - 39,519
6,593,443 14,142,156 (110,311) 277,223 219,873 21,122.384 -
$23466,699 $40985132 $32952,196 § 3,130,696 $ 3876290 § 104411013 § 957,729

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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CITY OF ELKO, NEVADA
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position
Proprietary Funds

For the Year Ended June 30, 2017

Governmental
Business-type Activities Activities
Total Internal
Water Fund Sewer Fund Airport Fund  Landfill Fund Golf Fund Enterprise Funds Service Fund
Operating revenues
Service fees $ 3,268235 $ 2915762 $ 242,000 $ 1,750,667 $ 641,040 $ 83817,704 $ 2,151,256
Intergovernmental revenue - - 19,108 - - 19,108 -
Other revenues 104,052 20,324 1,198,935 52,877 6,045 1,382,233 -
Total operating revenues 3,372,287 2,936,086 1,460,043 1,803,544 647,085 10,219,045 2,151,256
Operating expenses
Salaries 829,328 720,947 338,655 522,121 252,579 2,663,630 -
Employee benefits 570,238 366,764 101,008 270911 52,678 1,361,599 1,555,778
Service, supplies and other 1,608,342 1,749,515 413,853 679,669 235,221 4,686,600 -
Depreciation expense 542,672 1,327,101 2,368,673 201,530 64,109 4,504,085 -
Total operating expenses 3,550,580 4,164,327 3,222,189 1,674,231 604,587 13215914 1,555,778
Operating income (loss) (178,293) (1,228,241) (1,762,146) 129,313 42,498 (2,996,869) 595,478
Nonoperating revenues (expenses)
Sewer improvement fees - 2,936,882 - - - 2,936,882 -
Interest income 47,033 85,316 4458 7,841 3,219 147,867 4,045
Gain/(loss) on disposals of
capital assets (22,405) (128,574) (23,783) 1,615 3,938 (169,209) -
Interest expense - - (127,533) - - (127,533) -
Total nonoperating revenues
(expenses) 24,628 2,893,624 (146,858) 9,456 7,157 2,788,007 4,045
Income (loss) before grants,
contributions and transfers (153,665) 1,665,383 (1,909,004) 138,769 49,655 (208,862) 599,523
Grant income - - 1,199,332 - - 1,199,332 -
Capital contributions 196,010 220914 - - 2,663,015 3,079,939 -
Transfers in 484,261 - 25,793 510,054
Change in net position 42345 1,886,297 (225411) 138,769 2,738,463 4,580,463 599,523
Total net position, beginning of year 23,424,354 39,098,835 33,177,607 2,991,927 1,137,827 99,830,550 358,206
Total net position, end of year  § 23,466,699 $ 40,985,132 $ 32,952,196 $ 3,130,696 $ 3,876,290 $ 104,411,013 $ 957,729

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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CITY OF ELKO, NEVADA
Statement of Cash Flows
Proprietary Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017

Business-type Activities

Water Fund Sewer Fund  Amport Fund  Landfill Fund

Enterprise Funds

Cash flows from operating activities:

Cash received fromn customers, service fees $ 3313496 $ 2,858,963 $ 1,648,323

Cash received from customers,

capacity fees and other 104,052 20324 52,877

Cash paid to suppliers (1,918414) (1,599,071) (695,598)

Cash paid to employees (1,274,809) (1,068317) (764,168)

Net cash flows from operating activities 224,325 211,899 241434
Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:

Transfer from (to) other funds - - -
Cash flows from capital and related
financing activities:

Grant revenue - - -

Cash received from customer contributions 196,010 220914 -

Cash received for capital improvement user fee - 2,936,882 -

Principal paid on capital debt - - -

Interest paid on capital debt - - -

Acquisition and construction of capital assets (1,232,180) (2,221915) (603,539)

Proceeds from capital asset disposals 3,040 - 1,615

Net cash flows from capital and related
financing activities (1,033,130) 935,881 (601,924)
Cash flows from investing activities:

Interest on investments 43,844 78,119 7473
Net change in cash and investments (764,961) 1,225,899 (353,017)
Cash and investments, including restricted,

beginning of year 8,823,306 14202978 1,587,058
Cash and investments, including restricted,

end of year $ 8058345 $ 15428877 $ 1,234,041
Reconciliation of operating income to net cash
flows from operating activities:
Operating income (loss) $ (178293) $ (1,228241) $ 129313
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss)
to net cash flows from operating activities
Depreciation expense 542,672 1,327,101 201,530
Pension expense 333818 219329 155,160
Pension contributions (209,534) (201,132) (136,831)
Changes in operating assets and Habilities:
(Increase) decrease in receivables 5,742 (56,793) (102,425)
(Increase) decrease in inventories 24218 - -
(Increase) decrease in prepaid expenses - - -
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable (334,290) 150,444 (15,929)
Increase (decrease) in accrued liabilities 8217 4,896 4401
Increase (decrease) in customer deposits 39,519 (O] 81
Increase (decrease) in other
postemployment benefits (5,507) (5,955) (4,199)
Increase (decrease) in
compensated absences payable (2237) 2256 10,333
Net cash flows from operating activities $ 224325 211,899 $ 241434
Noncash investing, capital, and financing activities:
Acquisition of capital assets with payables $ 98,028 849 $ -
Acquisition of capital assets via contributions ~ $ - - $ -

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

Governmental
Activities
Internal
Service Fund
$ 2,150,138
(111,797)
(1,555,778)
482,563
3,345
485,908
509,154
$ 995062
$ 595478
(1,118)
(69,363)
42434)
$ 482,563
$ -
$ -



CITY OF ELKO, NEVADA
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30,2017

NOTE 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The financial statements of the City of Elko, State of Nevada (City) have been prepared in conformity
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) as applied to
government units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-
setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. A summary of
the more significant accounting policies consistently applied in the preparation of the accompanying
financial statements follows:

Reporting entity

The City of Elko, Nevada (City) was incorporated on April 15, 1917. The City is a municipal corporation
governed by an elected mayor and four members of a City Council. The accompanying financial
statements present all activities of the City and its blended component unit, an entity for which the City is
considered to be financially accountable. The blended component unit is, in substance, part of the City’s
operations, even though it is a separate legal entity Thus the following blended unit is appropriately
presented as a fund of the primary government.

Elko Redevelopment Agency

Although legally separate from the City, the Elko Redevelopment Agency is governed by a Board
comprised of the City Council and Mayor.

Description of government-wide financial statements

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net position and the statement of
activities) report information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the primary government and its
component units. All fiduciary activities are reported only in the fund financial statements. Governmental
activities, which normally are supported by taxes, intergovernmental revenues, and other nonexchange
transactions, are reported separately from business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on
fees and charges to external customers for support. Likewise, when applicable, the primary government is
reported separately from certain legally separate component units for which the primary government is
financially accountable.

Basis of presentation — government-wide financial statements

While separate government-wide and fund financial statements are presented, they are interrelated. The
governmental activities column incorporates data from governmental funds, while business-type activities
incorporate data from the City’s enterprise funds. Separate financial statements are provided for
governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds, even though the latter are excluded from the
government-wide financial statements.

As a general rule, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide financial
statements.
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Basis of presentation — fund financial statements

The fund financial statements provide information about the City’s funds, including its fiduciary funds
and blended component units. Separate statements for each fund category—governmental and
proprictary—are presented. The emphasis of fund financial statements is on major governmental and
enterprise funds, each displayed in a separate column. All remaining governmental and enterprise funds
are aggregated and reported as nonmajor funds. Major individual governmental and enterprise funds are
reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements.

The City reports the following major governmental funds:

The General Fund is the City’s primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources of
the general government, except those accounted for in another fund.

The Recreation Fund is a special revenue fund used to account for room tax monies received for
the purposes of providing recreation improvements.

The City reports the following major enterprise funds:

The Water Fund is used to account for the provision of water services to the residents of the
City. All activities necessary to provide such services are accounted for in this fund, including,
but not limited to, administration, operations, maintenance, and billing and collection.

The Sewer Fund is used to account for provision of sanitary sewer services for the residents of
the City. All activities necessary to provide such services are accounted for in this fund,
including, but not limited to, administration, operations, maintenance, and billing and collection.

The Airport Fund is used to account for the operation of the Elko Regional Airport. All
activities necessary to provide such services are accounted for in this fund, including, but not
limited to, administration, operations, maintenance and improvement, financing and related debt
services, and billing and collection (including collection of passenger facility charges).

The Landfill Fund is used to account for the regional landfill and associated costs. All activities
necessary to provide services are accounted for in this fund, including, but not limited to,
administration, operations, maintenance, financing and related debt.

The Golf Fund is used to account for the Elko Municipal Golf Course and associated costs. All
activities necessary to provide services are accounted for in this fund, including, but not limited
to, administration, operations, maintenance, financing and related debt.

Additionally, the City reports the following fund type:

The Internal Service Fund accounts for operations of providing health insurance to City
employees, retirees and their dependents on a cost reimbursement basis.
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During the course of operations the City has activity between funds for various purposes. Any residual
balances outstanding at year end are reported as due from/to other funds and advances to/from other
funds. While these balances are reported in fund financial statements, certain eliminations are made in the
preparation of the government-wide financial statements. Balances between the funds included in
governmental activities (i.e., the governmental funds) are eliminated so that only the net amount is
included as internal balances in the governmental activities column. Similarly, balances between the
funds included in business-type activities (i.e., the enterprise funds) are eliminated so that only the net
amount is included as internal balances in the business-type activities column.

Further, certain activity occurs during the year involving transfers of resources between funds. In fund
financial statements these amounts are reported at gross amounts as transfers in/out. While reported in
fund financial statements, certain eliminations are made in the preparation of the government-wide
financial statements. Transfers between the funds included in governmental activities are eliminated so
that only the net amount is included as transfers in the governmental activities column. Similarly,
balances between the funds included in business-type activities are eliminated so that only the net amount
is included as internal balances in the business-type activities column.

Measurement focus and basis of accounting

The accounting and financial reporting treatment is determined by the applicable measurement focus and
basis of accounting. Measurement focus indicates the type of resources being measured such as current
financial resources or economic resources. The basis of accounting indicates the timing of transactions or
events for recognition in the financial statements.

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus
and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when
a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as
revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon
as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met.

The governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as
they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible
within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this
purpose, the City considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the
current fiscal period. Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual
accounting. However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated absences,
and claims and judgments, are recorded only when payment is due. General capital asset acquisitions are
reported as expenditures in governmental funds. Issuance of long-term debt and acquisitions under capital
leases are reported as other financing sources.

Property taxes, consolidated taxes (sales taxes, cigarette taxes, government service tax, and liquor taxes),
gaming taxes, gasoline taxes and interest associated with the current fiscal period are all considered to be
susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal period. Licenses and
permits, franchise fees, charges for services and fines and forfeits are not susceptible to accrual because
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generally they are not measurable until received in cash. Entitlements are recorded as revenues when all
eligibility requirements are met, including any time requirements, and the amount is received during the
period or within the availability period for this revenue source (within 60 days of year-end). Expenditure-
driven grants are recognized as revenue when the qualifying expenditures have been incurred and all
other eligibility requirements have been met, and the amount is received during the period or within the
availability period for this revenue source (within 60 days of year-end). All other revenue items are
considered to be measurable and available only when cash is received by the City.

The proprietary fund and internal service funds are reported using the economic resources measurement
focus and the accrual basis of accounting.

Assets, liabilities, deferred outflows/inflows of resources, and net position/fund balance
Cash equivalents

The City’s cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits, and short-term
investments with original maturities of three months or less from the date of acquisition. Based on the
nature of the investment policies, all amounts are available on demand and are, therefore, classified as
cash equivalents on the Statement of Cash Flows.

Cash and Investments

Cash balances from all funds are combined and, to the extent practicable, invested by the City
administration as permitted by law. Investments are recorded at fair value. The City of Elko invests in
the State of Nevada Local Government Investment Pool, which as regulatory oversight from the Board of
Finance for the State of Nevada. All interest earned on these investments is recognized in the General
Fund, except for amounts credited to certain other funds in accordance with law, contract and City policy.

Investments for the City are reported at fair value (generally based on quoted market prices)

State statues authorize the City to invest in obligations of the U.S. Treasury; certain farm loan bonds;
certain securities issued by Nevada local governments and other state and local governments; certain
repurchase agreements; certain bankers acceptances; certain commercial paper; and certain negotiable
certificates of deposits and money market mutual funds, as well as the State of Nevada Local Government
Investment Pool.
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The following investments are allowed but must not exceed 20% of the total portfolio at the purchase date
and 25% of such investments may not be in notes, bonds, or unconditional obligations issued by any one
corporation:

e Certain notes, bonds and other unconditional obligations for the payment of money issued by
corporations organized and operating in the United States.

e Collateralized mortgage obligations “AAA” rated.

e Asset-backed securities “AAA: rated.

Restricted Assets

Bond covenants require resources be set aside to make future debt payments, these are reported as
restricted cash in addition to unexpended bond proceeds.

Receivables

No allowance for accounts receivable has been established since management does not anticipate any
material collection loss with respect the balances shown as accounts receivable.

Inventories and prepaid items

Proprietary fund inventories are valued at cost using the first-in/first-out (FIFO) method and consist of
supplies and materials. Inventories of governmental funds in the fund financial statements consist of fuel
and oil which are recorded as expenditures when consumed rather than when purchased.

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded as
prepaid items in both the government-wide and fund financial statements. The cost of prepaid items is
recorded as expenditures/expenses when consumed rather than when purchased.

Capital assets

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets (e.g., roads, bridges,
sidewalks, and similar items), are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type activities
columns in the government-wide financial statements.

Capital assets are defined by the City as assets with an individual cost of more than $5,000 for non-
infrastructure assets and an estimated useful life in excess of three years. Such assets are recorded at
historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded
at estimated acquisition value at the date of donation. The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that
do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend assets lives are not capitalized. Interest incurred
during the construction phase of capital assets of business-type activities is included as part of the
capitalized value of the assets constructed.
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Property, plant and equipment are depreciated using the straight-line method over the following estimated
useful lives:

Buildings 10 to 100 years
Improvements other than buildings 8 to 100 years
Machinery, equipment and vehicles 3 to 50 years
Infrastructure 15 to 50 years

Deferred outflows/inflows of resources

In addition to assets, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred
outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of resources,
represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as
an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until then. The City has one item that qualifies for
reporting in this category. It is a pension related item reported on the government-wide financial
statements. See footnote 10 for more information.

In addition to liabilities, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred
inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources, represents
an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an inflow
of resources (revenue) until that time. The City has two types of items that qualify for reporting in this
category. The first item arises only under a modified accrual basis of accounting. Accordingly, the item,
unavailable revenue, is reported only in the governmental fund’s balance sheet. The governmental funds
report unavailable revenues from two sources: property taxes and fuel tax. These amounts are deferred
and recognized as an inflow of resources in the period that the amounts become available. The second
item is a pension related item reported on the government-wide financial statements. See footnote 10 for
more information.

Pensions

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows
of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net
position of the Public Employees’ Retirement System of Nevada (PERS) and additions to/deductions
from the plan’s fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by
PERS. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized
when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value.
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Net position flow assumption

Sometimes the City will fund outlays for a particular purpose from both restricted (e.g., restricted bond or
grant proceeds) and unrestricted resources. In order to calculate the amounts to report as restricted — net
position and unrestricted — net position in the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements,
a flow assumption must be made about the order in which the resources are considered to be applied. It is
the City’s policy to consider restricted — net position to have been depleted before unrestricted — net
position is applied.

Fund balance flow assumptions

Sometimes the City will fund outlays for a particular purpose from both restricted and unrestricted
resources (the total of committed, assigned, and unassigned fund balance). In order to calculate the
amounts to report as restricted, committed, assigned, and unassigned fund balance in the governmental
fund financial statements a flow assumption must be made about the order in which the resources are
considered to be applied. It is the City’s policy to consider restricted fund balance to have been depleted
before using any of the components of unrestricted fund balance. Further, when the components of
unrestricted fund balance can be used for the same purpose, committed fund balance is depleted first,
followed by assigned fund balance. Unassigned fund balance is applied last, unless the City Council has
provided otherwise in its commitment or assignment actions.

Fund balance policies

Fund balance of governmental funds is reported in various categories based on the nature of any
limitations requiring the use of resources for specific purposes. The City itself can establish limitations on
the use of resources through either a commitment (committed fund balance) or an assignment (assigned
fund balance).

The committed fund balance classification includes amounts that can be used only for the specific
purposes determined by a formal action of the City’s highest level of decision-making authority. The
governing council is the highest level of decision-making authority for the City that can, by adoption of a
resolution prior to the end of the fiscal year, commit fund balance. Once adopted, the limitation imposed
by the resolution remains in place until a similar action is taken (the adoption of another resolution) to
remove or revise the limitation.

Amounts in the assigned fund balance classification are intended to be used by the City for specific
purposes but do not meet the criteria to be classified as committed. The City Manager is authorized to
review and approve amounts assigned to specific purposes by the Director of Administrative Services and
approved by the City Manager in accordance with the City’s policy. Any funds assigned must be reported
to the City Council at their next meeting. The council may also assign fund balance as it does when
appropriating fund balance to cover a gap between estimated revenue and appropriations in the
subsequent year’s appropriated budget. Unlike commitments, assignments generally only exist
temporarily. In other words, an additional action does not normally have to be taken for the removal of an
assignment. Conversely, as discussed above, an additional action is essential to either remove or revise a
commitment.
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Revenues and expenditures/expenses
Program revenues

Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use,
or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or segment and 2)
grants and contributions (including special assessments) that are restricted to meeting the operational or
capital requirements of a particular function or segment. All taxes, including those dedicated for specific
purposes, and other internally dedicated resources are reported as general revenues rather than as program
revenues.

Indirect costs

Expenses relating to the functional activities include allocated indirect expenses. The City allocates
indirect costs of general and administrative departments to the Proprietary Funds, except the Airport
Fund, based on five year averages of expenditures and time studies.

Compensated absences

It is the City’s policy to permit employees to accumulate earned but unused vacation and sick pay
benefits.

For governmental funds, amounts of vested or accumulated vacation and sick leave that are not expected
to be liquidated with expendable available financial resources are reported as liabilities in the
government-wide statement of net position and as expenses in the government-wide statement of
activities. No expenditures are reported for these amounts in the fund financial statements. A liability for
compensated absences is reported in the governmental funds, primarily the General Fund, only if they
have matured as a result of employee resignations, terminations and retirements.

Vested or accumulated vacation and sick leave in the proprietary fund are recorded as an expense and a
liability of that fund as the benefits accrue to the employees and are thus recorded in both the
government-wide financial statements and the individual fund financial statements.

Proprietary funds operating and nonoperating revenues and expenses

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in
connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of
the water and sewer fund are charges to customers for sales and services. Operating expenses for
enterprise funds include the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses and depreciation on capital
assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and
expenses.
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Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of
the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenditures/expenses during the
reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

NOTE 2. Reconciliation of Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements

The governmental fund balance sheet includes a reconciliation between total governmental fund balances
and net position of governmental activities as reported in the government-wide statement of net position.
This difference primarily results from the long-term economic focus of the statement of net position
versus the current financial resources focus of the governmental fund balance sheets. The details of these
differences are reported in the reconciliation on page 21.

The governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balance includes a
reconciliation between net changes in fund balances-total governmental funds and changes in net position
of governmental activities as reported in the government-wide statement of activities. These differences
are the result of converting from the current financial resources measurement focus and modified accrual
basis for governmental fund statements to the economic resources measurement focus and full accrual
basis used for government-wide statements. The details of these differences are reported in the
reconciliation on page 23.

NOTE 3. Stewardship, Compliance and Accountability

Budgets and budgetary accounting

The City of Elko adheres to the Local Government Budget and Finance Act (Act) incorporated within the
statutes of the State of Nevada, in which annual budgets are legally adopted for all funds except Agency
funds. The Act and City policy include the following procedures to establish the budgetary data, which is
reflected in these financial statements:

1. On or before April 15, the City Council files a tentative budget for the fiscal year commencing
the following July 1 with the Nevada Department of Taxation

2. Public hearings on the tentative budget are held no sooner than the third Tuesday in May and no
later than the last day in May, to obtain taxpayer comments.
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3. Prior to June 1, at a public hearing, the Council indicates changes, if any, to be made to the
tentative budget and adopts a final budget by the favorable vote of a majority of the members of
the Council. The final budget must then be forwarded to the Nevada Department of Taxation for
final approval.

4. The City may not amend the budget without approval by the City Council. Transfer
appropriations between accounts within any function are authorized with the approval of the
budget officer and/or the City Council. Any revisions that alter the total appropriations of a
function or fund must be approved in advance by the City Council. Formal budgetary integration
in the financial records of all funds is employed to enhance management control during the year.

5. Budgets for all fund types are adopted on a basis consistent with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America (GAAP). Appropriations lapse at year end.

6. In accordance with state statute, actual expenditures may not exceed budgeted appropriations of
the various governmental functions of the General, Special Revenue, and Capital Project Funds.
Per NRS 354.626, expenditures over budgeted appropriations are allowed for bond repayments,
medium term obligation repayments, and other long-term contracts expressly authorized by law.
The sum of operating and nonoperating expenses in Proprietary Funds also may not exceed
combined total appropriations.

7. The above dates may be adjusted as necessary during legislative years.

The budget reflected in the financial statements has been amended from the original budget amounts.
Expenditures over Appropriations
The individual Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures/Expenses and Changes in Fund Balances/Net
Position — Budget and Actual reports as listed in the table of contents present all of the funds which
incurred an excess of expenditures/expenses over appropriations for the year ended June 30, 2017, if any.
Encumbrances
Encumbrance accounting, under which purchase orders, contracts, and other commitments for the
expenditure of monies are recorded in order to reserve that portion of the applicable appropriation, is not
employed by the City.
Deficit Fund Balances
As of June 30, 2017 no funds had deficit fund balances
Interest of Member of Governing Body
The city was not in compliance with NRS 332.800 which does not allow a member of the governing body
to be interested directly or indirectly in any contract entered into by the governing body. See the Report

on State Legal Compliance at page 133 and also the separate schedule of findings and recommendations,
as item 2017-001.
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Property tax calendar

All real property within the city is assigned a parcel number by the County Assessor in accordance with
state law, with each parcel being subject to physical reappraisal every five years. A factoring system is
used to adjust the appraised value during the years between physical appraisals. The property and its
improvements are being assessed at 35% of “taxable value” as defined by statue.

The amount of tax levied is developed by multiplying the assessed value by the tax rate applicable to the
area in which the property is located. Article X, Section 2, of the Constitution of the State of Nevada
limits the total taxes levied by all overlapping governmental units within the boundaries of any county
(i.e., the county, the county school district, the State, and any other city, town, or special district) to an
amount not to exceed $5 per $100 of assessed valuation of the property being taxed. However, the 1979
Nevada Legislature enacted provisions whereby, commencing July 1, 1979, the combined overlapping tax
rate was limited to $3.64 per $100 of assessed valuation (as thereafter annually adjusted) except in cases
of severe financial emergency as defined by NRS 354.705. In 2005 the Nevada State Legislature passed
Assembly Bill 489 which provides for a partial abatement of the ad valorem taxes levied on qualified
property. For qualified property, the abatement will limit the increase of property taxes based on the
previous year’s assessed value.

Real property taxes result in a lien on the property and attach on July 1 (the levy date) of the year for
which the taxes are levied. Taxes may be paid in four installments payable on the third Monday in
August, and the first Mondays in October, January and March to the County Clerk/Treasurer of Elko
County in which the City of Elko is located. Penalties are assessed if a taxpayer fails to pay an installment
within ten days of the installment due date. After a two year waiting period, if taxes remain unpaid, a tax
deed is issued conveying the property to Elko County with a lien for back taxes and accumulated charges.
Redemption may be made by the owner and such persons as described by statute by paying all back taxes
and accumulated penalties, interest and costs before sale. As such, real property taxes receivable reflect
only those taxes receivable from the delinquent roll years, and current taxes collected within 60 days of
year end and delinquent taxes from all roll years prior to 2012-2013 have been written off. No provision
for uncollectible accounts has been established, as management does not anticipate any material
collection losses with respect to the remaining balances.

Delinquent taxes receivable not collected within sixty days after year-end are normally recorded as
unavailable revenue as they are not available to pay liabilities of the current period.

Taxes on personal property are collected currently. Personal property declarations are mailed out annually

and the tax is computed using percentages of taxable values established by the Department of Taxation at
the tax rates described above.
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A reconciliation of cash deposits and investments to the government-wide statement of net position is as
follows:

Cash and investments $ 37475339
Restricted cash and nvestments 6,774,087
$ 44249426
Deposits
Custodial credit risk

For deposits this is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the City’s deposit may not be returned. The
City does not have a formal policy for custodial credit risk. At June 30, 2017 cash on hand was $7,990
and the carrying amount of the City’s deposits was $9,428,635. None of the City’s bank balance of
$9,750,273 was exposed to custodial credit risk since it was insured and collateralized.

Investments

The Nevada State Treasurer’s Office operates the Local Government Investment Pool (LGIP). The LGIP
is available for investment of funds administered by any Nevada Public Treasurer.

The LGIP is not registered with the SEC as an investment company. Deposits in the LGIP are not insured
or otherwise guaranteed by the State of Nevada, and participants share proportionally in any realized gain

or losses on investments.

The provisions of State Law (NRS 355.170) govern the investment of public funds.
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As of June 30, 2017 the City had the following investments, maturities and credit ratings:

Credit
Fair Rating (1) Weighted Average

Investment Type Value S&P Moody's Maturity (2)
Money Market Fund 26,941 N/A N/A N/A
U.S. Agencies 3,853,166 AA+ Aaa 539
U.S. Treasuries 932,692 AA+ Aaa 215
Nevada Local Government

Investment Pool 30,000,000 N/A N/A 310

Total Fair Value $ 34,812,800

(1) Ratings are provided where applicable to indicate associated credit risk. N/A indicates not applicable.
(2) Interest rate risk is estimated using the weighted average days to maturity.

The City categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy established by generally
accepted accounting principles. The hierarchy is based on the valuation inputs used to measure the fair
value of the asset. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in active markets for identical assets; Level 2 inputs
are significant other observable inputs; Level 3 inputs are significant unobservable inputs.

The City has the following recurring fair value measurements as of June 30, 2017:
*  Money Market Funds are valued using significant other observable inputs (Level 2 inputs)
* U.S. Agencies investments are valued using quoted market prices (Level 1 inputs)
e U.S. Treasuries bills are valued using quoted market prices (Level 1 inputs)
» Nevada Local Government’s Investment Pool (LGIP):

Level 1 inputs $ 3,066,000
Level 2 inputs 26,934,000

Total LGIP investment $ 30,000,000
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Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an
investment. The City’s policy for managing its exposure to fair value loss arising from increasing interest
rates is to comply with the provisions of State law (NRS 355.170).

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its obligations.
The City’s policy for reducing its exposure to credit risk is to comply with State law (NRS 355.170).

Concentration of Credit Risk

Concentration of Credit Risk is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of a government’s investment
in a single issuer. Securities held by the City or by the City’s custodians are diversified to eliminate risk
of loss from overconcentration of assets in a specific maturity, a specific issuer, or a specific class of
securities. At June 30, 2017, the City investment in U.S. Treasuries and U.S. Agencies exceed 5% of the
City’s total investments.

NOTE 5. Receivables

Accounts Receivable

No allowance for doubtful accounts receivable has been established since management does not anticipate
any material collection loss with respect to the balances shown as accounts receivable.

Due from other governments

Due from other governments reported in the general fund and other governmental-type funds relate to
consolidated tax and motor vehicle tax revenue receivable, grant revenue receivable, and other
miscellaneous licenses and fees.

Due from other governments reported in the airport fund relates to various grant revenue receivable.

Other receivables

The receivables reported in the general fund include property tax revenues receivable that were
measurable and available per GASB, along with other miscellaneous grant, fee, and tax revenue.

The other receivables reported in the Non-major governmental funds relate to miscellaneous court
revenue receivable and transient lodging tax revenues receivable from various entities.
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Governmental capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2017 was as follows:

Governmental Activities: Balance Balance
6/30/2016 Additions Deletions 6/30/2017
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land $ 432912 - - 432912
Construction in progress 3,701,228 2,966 477 (5,992,739) 674,966
Total capital assets, not being depreciated: 4,134,140 2,966,477 (5,992,739) 1,107,878
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Buildings 11,695,077 12,515 (20,069) 11,687,523
Improvements 9,493,720 250,402 (319,078) 9425044
Machinery and equipment 12,879,231 513,247 (389453) 13,003,025
Infrastructure 38,201,112 3,381,232 (35,541) 41,546,803
Total capital assets, being depreciated: 72,269,140 4,157 396 (764,141) 75,662,395
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings (2,204,926) (165,903) 15,496 (2,355,333)
Improvements (2,815,632) (289,512) 203,829 (2,901,315)
Machinery and equipment (6,084,235) (895,285) 321,082 (6,658,438)
Infrastructure (16,828,889) (1,384,332) 35,541 (18,177,680)
Total accumulated depreciation (27,933,682) (2,735,032) 575,948 (30,092,766)
Total capital assets, being depreciated, net 44335458 1,422,364 (188,193) 45,569,629
Governmental activities capital assets,net § 48,469,598 $ 47388841 $ (6,180932) $ 46677507

Depreciation expense was charged to the functions/programs of the City as follows:

Governmental Activities:
General government
Public safety
Public works
Culture and recreation
Health

Total depreciation expense - governmental activities
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Business-type capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2017 was as follows:

Business Type Activities: Balance Balance
6/30/2016 Additions Deletions 6/30/2017
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land $ 1677180 § - 8 - $ 1,677,189
Construction in progress 2,804,361 3,524,303 (4,729,596) 1,599,068
Total capital assets, not being depreciatec 4,481,550 3,524,303 (4,729,596) 3,276,257
Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings 9,765,735 1,268,656 (4,298) 11,030,093
Improvements 66,661,287 5,676,586 (773,607) 71,564,266
Machinery and equipment 11,848,148 1,463,884 (480,687) 12,831,345
Infrastructure 49,255,430 - - 49,255,430
Total capital assets, being depreciated 137,530,600 8,409,126 (1,258,592) 144,681,134
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings (4,274,931) (114,851) 4,298 (4,385,484)
Improvements (31,058,260) (1,632,839) 625,965 (32,065,134)
Machinery and equipment (6,007,240) (596,717) 449,980 (6,153,977)
Infrastructure (17,618,099) (2,159,679) - (19,771,778)
Total accumulated depreciation (58,958,530) (4,504,086) 1,080,243 (62,382,373)
Total capital assets, being depreciated, ne 78,572,070 3,905,040 (178,349) 82,298,761

Business-type activities capital assets, net § 83,053,620 $ 7429343 $ (4907945) $ 85575018

Depreciation expense was charged to the functions/programs of the City as follows:

Business-Type Activities:

Water ' $ 542672
Sewer 1,327,102
Airport 2,368,674
Landfill 201,529
Golf 64,109

Total depreciation expense - business-type activities $ 4,504,086
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NOTE 7.

Long-Term Liabilities

The following is a summary of changes in long-term liabilities for the year ended June 30, 2017:

Governmental activities:

General obligation bonds:

2015 Limited Tax Recreation
Facilities and Refunding Bonds
Bond Premium - 2015 Limited Tax

Recreation Facilities and Refunding Bon¢

2014 Limited Tax Medium-Term
Public Safety Bonds

2010 Limited Tax Street Bonds

Bond Premium - 2010 Limited Tax
Street Bonds

Total general obligation bonds

Net other post employment
benefit obligations

Net pension liability

Accrued compensated absences

Total governmental activity
long-term liabilities

Business-type activities:

General obligation bonds:
Limited Tax Airport Refunding Bonds

Series 2009A and Series 2009B
Bond premium

Total general obligation

Net other post e mployment
benefit obligations

Net pension liability
Accrued compensated absences

Total business-type activity
long-term liabilities

Total long-term liabilities

Balance Balance Current

6/30/2016 Additions Retirements 6/30/2017 Portion
$ 7715000 § - § (3550000 $ 7,360,000 $ 365000
522,927 (27,048) 495,879 27,048
2,730,000 - (275,000) 2,455,000 285,000
8,485,000 - (430,000) 8,055,000 445,000
212,519 - (14,827) 197,692 14,827
19,665,446 - (1,101,875) 18,563,571 1,136,875
2,196,600 - (75,036) 2,121,564 -
18,892,940 2,981,873 (127,120) 21,747,693 -
1,328,308 557,439 (505,713) 1,380,034 690,017
$42,083294 § 3539312 §$(1,809,744) $43812862 § 1,826,392
$ 2,690,000 $ - $ (190,000) $ 2500000 $ 205,000
12,553 - (1,225) 11,328 1,225
2,702,553 - (191,225) 2,511,328 206,225
606,810 - (20,728) 586,082 -
4,838,925 749,028 - 5,587,953 -
281,013 115,482 (137,892) 258,603 129,302
$ 8429301 § 864510 $§ (3495845) § 8943966 § 335527
$50512,595 § 4403822 §(2159589) $52,756828 § 2162419
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NOTE 7. Long-Term Liabilities, Continued

The City has issued general obligation bonds for both governmental and business-type activities, to
provide funds for the acquisition and construction of major capital facilities.

Bonds payable consist of the following at June 30, 2017:
General obligation:

General Obligation (Limited Tax) Recreation Facilities and Refunding

Bonds, Series 20135, original issue $8,000,000, secured by pledged

revenues, due in semiannual principal and interest installments ranging

from $416,806 to $538,856, bearing interest from 2.00% to 4.00%,

maturing May 1, 2035. $ 7,360,000

General Obligation (Limited Tax) Medium-Term Public Safety Bonds,

Series 2014, original issue $3,000,000, secured by pledged revenues,

due in semiannual principal and interest installments ranging from

$333,613 to $337,794, bearing interest at 2.25%, maturing on

September 1, 2024. 2,455,000

General Obligation (Limited Tax) Street Bonds, Series 2010, original

issue $10,500,000, secured by pledged revenues, due in semiannual

principal and interest installments ranging from $741,700 to $745,781,

bearing interest at 3.70%, maturing on October 1, 2030. 8,055,000

Total bonds and notes payable - governmental activities 17,870,000

Airport general obligation bonds:

General Obligation (Limited Tax) Airport Improvement Bonds, Series
2009A and 2009B, original issue $3,735,000, due in semiannual principal
and interest installments ranging from $309,400 to $327,475, bearing

mterest from 2.00% to 5.80%, maturing October 1, 2026. $ 2,500,000
Total bonds and notes payable - business-type activities 2,500,000
Total bonds and notes payable $ 20,370,000
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Payments on the bonds payable that pertain to the City’s governmental activities are made by the debt
service fund. The compensated absence liability is paid from the fund responsible for the employee’s
compensation with significant liabilities payable from the general fund. The net pension liability and the
net other postemployment benefit obligations of governmental activities are liquidated by the general
fund.

*See Note 17 regarding the 2015 current refunding bond issuance

Estimated debt service requirements for bonds payable are as follows:

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities
Period Ending
June 30, Principal Interest Principal Interest
2018 $ 1,095,000 $ 593,924 $ 205,000 $ 122,055
2019 1,130,000 558,306 215,000 112,475
2020 ’ 1,165,000 521476 225,000 102,166
2021 1,215,000 479,524 225,000 91,290
2022 1,250,000 438,181 245,000 79,571
2023-2027 5,940,000 1,567.434 1,385,000 192,603
2028-2032 4,735,000 620,014 - -
2033-2035 1,340,000 86,824 - -

$ 17,870,000 $ 4865683 $ 2,500,000 $ 700,160

The combined total debt service for both governmental and business-type debt is as follows:

Combined Total
Period Ending
June 30, Principal Interest
2018 $ 1,300,000 $ 715,979
2019 1,345,000 670,781
2020 1,390,000 623,642
2021 1,440,000 570814
2022 1,495,000 517,752
2023-2027 7,325,000 1,760,037
2028-2032 4,735,000 620,014
2033-2035 1,340,000 36,824

$ 20,370,000 $ 5565843
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NOTE 8. Postemployment Retirement Health Insurance Benefit

Plan Descriptions: The City administers a self-insured healthcare plan with Anthem Blue Cross.
Additionally, the City contributes to an agent multiple-employer defined benefit postemployment
healthcare plan, Public Employees’ Benefits Plan (PEBP). Each plan provides medical, vision, dental, and
life insurance benefits to eligible retired City employees and beneficiaries.

Benefit provisions for the City’s self-insured plan are established pursuant to NRS 287.023 and can be
amended between the City and the respective associations. The plan provides healthcare insurance for
eligible retirees and their beneficiaries through the City’s group health insurance plan, which covers both
active and retired members. Under NRS 287.023, eligible retirees are able to participate in the plan with
blended rates, thereby benefitting from an implicit subsidy. Retirees are required to pay 100% of their
premiums under the plan. As of June 30, 2017, eight City retirees were utilizing this benefit. The plan
does not issue a publicly available financial report.

Benefit provisions for the PEBP are administered by the State of Nevada. NRS 287.043 assigns the
authority to establish and amend benefit provisions to the PEBP nine-member board of trustees. City
employees who met the eligibility requirements effective September 1, 2008 for retirement within the
Nevada Public Employee Retirement System had the option upon retirement to enroll in coverage under
the PEBP. NRS 287.023 sunsetted the option to join PEBP for City employees who retired from the City
after November 29, 2008. Local governments are required to pay the same portion of the cost of coverage
for their retirees joining PEBP that the State of Nevada pays for state retirees participating in the plan. As
of June 30, 2017, 62 City retirees were utilizing this benefit. The PEBP issues a publicly available
financial report that includes financial statements. This report may be obtained by writing to Public
Employee’s Benefits Program, 901 S. Stewart Street, Suite 1001, Carson City, NV 89701, or by calling
(775) 684-7000, or by accessing the website at https:/pebp.state.nv.us/resources/fiscal-utilization-
reports/.

Funding Policy: For the City’s self-insured plan, contribution requirements of the plan members and the
City are established and may be amended through negotiations between the City and the associations.
Retirees pay 100% of the premium. The City did not prefund any future benefits. The City’s self-insured
plan began July 1, 2012.

For the PEBP, NRS 287.046 establishes the subsidies to be contributed toward the premium costs of the
eligible retired City employees. The contribution requirements of plan members and the City may be
amended by the PEBP board. Premium rates determined by PEBP are the same for all participating
members. Plan members receiving benefits have their monthly contribution deducted from their pension
checks based on the health plan chosen by the retiree, as reduced by the amount of the subsidy; therefore,
their contributions are not available. For the plan year ended June 30, 2017, City retirees qualified for a
subsidy of $116 at five years of service and $635 at twenty years of service, with incremental increases
for years of service in between. As a participating employer, the City is billed for the subsidy on a
monthly basis and is legally required to provide for it. For fiscal year 2017, the City contributed $304,259
to the plan, equal to required contributions. The City did not prefund future benefits.
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NOTE 8.

Postemployment Retirement Health Insurance Benefit, Continued

Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation: The City’s annual other postemployment benefit (OPEB)
cost (expense) for the plans is calculated based on the annual required contribution of the employer
(ARC), an amount actuarially determined in accordance with parameters of GASB Statement 45. The
ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal cost each
year and to amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities (or funding excess) over a period not to exceed

thirty years.

The City’s annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the plans, and the net
OPEB obligations, by plan, for fiscal years 2017, 2016, and 2015 were as follows:

City's Plan
City's Plan
City's Plan

PEBP
PEBP
PEBP

Combined Totals
Combined Totals
Combined Totals

Annual OPEB Cost Percentage of

Fiscal (Projected Unit Credit Employer Annual OPEB  Net OPEB

Year End Cost Method) Contributions Contributed Obligation
June 30,2017 § 130822 §$ 25,099 19% $ 503,951
June 30,2016 135,968 9,649 7% $ 398,228
June 30, 2015 138,081 19,642 14% 271,909
June 30, 2017 102,770 304,259 296% 2,203,692
June 30,2016 90,015 237,189 263% 2,405,181
June 30, 2015 87,619 221,852 253% 2,552,355
June 30,2017 233,592 329,358 - 2,707,643
June 30, 2016 225,983 246,838 - 2,803,409
June 30, 2015 225,700 241,494 - 2,824,264
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The net OPEB obligation (NOPEBO) as of June 30, 3017, was calculated as follows:

City's Plan PEBP Total
Annual Required Contribution (ARC) $ 130,718 $ 102,122 $ 232,840
Interest on net OPEB obligation 15,496 96,386 111,882
Adjustment to annual required contribution (15,392) (95,738) (111,130)
Annual OPEB Cost 130,822 102,770 233,592
| Less: Contributions made 25,099 304,259 329,358
| Increase (decrease) in net OPEB obligation 105,723 (201,489) (95,766)
Net OPEB obligation — beginning of the year 398,228 2,405,181 2,803,409
i Net OPEB obligation — end of year $ 503,951 $ 2203,692 $ 2,707,643
| Funded Status and Funding Progress: The funded status of the plans as the most recent actuarial
| valuation follows:
City's Plan PEBP Total
| | Accrued actuarial liability (a) $ 939,953 $ 2,807,865 $ 3747818
Actuarial value of plan assets (b) - - -
Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability (a) — (b) $ 939,953 $ 23807865 $ 3747818
3 Funded Ratio (b) / (a) 0% 0% 0%
Covered payroll (¢) $ 11,220,000 $ 11,220,000
Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability as a
Percentage of Covered Payroll ([(a) —(b)] / (c)) 8.38% 25.03%

Actuarial valuations involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions about the
probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples include assumptions about future
employment, mortality, and the healthcare cost trend. Amounts determined regarding the funded status of
the plan and the annual required contributions of the employer are subject to continual revision as actual
results are compared to past expectations and new estimates are made about the future. The schedule of
funding progress, presented as required supplementary information following the notes to the financial
statements, presents information about whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or
decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liabilities for benefits. Multiyear information will be

provided as it becomes available.
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Actuarial Methods and Assumptions: Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on
the substantive plan (the plan as understood by the employer and plan members) and include the types of
benefits provided at the time of each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs
between the City and plan members to that point. Actuarial calculations reflect long-term perspective and
employ methods and assumptions that are designed to reduce short-term volatility in actuarial accrued
liabilities and actuarial value of assets.

In the July 1, 2014, actvarial valuation, the projected unit credit cost method was used. The actuarial
assumptions included a 4% discount rate, which is a standard rate for unfunded plans such as the City’s.
The healthcare trend rate used for 2014 was 7%, declining 1% per year through 2016. After 2016, the
rate used was 5%. The assumptions reflect an implicit rate of general inflation of 5% per year. The
Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability (UAAL) is being amortized as a level percentage of projected
payroll on an open basis. The amortization period is 30 years.

NOTE 9. Interfund Transactions and Balancef

As of June 30, 2017, the City did not have any internal balances:
Interfund balances resulted from the time lag between the dates that (1) interfund goods and services are

provided or reimbursable expenditures occur, (2) transactions are recorded in the accounting system, and
(3) payments between funds are made. All interfund balances are expected to be repaid within one year.
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For the year ended June 30, 2017, the City made the following interfund transfers:

Transfers in

General Nonmajor
Transfers out Fund Governmental Airport Golf Total
General Fund $ 28165 § 84496 § 163424 § - § 276,085
Recreation Fund 284,267 675,556 320,837 25,793 1,306,453
Total $ 312432 $ 760,052 $ 484,261 $ 25793 $ 1,582,538

Transfers are used to (1) move revenues from the fund that statute or budget requires to collect them to
the fund that statute or budget requires to expend them, (2) move receipts restricted to debt service from
the funds collecting the receipts to the debt service fund as debt service payments become due, and (3)
use unrestricted revenues collected in the general fund to finance various programs accounted for in other
funds in accordance with budgetary authorizations.

NOTE 10. Defined Benefit Pension Plan

Public Employees’ Retirement System of Nevada (PERS)
Plan description

PERS administers a cost-sharing, multiple-employer, defined benefit public employees’ retirement system
which includes both Regular and Police/Fire members. The System was established by the Nevada
Legislature in 1947, effective July 1, 1948, The System is administered to provide a reasonable base
income to qualified employees who have been employed by a public employer and whose earnings
capacities have been removed or substantially impaired by age or disability.
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NOTE 10. Defined Benefit Pension Plan, Continued

Benefits provided

Benefits, as required by the Nevada Revised Statutes (NRS or statute), are determined by the number of
years of accredited service at time of retirement and the member’s highest average compensation in any
36 consecutive months with special provisions for members entering the System on or after January 1,
2010 and July 1, 2015. Benefit payments to which participants or their beneficiaries may be entitled
under the plan include pension benefits, disability benefits, and survivor benefits.

Monthly benefit allowances for members are computed as 2.5% of average compensation for each
accredited year of service prior to July 1, 2001. For service earned on and after July 1, 2001, this factor is
2.67% of average compensation. For members entering the System on or after January 1, 2010, there is a
2.5% service time factor and for regular members entering the System on or after July 1, 2015, there is a
2.25% factor. The System offers several alternatives to the unmodified service retirement allowance
which, in general, allow the retired employee to accept a reduced service retirement allowance payable
monthly during his or her lifetime and various optional monthly payments to a named beneficiary after his
or her death.

Post-retirement increases are provided by authority of NRS 286.575 - .579.
Vesting

Regular members are eligible for retirement at age 65 with five years of service, at age 60 with 10 years
of service, or at any age with thirty years of service. Regular members entering the System on or after
January 1, 2010, are eligible for retirement at age 65 with five years of service, or age 62 with 10 years of
service, or any age with thirty years of service.

Police/Fire members are eligible for retirement at age 65 with five years of service, at age 55 with ten
years of service, at age 50 with twenty years of service, or at any age with twenty-five years of service.
Police/Fire members entering the System on or after January 1, 2010, are eligible for retirement at 65 with
five years of service, or age 60 with ten years of service, or age 50 with twenty years of service, or at any
age with thirty years of service. Only service performed in a position as a police officer or firefighter may
be counted towards the eligibility for retirement as Police/Fire accredited service.

The normal ceiling limitation on monthly benefits allowances is 75% of average compensation. However,
a member who has an effective date of membership before July 1, 1985, is entitled to a benefit of up to
90% of average compensation. Both Regular and Police/Fire members become fully vested as to benefits
upon completion of five years of service.
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Contributions

The authority for establishing and amending the obligation to make contributions and member
contribution rates is set by statute. New hires, in agencies which did not elect the Employer-Pay
Contribution (EPC) plan prior to July 1, 1983, have the option of selecting one of two contribution plans.
Contributions are shared equally by employer and employee. Employees can take a reduced salary and
have contributions made by the employer (EPC) or can make contributions by a payroll deduction
matched by the employer.

The System’s basic funding policy provides for periodic contributions at a level pattern of cost as a
percentage of salary throughout an employee’s working lifetime in order to accumulate sufficient assets to
pay benefits when due.

The System receives an actuarial valuation on an annual basis indicating the contribution rates required to
fund the System on an actuarial reserve basis. Contributions actually made are in accordance with the
required rates established by the Nevada Legislature. These statutory rates are increased/decreased
pursuant to NRS 286.421 and 286.450.

The actuarial funding method used is the Entry Age Normal Cost Method. It is intended to meet the
funding objective and result in a relatively level long-term contributions requirement as a percentage of
salary.

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015, the Statutory Employer/employee matching rate was 13.25% for
Regular and 20.75% for Police/Fire. For fiscal years ended June 30, 2016 and 2017, the Statutory
Employer/employee matching rate was 14.50% for Regular and 20.75% for Police/Fire.

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015 the Employer-Pay Contribution (EPC) rate was 25.75% for
Regular and 40.50% for Police/Fire. For fiscal years ended June 30, 2016 and 2017, the EPC was 28% for
Regular and 40.50% for Police/Fire.

The City's contributions for the current and two preceding fiscal years, all of which were equal to the
required contributions, were as follows:

Year Ended Regular Police/Fire
June 30, Fund Fund
2015 § 1242452 § 1954,147
2016 1,407,974 2,036,534
2017 1,401,781 2,027,576
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Investment policy

The System’s policies which determine the investment portfolio target asset allocation are established by
the Board. The asset allocation is reviewed annually and is designed to meet the future risk and return
needs of the System. The following was the Board adopted policy target asset allocation as of June 30,
2016:

Asset Class Target Long-term Geometric Expected
Allocation Real Rate of Return*

Domestic equity 42% 5.50%

International equity 18% 5.75%

Domestic fixed income 30% 0.25%

Private markets 10% 6.80%

*As of June 30, 2016, PERS’ long-term inflation assumption was 3.5%.
Pension liability
Net pension liability

At June 30, 2017, the City reported a liability of $27,335,646 for its proportionate share of the PERS' net
pension liability. The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2016, and the total pension
liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date.
The employer allocation percentage of the net pension liability was based on the total contributions due
on wages paid during the measurement period. Each employer’s proportion of the net pension liability is
based on their combined employer and member contributions relative to the total combined employer and
member contributions for all employers for the period ended June 30, 2016. The City's proportion
measured as of June 30, 2016, was .20313 percent, which was a decrease of 0.00396 percent from its
proportion measured as of June 30, 2015.

Pension liability discount rate sensitivity

The following presents the net pension liability of the PERS as of June 30, 2017, calculated using the
discount rate of 8.00%, as well as what the PERS net pension liability would be if it were calculated using
a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (7.00%) or 1-percentage-point higher (9.00%) than the
current discount rate:

1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase
(7.00%) (8.00%) (9.00%)
Proportionate share of ‘
Net pension (asset) / liability $ 40068717 $§ 27335646 $§ 16,741,888
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Pension plan fiduciary net position

Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net position is available in the PERS
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report, available on the PERS website www.nvpers.org.

Actuarial assumptions

The City’s net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2016, and the total pension liability used to
calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date. The total
pension liability was determined using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods
included in the measurement:

Inflation rate 3.50%

Payroll growth 5.00%, including inflation

Investment rate of return 8.00%

Productivity pay increase 0.75%

Projected salary increases Regular: 4.60% to 9.75%, depending on service

Police/Fire: 5.25% to 14.5%, depending on service
Rates include inflation and productivity increases
Consumer Price Index 3.50%

Other assumptions Same as those used in the June 30, 2016 funding
actuarial valuation

Actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2016 valuation were based on the results of the experience
review completed in 2013.

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 8.00% as of June 30, 2016 and June 30,
2015. The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that employee and
employer contributions will be made at the rate specified in statute. Based on that assumption, the pension
plan’s fiduciary net position at June 30, 2016, was projected to be available to make all projected future
benefit payments of current active and inactive employees. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of
return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine
the total pension liability as of June 30, 2016 and June 30, 2015.
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Pension expense and deferred outflows/inflows of resources related to pensions

For the year ended June 30, 2017, the City recognized pension expense for PERS of $174,635. At June
30, 2017, the City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to
pensions from the following sources:

Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources
Differences between expected and actual experience $ - $ 1,830,465
Net difference between projected and actual earnings
on pension plan mvestments 2,541,188 -
Subtotal 2,541,188 1,830,465
Changes in proportion and differences between
contributions and proportional share of contributions 732,120 433,773
Contributions subsequent to the measurement date 3,429,357 -
Total $ 6,702,665 $ 2264238
Governmental activities $ 5,332,506 $ 1,801,382
Business-type activities 1,370,159 462,856
$ 6,702,665 $ 2264238
Average expected remaining service lives 6.48 years

The $3,429,357 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to PERS pensions resulting from City
contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net
pension liability in the subsequent fiscal year. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources
and deferred inflows of resources, excluding the changes in proportion and differences between actual
contributions and proportionate share of contributions, will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Deferred
Outflows
Year Ending (Inflows) of

June 30 Resources
2018 § 1295714
2019 1,295,714
| 2020 (5,542,076)
| 2021 (2,680,610)
| 2022 1,032,016
| 2023 227,589

| Thereafter -

$ (4,371,653
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NOTE 11. Landfill Fund Closure and Postclosure Care Costs

State and federal laws and regulations require the City to place a final cover and perform certain
maintenance and monitoring functions at the landfill site for 30 years after closure. Each year the City
reassesses the life of the landfill, in the current year an analysis was obtained based on the August 2016
airspace volumetric topographical survey. This assessment resulted in an expected landfill closure in the
year 2105, with the available soil being depleted by the year 2091. Based on this survey, an estimate of
1.03% of the landfill has been used. The City purchased insurance to cover the costs of closure and post-
closure of the landfill. The City was obligated under the insurance policy to pay 15 annual installments of
$91,139; the last payment was paid in 2014. The City of Elko has no further payments to cover closure
and post-closure costs as long as the City does not experience exponential growth or expansion in the
landfill. At June 30, 2017, financial assurance relative to costs of closure and post-closure of the landfill
was fulfilled through insurance coverage (NAC 444.6855).

NOTE 12. Risk Management

The City, like any governmental entity, is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage
to, and destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries of employees; and natural disasters.

The City has joined together with similar public agencies (cities, counties and special districts) throughout
the State of Nevada to create a pool under the Nevada Interlocal Cooperation Act. The Nevada Public
Agency Insurance Pool (Pool) is a public entity risk pool currently operating as a common risk
management and insurance program for its members.

The City pays an annual premium and specific deductibles, as necessary, to the Pool for its general
insurance coverage. The Pool is considered a self-sustaining risk pool that will provide coverage for its
members for up to $10,000,000 per event and a $10,000,000 general aggregate per member. Property,
crime and equipment breakdown is provided to its members up to $300,000,000 per loss with various
sublimits established for earthquake, flood, equipment breakdown and money and securities.

The City carries an airport liability policy and a workers compensation policy through a third party
carrier.

The City continues to carry commercial insurance for other risks of loss, including specific risks of loss
not covered by the Pool, including bonding and employee health and accident insurance. Settled claims
resulting from these risks have not exceeded commercial coverage for the past three years.

The City has chosen to establish a risk financing fund for risks associated with the employee’s health
insurance fund. The risk financing fund is accounted for as an internal service fund where assets are set
aside for claim settlements. A premium is charged to each function which accounts for part-time and/or
full time employees.
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CITY OF ELKO, NEVADA
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30,2017

NOTE 12. Risk Management, Continued

Liabilities of the funds are reported when it is probable that a loss has occurred and the amount can be
reasonably estimated. Liabilities include an amount for claims that have been incurred but not reported
(IBNR). Claim liabilities are calculated considering the effects of inflation, recent claim settlement trends
including frequency and amount of pay-outs and other economic and social factors. Changes in the
balances of claims liabilities during the past two fiscal years are as follows:

Unpaid Claims Incurred Claims Unpaid Claims
Fiscal Beginning of (Including Claim End of
Year End Fiscal Year IBNRs) Payments Fiscal Year

June 30,2017 § 152,106 $ 1,555,778 $§ (1,598213) § 109,671
June 30, 2016 172,086 1,965,739 (1,985,719) 152,106
June 30, 2015 225,229 1,860,301 (1,913,444) 172,086

NOTE 13. Stabilization Arrangement

On May 14, 2002 the City Council adopted a Revenue Stabilization Fund Policy under NRS 354.6115. A
fund was established to stabilize the operations of the City and mitigate the effects of natural disasters.
The monies in the fund must be used only if the total actual revenues of the City fall short of the total
anticipated revenue in the General Fund for the fiscal year in which the City uses the money, or to pay
expenses incurred by the City to mitigate the effects of a natural disaster. Under GASB 54, Fund Balance
Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions, the Revenue Stabilization Fund no longer meets the
definition of a Special Revenue Fund and it has been combined with the General Fund.

NOTE 14. Ad Valorem Capital Projects Fund

Pursuant to NRS 354.598155, the City is required to indicate in detail the projects that have been funded
with the money from the Ad Valorem Capital Projects Fund, as well as, disclose any planned
accumulations of the money. For June 30, 2017, $486,953was expended for the NDOT Flagview
sidewalk project and $51,508 for the Cedar Street reconstruction project.
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CITY OF ELKO, NEVADA
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2017

NOTE 15. Commitments and Contingencies

On January 9, 2002 the City of Carlin, the City of Elko and Elko County entered into a cooperative
agreement to provide financial resources for the water-line extension for the University of Nevada-Reno
Fire Academy located on the outskirts of the City of Carlin. The project was deemed beneficial to the
economy of the three governmental entities. The water line was completed in fiscal year 2013 and is the
property of the City of Carlin. The project was funded by a federal grant of up to $1 million obtained by
the City of Carlin. This grant required matching funds of 25%. Therefore, a loan of $350,000 was
obtained by the City of Carlin from the U.S. Department of Agriculture, Rural Development Agency. The
cooperative agreement provides that the City of Elko and Elko County will each reimburse the City of
Carlin one-third of the annual loan payment. The City of Elko and Elko County have each agreed to pay
the City of Carlin the maximum sum of $6,916 per year until the loan is paid in full or for a maximum of
40 years. A surcharge fee is charged by the City of Carlin for every water user who connects to the new
water line within a period of 40 years. The proceeds collected from this fee will be used to equally
reimburse the City of Elko and Elko County for any payments made by them. The surcharge fee collected
by the City of Carlin for this fiscal year was insufficient to pay the City’s portion of the loan; therefore,
the City paid $6,800 to the City of Carlin.

The City is involved in various matters of litigation. Although the outcome of the litigation is not
presently determinable, it is the opinion of City officials that none of the cases will have a materially
adverse effect on the City's financial condition.

The City is involved with several significant construction contracts that will continue from fiscal year
2017 through subsequent fiscal years. Details of some of the significant projects are as follows.

On May 9, 2017, the City approved a construction contract for the Effluent Reuse and Sanitary Sewer to
the Elko Sports Complex Project in the amount of $984,765. As of June 30, 2017, the City had spent
$87,605. This project will be paid for with funds available in the Sewer Department.

On February 28, 2017, the City approved a construction contract for the WRF Potable Water Air Gap

System in the amount of $414,296. As of June 30, 2017, $13,375 has been spent on this project. This
project will be paid for with the funds available in the Sewer Department.
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CITY OF ELKO, NEVADA
Schedule of the Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability
June 30, 2017

PUBLIC EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT SYSTEM OF NEVADA

Proportion of the net pension liability (asset)

Proportionate share of the net pension liability (asset)
Covered payroll

Proportionate share of the net pension liability (asset)
as a percentage of its covered-employee payroll

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the
total pension liability

Reporting Fiscal Year
(Measurement Date)
2017 2016 2015
(2016) (2015) (2014)
0.203130% 0.207090% 0.204490%
$ 27335646 § 23,731868 § 21,311,585
$ 10447569 $ 10099417 $ 11,866,230
261.65% 234.98% 179.60%
72.2% 75.1% 76.3%

Note: The City implemented GASB 68 in fiscal year 2015. Information prior to fiscal year 2015 is not available.
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CITY OF ELKO, NEVADA
Schedule of Contributions
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017

PUBLIC EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT SYSTEM OF NEVADA

Reporting Fiscal Year
(Measurement Date)

2017 2016 2015

(2016) (2015) (2014)
Statutorily required contribution $ 3444508 $§ 3,196599 § 3,097,288
Contributions in relation to the statutorily required
contribution $ (3444508) $§ (3,196599) $ (3,097,288)
Contribution deficiency (excess) $ -3 - 3 -
Covered payroll $ 10447569 §$§ 10,099417 $ 11,866,230
Contributions as a percentage of covered-employee
payroll 32.97% 31.65% 26.10%

Note: The City implemented GASB 68 in fiscal year 2015. Information prior to fiscal year 2015 is not available.
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CITY OF ELKO, NEVADA

Schedule of Funding Progress — Other Post Employment Benefit Plans
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017

PEBP
PEBP
PEBP
City's Plan
PEBP
City's Plan
PEBP
City's Plan

Actuarial
Accrued
Liability
Actuarial (AAL) - UAAL asa
Value of Entry Age Percentage
Actuarial Plan Normal Unfunded Funded Covered of Covered
Valuation Assets Cost AAL (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll
Date (a) () (b-a) (a/b) (c) ([b- a}/c)
7/1/2009 - $10927,597 $ 10,927,597 0% $ 10,100,000 108.19%
7/1/2011 - 5,562,427 5,562,427 0% 9,900,000 56.19%
7/1/2012 - 3,243,801 3,243,801 0% 9,900,000 32.77%
7/1/2012 - 526,269 526,269 0% 9,900,000 5.32%
7/1/2014 - 2,566,101 2,566,101 0% 10,862,000 23.62%
7/1/2014 - 689,254 689,254 0% 10,862,000 6.35%
7/1/2016 - 2,807,865 2,807,865 0% 11,220,000 25.03%
7/1/2016 - 939,953 939,953 0% 11,220,000 8.38%

Note: GASB 45 was prospectively implemented in fiscal year 2009; therefore, prior year information is
not available.

Trend Data:

Significant changes in the AAL between July 1, 2012 and July 1, 2014 actuarial valuations include:

e PEBP - In 2012, the City was notified of a significant Vdrop in subsidies to be paid to PEBP.
Therefore, the City had an actuarial valuation performed for July 1, 2011, which shows the
City’s AAL decreased to $5,562,427, partly as a result of this reduced subsidy amount.

e City’s Plan — As of July 1, 2014, the City’s AAL has decreased to $3,255,355, down from
$3,770,070 in 2012. This is mainly due to the City’s decision to withdraw from PEPB for
active employees and become partially self-insured. As such, the PEBP program is closed to
all active employees of the City.
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CITY OF ELKO, NEVADA
Major Governmental Funds
Schedules of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances
Budget and Actual
June 30, 2017

The General Fund is the City’s primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources of the
general government, except for those required to be accounted for in another fund.

% Budget and actual comparisons are presented for all funds of the City as required by Nevada

| Revised Statutes. Such budget comparisons are required to be presented using the budget as
adopted, and approved by the State of Nevada Department of Taxation. However, guidance
provided in governmental accounting standards specify that one of these internally reported funds
of the City, does not meet the definition of a special revenue fund, and, therefore, does not qualify
to be separately presented for external reporting purposes:

The Revenue Stabilization Fund for the City is combined with the General Fund for external
financial reporting. It accounts for the collection and disbursement of funds solely for the
purpose of stabilizing revenues in those years that anticipated revenues do not meet original
projections. The revenues will be derived from excess fund balances of the General Fund as
determined by the Sustained Service and Revenue Policy.

The Recreation Fund is special revenue fund used to account for room tax monies received for the
purposes of providing recreation improvements.
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CITY OF ELKO, NEVADA
General Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget (Budgetary Basis) and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017

64

Original Final Variance with
Budget Budget Actual Final Budget
REVENUES
Taxes:
Ad valorem $ 2998675 $ 2998675 $ 2990916 $ (7,759)
Total taxes 2,998,675 2,998,675 2,990,916 (7,759)
Licenses, permits, and fees:
Business licenses 682,000 682,000 668,308 (13,692)
Other licenses 4,010 4,010 5,254 1,244
Franchise fees 850,000 850,000 806,375 (43,625)
Permits 200,000 200,000 146,850 (53,150)
Total licenses, permits, and fees 1,736,010 1,736,010 1,626,787 (109,223)
Intergovernmental:
Grants 85,000 125,000 103,250 (21,750)
Fuel taxes 505,099 505,099 503,716 (1,383)
Consolidated revenues 11,567,071 11,567,071 12,607,978 1,040,907
County shared revenues 140,000 140,000 116,282 (23,718)
Other intergovernmental 7,500 7,500 20,984 13,484
Total intergovernmental 12,304,670 12,344,670 13,352,210 1,007,540
Charges for services:
Community development 90,000 90,000 117,968 27,968
Public work fees 383,000 383,000 391,648 8,648
Public safety fees 73,600 73,600 79,186 5,586
Culture and recreation fees 151,500 151,500 147,593 (3,907)
Health fees 96,325 96,325 128,837 32,512
Total charges for services 794,425 794,425 865,232 70,807
Fines and forfeitures:
Forensic service fees 5,000 5,000 2,570 (2430)
Municipal court fees 150,000 150,000 110,044 (39,956)
Bail bond fees 2,000 2,000 1,750 (250)
Alcohol assessment fees - - 100 100
Total fines and forfeitures 157,000 157,000 114,464 (42,536)
Investment earnings:
Interest earnings 2,500 2,500 14,165 11,665
Total investment earnings 2,500 2,500 14,165 11,665
Other revenues:
Rent 850 850 850 -
Reimbursements 17,000 17,000 42,019 25,019
Private donations 10,000 10,000 83,249 73,249
Miscellaneous 78,742 78,742 77,371 (1371)
Total other revenues 106,592 106,592 203,489 96,897
Total revenues 18,099,872 18,139,872 19,167,263 1,027,391
(continued)



CITY OF ELKO, NEVADA
General Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget (Budgetary Basis) and Actual (Continued)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017

Original Final Variance with
EXPENDITURES Budget Budget Actual Final Budget
General government:
City manager:
Salaries and wages $ 369,750 $ 369,750 $ 359,018 $ 10,732
Employee benefits 164,800 164,800 152,987 11,813
Services, supplies and other 195,664 244,664 249,104 (4,440)
730,214 779,214 761,109 18,105
| Clerk:
‘ Salaries and wages 149,000 149,000 144921 4,079
% Employee benefits 66,300 70,300 71,800 (1,500)
| Services, supplies and other 34,310 34,310 23,744 10,566
250,110 253,610 240,465 13,145
| Personnel:
Salaries and wages 52,000 52,000 52,034 (34)
Employee benefits 23,900 23,900 23,460 440
Services, supplies and other 30,587 31,587 31,360 227
106,487 107,487 106,854 633
Information systems:
Salaries and wages 93,460 87,460 86,378 1,082
| Employee benefits 50,600 44,600 43,197 1,403
| Services, supplies and other 148,263 160,263 160,606 (343)
{ 292,323 292,323 290,181 2,142
| Finance:
Salaries and wages 114,200 96,200 95,418 782
Employee benefits 67,950 57,950 55,505 2,445
Services, supplies and other 33,750 55,750 53,810 1,940
215,900 209,900 204,733 5,167
Central services:
Employee benefits 317,800 307,800 301,494 6,306
Services, supplies and other 125,500 125,500 128,023 (2,523)
443,300 433,300 429,517 3,783
Planning and zoning:
Salaries and wages 128,250 121,250 120,444 806
Employee benefits 66,950 66,950 63,442 3,508
Services, supplies and other 45,650 20,650 9483 11,167
240,850 208,850 193,369 15,481
Economic development:
Services, supplies and other 28,300 29,800 29,751 49
28,300 29,800 29,751 49
Total general government 2,307,484 2,314,484 2255979 58,505
Judicial:
Municipal court:
Services, supplies and other 418,000 411,000 321,273 89,727
Total judicial 418,000 411,000 321,273 89,727
(continued)
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CITY OF ELKO, NEVADA
General Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget (Budgetary Basis) and Actual (Continued)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017

Original Final Variance with
Expenditures (continued) Budget Budget Actual Final Budget
Public safety:
Police:
Salaries and wages $ 3,853,075 $ 3,753,075 $ 3727835 $ 25,240
Employee benefits 2,255,310 2,185,310 2,173,454 11,856
Services, supplies and other 950,150 970,150 1,000,603 (30,453)
7,058,535 6,908,535 6,901,892 6,643
Fire- Main station / ARFF:
Salaries and wages 1,822,550 1,832,550 1,808,552 23,998
Employee benefits 1,112,010 1,112,010 952,682 159,328
Services, supplies and other 443,075 443,075 455473 (12,398)
3,377,635 3,387,635 3,216,707 170,928
Fire - Southside station:
Services, supplies and other 8,250 8,250 5,279 2971
8,250 8,250 5,279 2971
Fire - Downtown station:
Salaries and wages 19,000 19,000 6,960 12,040
Services, supplies and other 25,100 25,100 19,379 5,721
44,100 44,100 26,339 17,761
Total public safety 10,488,520 10,348,520 10,150,217 198,303
Public works:
Public works:
Salaries and wages 669,875 689,875 678,001 11,874
Employee benefits 351,500 341,500 338,953 2,547
Services, supplies and other 1,246,200 1,226,200 1,206,380 19,820
Capital outlay - 60,000 38,108 21,892
2,267,575 2,317,575 2,261.442 56,133
Fleet maintenance:
Salaries and wages 310,450 310,450 305,633 4,817
Employee benefits 161,950 156,950 153,351 3,599
Services, supplies and other 63,850 63,850 39,352 24,498
536,250 531,250 498,336 32,914
Engineering;
Salaries and wages 85,950 80,950 79,289 1,661
Employee benefits 42250 42,250 39,228 3,022
Services, supplies and other 75,924 75,924 42828 33,096
Capital outlay - 20,000 - 20,000
204,124 219,124 161,345 57,779
Building inspection:
Salaries and wages 309,725 309,725 266,313 43412
Employee benefits 160,300 160,300 133,442 26,858
Services, supplies and other 98,560 98,560 85,363 13,197
568,585 568,585 485,118 83,467
(continued)
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CITY OF ELKO, NEVADA
General Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget (Budgetary Basis) and Actual (Continued)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017

Original Final Variance with
Expenditures (continued) Budget Budget Actual Final Budget
Facilities maintenance:
Salaries and wages 217,795 219,795 217,948 1,847
Employee benefits 121,000 121,000 116,182 4818
Services, supplies and other 348,900 348,900 294,188 54,712
687,695 689,695 628,318 61,377
Community development:
Salaries and wages 112,500 112,500 112,450 50
Employee benefits 51,050 52,050 51,752 298
Services, supplies and other 82,500 82,500 36,871 45,629
246,050 247,050 201,073 45977
Total public works 4,510,279 4,573,279 4,235,632 337,647
Health:
Animal control:
Salaries and wages $ 257995 $ 249995 $ 238177 $ 11818
Employee benefits 143,625 143,625 130,074 13,551
Services, supplies and other 112,800 142,800 135,404 7,396
514,420 536,420 503,655 32,765
Cemetery
Salaries and wages 119,850 119,850 108,740 11,110
Employee benefits 72,960 72,960 66,957 6,003
Services, supplies and other 21,750 21,750 13,981 7,769
214,560 214,560 189,678 24,882
Total health 728,980 750,980 693,333 57,647
Culture and recreation:
Parks:
Salaries and wages 419,850 449,850 448,047 1,803
Employee benefits 208,050 223,050 221,449 1,601
Services, supplies and other 140,960 140,960 119,128 21,832
768,860 813,860 788,624 25,236
Swimming pool:
Salaries and wages 251,350 251,350 237,674 13,676
Employee benefits 79,050 79,050 78,069 981
Services, supplies and other 164,150 164,150 120816 43334
494,550 494,550 436,559 57,991
Total culture and recreation 1,263410 1,308,410 1,225,183 83,227
Community support:
Services, supplies and other 49,362 99,362 99,362 -
Total community support 49,362 99,362 99,362 -
(continued)
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CITY OF ELKO, NEVADA
General Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget (Budgetary Basis) and Actual (Continued)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017

Original Final Variance with
Expenditures (continued) Budget Budget Actual Final Budget
Contingencies 296,491 296,491 - 296,491
Total expenditures 20,062,526 20,102,526 18,980,979 1,121,547
Excess (deficiency) of revenues

over (under) expenditures (1,962,654) (1,962,654) 186,284 2,148,938

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfer to other funds (410,111) (410,111) (276,085) 134,026
Transfer in from other funds 284,267 284,267 284,267 -
Total other financing sources (uses) (125,844) (125,844) 8,182 134,026
Net change in fund balance (2,088,498) (2,088,498) 194,466 2,282,964
Fund balance, beginning of year 1,686,436 1,605,566 4,305,759 2,700,193
Fund balance, end of year $ (402062) § (482932) $§ 4,500,225 $ 4983157
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CITY OF ELKO, NEVADA
General Fund

Reconciliation of the General Fund (Budgetary Basis) to the

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances — General Fund (GAAP Basis)

For the Year Ended June 30, 2017

General Revenue General
(Budgetary Basis)  Stabilization ~ (GAAP Basis)
Revenues
Taxes $ 2990916 $ - $ 2990916
Licenses and permits 1,626,787 - 1,626,787
Intergovernmental 13,352,210 - 13,352,210
Charges for services 865,232 - 865,232
Fines and forfeitures 114,464 - 114,464
Other revenues 203,489 .- 203,489
Interest earnings 14,165 10,155 24,320
Total revenues 19,167,263 10,155 19,177,418
Expenditures
General government 2,255,979 - 2,255,979
Judicial 321,273 - 321,273
Public safety 10,150,217 - 10,150,217
Public works 4,235,632 - 4,235,632
Health 693,333 - 693,333
Culture and recreation 1,225,183 - 1,225,183
Community support 99,362 - 99,362
Total expenditures 18,980,979 - 18,980,979
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures 186,284 10,155 196,439
Other financing sources (uses)
Transfers out (276,085) - (276,085)
Transfers in 284267 28,165 312,432
Total other financing sources (uses) 8,182 28,165 36,347
Net change in fund balance 194,466 38,320 232,786
Fund balance, beginning of year 4,305,759 1,746,900 6,052,659
Fund balance, end of year $ 4,500,225 $ 1,785,220 $ 6,285445
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Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

For the Year Ended June 30, 2017

CITY OF ELKO, NEVADA
Recreation Fund

Budget and Actual

Revenues

Taxes:

Room taxes
Other revenues
Interest earnings

Total revenues
Expenditures

Current:
Culture and recreation:

Parks and recreation:
Services and supplies
Capital outlay

Other recreation:

Elko Convention Center

Elko County Fairboard

Elko County Recreation Fairboard
Elko Snobowl Foundation

NV State Tourism

Western Folklife Center

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures

Other financing sources (uses)
Transfers out
Total other financing sources (uses)
Net change in fund balance

Fund balance, beginning of year

Fund balance, end of year

Original Final Variance with
Budget Budget Actual Final Budget
$ 3,500,000 $ 3,500,000 $ 3,607,717 $ 107,717
100,000 189,657 128,134 (61,523)
10,000 10,000 58,223 48,223
3,610,000 3,699,657 3,794,074 94,417
35,000 35,000 5,000 30,000
8,316,336 8,405,993 1,211,886 7,194,107
1,210414 1210414 1,263,422 (53,008)
125,000 125,000 129,327 (4,327)
156,250 156,250 161,659 (5,409)
31,250 31,250 32,332 (1,082)
93,750 93,750 97,988 (4,238)
62,500 62,500 64,664 (2,164)
10,030,500 10,120,157 2,966,278 7,153,879
(6,420,500) (6,420,500) 827,796 7,248,296
(1,306,453) (1,306,453) (1,306,453) -
(1,306,453) (1,306,453) (1,306,453) -
(7,726,953) (7,726,953) (478,657) 7,248,296
7,769,703 7,769,703 7,769,703 -
$ 42,750 $ 42,750 $ 7,291,046 $ 7248296
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CITY OF ELKO, NEVADA
Notes to Required Supplementary Information
June 30, 2016

NOTE 1. Budgetary Reconciliations

The accompanying Reconciliation of the General Fund (Budgetary Basis) to the General Fund (GAAP
Basis) presents balances combined for external reporting purposes.

Budget to actual comparisons are presented for all funds of the City as required by Nevada Revised
Statutes. Such budget comparisons are required to be presented using the budget as adopted, and
approved by the State of Nevada Department of Taxation. However, guidance provided in governmental
accounting standards specify that one of these internally reported funds of the City, does not meet the
definition of special revenue funds, and therefore does not qualify to be separately presented for external
reporting purposes.

The Revenue Stabilization Fund for the City is combined with the General Fund for external reporting
purposes
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CITY OF ELKO, NEVADA

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
INTERNALLY REPORTED (BUDGETARY BASIS) FUND REPORTED AS A PART OF THE
GENERAL FUND FOR EXTERNAL REPORTING PURPOSES

COMBINING STATEMENTS
AND
BUDGET AND ACTUAL REPORTS

The Revenue Stabilization Fund for the City is combined with the General Fund for external financial
reporting. It accounts for the collection and disbursement of funds solely for the purpose of stabilizing
revenues in those years that anticipated revenues do not meet original projections. The revenues will be
derived from excess fund balances of the General Fund as determined by the Sustained Service and
Revenue Policy.
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CITY OF ELKO, NEVADA

Combining Balance Sheet
Reconciliation of the General Fund (Budgetary Basis) to the General Fund (GAAP Basis)
June 30, 2017

Assets
Cash and investments
Receivables:

Property taxes

Interest receivable

Other
Due from other governments
Due from other funds
Inventories and prepaids
Restricted cash and investments

Total assets

Liabilities
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Due to other governments
Customer deposits
Unearned revenue
Total liabilities

Deferred inflows of resources
Unavailable revenue - property taxes
Total deferred inflows of resources

Fund balances
Nonspendable:
Inventories and prepaids
Committed:
Revenue stabilization
Assigned to:
Next year's budget appropriation
Unassigned
Total fund balances
Total liabilities, deferred mflows
of resources, and fund balances

General Fund Revenue
(Budgetary Basis) Stabilization

General Fund
(GAAP Basis)

$ 2895958 § 1,783515 $ 4679473
43,652 - 43,652

2,565 1,705 4270
201,519 - 201,519
2,519,503 - 2,519,503
12,099 - 12,099

$ 5675296 $ 1785220 $ 7460516
$ 548421 $ -8 548,421
440,424 - 440424
2,554 - 2,554

16,149 - 16,149
123,871 - 123,871
1,131,419 - 1,131,419
43,652 - 43,652
43,652 - 43,652
12,099 - 12,099

- 1,785,220 1,785,220

2,703,609 - 2,703,609
1,784,517 - 1,784,517
4,500,225 1,785,220 6,285,445

$ 5675296 $ 1785220 $ 7460516
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CITY OF ELKO, NEVADA

Revenue Stabilization Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual

For the Year Ended June 30, 2017

Revenues
Interest earnings
Total revenues
Other Financing Sources
Transfers in
Net change in fund balance

Fund balance, beginning of year

Fund balance, end of year

Final Variance with
Budget Actual Final Budget

$ 5,000 $ 10,155 $ 5,155
5,000 10,155 5,155

28,165 28,165 -

33,165 38,320 5,155
1,746,900 1,746,900 -

$ 1,780,065 $ 1785220 $ 5,155
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CITY OF ELKO, NEVADA

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENTS
AND
BUDGET AND ACTUAL REPORTS

Special revenue funds are used to account for specific revenues that are restricted or committed to
expenditure for particular purposes.

The Youth Recreation Fund is used to account for state grants and charges for participation in the
“latchkey” program with expenditures related to providing these after school services for youth.

The Municipal Court Administrative Assessment Fund is used to account for the revenues derived
| from additional ticketed fines and is to be used to improve the court premises and equipment.

| The Narcotics Tax Force Fund accounts for proceeds from state grants and monies collected from
other local governments to be used for narcotics enforcement.

The Elko Redevelopment Agency Fund accounts for revenues including ad valorem taxes to be used
for improvements and/or new construction of facilities and infrastructure for all activities associated
with the Elko Redevelopment Agency area.

Debt service fund is used to account for the accumulation of resources and payment of general obligation
bond principal and interest from governmental resources when the government is obligated in some manner for
the payment.

Capital projects funds are used to account for the acquisition and construction of major capital facilities other
than those financed by proprietary funds and trust funds.

The Ad Valorem Capital Projects Fund is used to account for projects funded by capital projects ad
valorem tax revenues.

The Public Improvement Development Fund is used to account for revenues collected from
developers for costs relating to public capital improvements and development programs,

The Capital Equipment Reserve Fund is used to account for the collection and disbursement of
funds solely for the purpose of purchasing capital equipment or replacement of existing capital
equipment.

The Capital Construction Fund is used to account for projects financed from property taxes, land
sales, and operating transfers.

The Facility Reserve Capital Projects Fund is used to account for the collection and disbursement of

funds solely for the purpose of improving existing facilities or constructing new facilities. The
revenues will be derived from facility user fees, investment earnings and approved transfers.
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CITY OF ELKO, NEVADA
Combining Balance Sheet
Nonmajor Governmental Funds

June 30, 2017

Assets

Cash and investments
Receivables:

Taxes, delinquent

Interest

Other
Due from other governments
Restricted cash

Total assets

Liabilities and
Fund Balances

Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Retainage payable
Accrued liabilities
Customer deposits
Unearned revenue

Total liabilities

Deferred Inflows of Resources:
Unavailable revenues - fuel taxes
Unavailable revenues - property

taxes
Total deferred inflows of
resources

Fund Balances:
Restricted for:
Debt service
Judicial
" Capital projects
Public Safety
Culture and recreation
Redevelopment Agency
Committed:
Debt service
Capital projects
Unassigned

Total fund balances (deficits)

Total liabilities and
fund balances (deficits)

Special Revenue

Municipal
Court Narcotics Elko
Youth Administration Task Redevelopment Debt
Recreation Assessment Force Agency Service
$ 65883 § 108,709 §$ 94978 $ 927479 $ 560,389
- - - 9,517 4973
59 - - 897 1,055
- 329 - - -
- - 4,090 2,989 181,338
- - - - 559,686
3 65942 $ 109,038  § 99,068 $ 940,882 $ 1,307,441
$ 10,017 $ - $ 1,625 $ 51 3 -
7,078 - - - -
- - 94,304 - -
17,095 - 95,929 51 -
- - - - 66,974
- - - 9,517 4,973
_ - - 9,517 71,947
- - - - 559,686
- 109,038 - - -
- - 3,139 - -
48,847 - - - -
- - - 931,314 -
- - - - 675,808
48,847 109,038 3,139 931,314 1,235,494
$ 65942 $ 109,038 % 99,068 $§ 940,882 $ 1,307,441
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Capital Projects

Total

Ad Valorem Public Capital Facility Nonmajor
Capital Capital Improvement Equipment Reserve Governmental
Construction Projects DPewvelopment Reserve Fund Funds
$ 775262 $§ 549012 § 15580 $ 1,154,011 $ 271383 $ 4,522,686
10,839 - - 5,836 - 31,165
739 539 15 1,147 260 4711
- - - - - 329
- 82,329 - 121,909 - 392,655
- - - - - 559,686
$§ 786840 $ 631,880 § 15595 § 1,282,903 $ 271643 § 5,511,232
|
| .
| $ -8 -8 - 0§ 471§ -8 54,404
| - - - - 50,001 50,001
- - - - - 7,078
277490 - - - - 277490
- - - - - 94,304
277,490 - - 42711 50,001 483,277
| - - - - - 66,974
|
| 10,839 - - 5,836 - 31,165
10,839 - - 5,836 - 98,139
- - - - - 559,686
- - - - - 109,038
- 631,880 15,595 - - 647,475
- - - - - 3,139
- - - - - 48,847
- - - - - 931,314
- - - - - 675,808
498,511 - - 1,234,356 221,642 1,954,509
498,511 631,880 15,595 1,234,356 221,642 4,929,816
$§ 786840 $ 6318380 $ 15595 § 1282903 $ 271,643 $ 5,511,232
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CITY OF ELKO, NEVADA

Nonmajor Governmental Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances

Revenues

Taxes

Intergovernmental revenue
Charges for services
Other revenues
Investment earnings

Total revenues

Expenditures
Current:
General government
Public safety
Public works
Culture and recreation
Debt service:
Principal
Interest
Capital outlay

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of
revenues over (under)

expenditures

Other financing
sources (uses)
Transfers in
Total other financing
sources and uses

Net change in
in fund balances

Fund balances (deficits),
beginning of year
Fund balances,
end of year

Special Revenue

Municipal
Court Narcotics Elko

Youth Administration Task Redevelopment Debt

Recreation Assessment Force Agency Service
$ - 8 - 3 - % 322484 § 449915
- 5,565 27497 - 743,356
159,841 - - - -
20,441 - 2,000 - -
301 - - 4,716 5257
180,583 5,565 29497 327,200 1,198,528
- - 25,670 - -
- - - 24,646 -
197,529 - - - -
- - - - 1,060,000
- - - - 626,915
197,529 - 25,670 24,646 1,686,915
(16,946) 5,565 3,827 302,554 (488,387)
65,793 - - - 609,763
65,793 - - - 609,763
48,847 5,565 3,827 302,554 121,376
- 103473 (688) 628,760 1,114,118
$ 48847 § 109,038 § 3139 § 931,314 $1235494
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Capital Projects

Total

Ad Valorem Public Capital Facility Nonmajor
Capital Capital Improvement Equipment Reserve Governmental
Construction Projects Development Reserve Fund Funds

$ 745456 $ 293814 § - % 293794 § - $ 2105463
- 311419 - 488,566 - 1,576,403

- - - - - 159,841

106,947 - - 16,208 - 145,596
4,166 2,849 91 6,587 2,294 26,261
856,569 608,082 91 805,155 2,294 4,013,564

- - - 5,310 - 5,310

- - - - - 25,670

- - - - - 24,646

- - - - - 197,529

- - - - - 1,060,000

- - - - - 626,915
1,363,700 538,460 - 517,836 91,784 2,511,780
1,363,700 538,460 - 523,146 91,784 4,451,850
(507,131) 69,622 91 282,009 (89,490) (438,286)
- - - 42,248 42248 760,052

- - - 42,248 42 248 760,052
(507,131) 69,622 91 324,257 (47,242) 321,766
1,005,642 562,258 15,504 910,099 268,884 4,608,050
$ 498511 § 631880 $ 15595 $1234356 § 221,642 $ 4929816

81



CITY OF ELKO, NEVADA

Youth Recreation Special Revenue Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual

For the Year Ended June 30, 2017

Revenues
Charges for services
Other revenues
Investment earnings
Total revenues
Expenditures
Culture and recreation:
Salaries and wages
Employee benefits
Service, supplies and other
Capital outlay
Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures

Other financing sources (uses)
Transfers in from other funds
Total other financing sources (uses)
Net change in fund balance
Fund balance, beginning of year

Fund balance, end of year

Final Variance with
Budget Actual Final Budget

$ 183,250 $ 159,841 $ (23,409)
16,000 20,441 4441
100 301 201

199,350 180,583 (18,767)
110,875 86,503 24372
48,360 29,578 18,782

76,050 81,448 (5,398)
235,285 197,529 37,756
(35,935) (16,946) 18,989
65,793 65,793 -
65,793 65,793 -
29,858 48,847 18,989
$ 29,858 $ 48,847 $ 18,989
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CITY OF ELKO, NEVADA

Municipal Court Administrative Assessments Special Revenue Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual

For the Year Ended June 30, 2017

Revenues
Intergovernmental revenue
Total revenues
Expenditures
Judicial:
Municipal court:
Capital outlay

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures

Other financing sources (uses)
Transfers to other funds
Total other financing sources (uses)
Net change in fund balance

Fund balance, beginning of year

Fund balance (deficit), end of year

Final Variance with
Budget Actual Final Budget

$ 8,000 $ 5,565 $ (2,435)
8,000 5,565 (2,435)

139,167 - 139,167
139,167 - 139,167
(131,167) 5,565 136,732
(131,167) 5,565 136,732
103,473 103,473 -

$ (27694) $ 109,038 $ 136,732
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CITY OF ELKO, NEVADA
Narcotics Task Force Special Revenue Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017

Fmal Variance with
Budget Actual Final Budget
Revenues
Intergovernmental revenue $ 34,000 $ 27497 $ (6,503)
Other revenues - 2,000 2,000
Total revenues 34,000 29497 (4,503)
Expenditures
Public safety:
Services, supplies and other 31,000 25,670 5,330
Capital outlay 3,000 - 3,000
Total expenditures 34,000 25,670 8,330
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
i over (under) expenditures - 3,827 3,827
Fund balance (deficit), beginning of year (688) (688) -
Fund balance (deficit), end of year $ (638) _$ 3,139 $ 3,827
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CITY OF ELKO, NEVADA
Elko Redevelopment Agency Special Revenue Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017

Final Variance with
Budget Actual Final Budget
Revenues
Taxes:
Ad valorem $ 264,429 $ 322484 $ 58,055
Interest earnings 1,500 4,716 3216
Total revenues 265,929 327,200 61,271
Expenditures
Public works:
Highways/streets:
Services, supplies and other 25,000 8,697 16,303
Capital outlay 862,377 15,949 846,428
Total expenditures 887,377 24,646 862,731
| Excess (deficiency) of revenues
| over (under) expenditures (621,448) 302,554 924,002
’ Fund balance, beginning of year 628,760 628,760 ;
Fund balance, end of year $ 7,312 $ 931314 $ 924002
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CITY OF ELKO, NEVADA
Debt Service Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017

Final Variance with
Budget Actual Final Budget
Revenues
Taxes:
Ad valorem $ 438,973 $ 449915 $ 10,942
Intergovernmental revenue 699,750 743,356 43,606
Interest earnings 2,500 5,257 2,757
Total revenues 1,141,223 1,198,528 57,305
Expenditures
Debt service:
Principal
General obligation street bonds - - -
General obligation recreation bonds 430,000 430,000 -
General obligation medium-term
public safety bonds 275,000 275,000 -
| General obligation recreation facility bonds 355,000 355,000 -
| Interest
| General obligation street bonds - - -
| General obligation recreation bonds 313,131 313,131 -
| General obligation medium-term
| public safety bonds 58,331 58,331 -
| General obligation recreation facility bonds 255,763 255,453 310
Total debt service 1,687,225 1686915 310
Total expenditures 1,687,225 1,686,915 310
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures (546,002) (488,387) 57,615
Other financing sources (uses)
Transfers in from other funds 609,763 609,763 -
| Total other financing sources (uses) 609,763 609,763 -
Net change in fund balance 63,761 121,375 57,614
Fund balance, beginning of year 1,114,118 1,114,118 -
Fund balance, end of year $ 1,177879 $ 1235494 $ 115,229
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Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

CITY OF ELKO, NEVADA
Capital Construction Capital Projects Fund

Budget and Actual

For the Year Ended June 30, 2017

Revenues
Taxes:

Ad valorem
Other revenues
Interest earnings

Total revenues

Expenditures
Capital outlay

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures

Fund balance, beginning of year

Fund balance, end of year
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Fnal Variance with
Budget Actual Final Budget

$ 756,985 § 745456 $ (11,529)
- 106,947 106,947

1,000 4,166 3,166
757,985 856,569 98,584
2,636,138 1,363,700 1,272,438
2,636,138 1,363,700 1272438
(1,878,153) (507,131) 1,371,022
1,005,642 1,005,642 -

$§ (872511) § 498511 $ 1,371,022




CITY OF ELKO, NEVADA

Ad Valorem Capital Projects Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual

For the Year Ended June 30, 2017

Revenues
Taxes:

Ad valorem
Intergovernmental revenue
Interest earnings

Total revenues

Expenditures
Public works:
Highways/streets:
Capital outlay
Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures

Fund balance, beginning of year

Fund balance, end of year

Final Variance with
Budget Actual Final Budget

$ 283,080 $§ 293814 $ 10,734
902,500 311,419 (591,081)
1,500 2,849 1,349
1,187,080 608,082 (578,998)
1,984,561 538,460 1,446,101
1,984,561 538,460 1,446,101
(797,481) 69,622 867,103
562,258 562,258 -

$ (235223) § 631,880 $ 867,103

88



CITY OF ELKO, NEVADA
Public Improvement Development Capital Projects Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017

Final Variance with
Budget Actual Final Budget
Revenues
Interest earnings $ 50 $ 91 $ 41
Total revenues 50 91 41
Expenditures
Public works:
Capital outlay 15,554 - 15,554
Total expenditures 15,554 - 15,554
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures (15,504) 91 15,595
Fund balance, beginning of year 15,504 15,504 -
Fund balance (deficit), end of year $ - $ 15,595 $ 15,595
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CITY OF ELKO, NEVADA

Capital Equipment Reserve Capital Projects Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual

For the Year Ended June 30, 2017

Revenues
Taxes:

Ad valorem
Intergovernmental revenue
Other revenues
Interest earnings

Total revenues

Expenditures
General government:

Services, supplies and other
Capital outlay

Public safety:
Capital outlay

Public works:
Capital outlay
Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures

Other Financing Sources
Transfers in

Net change in fund balance
Fund balance, beginning of year

Fund balance, end of year

Final Variance with
Budget Actual Final Budget

$ 292,650 $ 293,794 $ 1,144
967,900 488,566 (479,334)
96,000 16,208 (79,792)
2,500 6,587 4,087
1,359,050 805,155 (553,895)
56,000 5,310 50,690
250,000 56,392 193,608
306,000 61,702 244,298
1,267,050 270,047 997,003
1,267,050 270,047 997,003
202,000 191,397 10,603
1,831,050 523,146 1,307,904
(472,000) 282,009 754,009
58,498 42,248 16,250
(413,502) 324,257 737,759
910,099 910,099 -

$ 496,597 $ 1234356 $ 737,759
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CITY OF ELKO, NEVADA

Facility Reserve Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017

Revenues

Other revenues
Interest earnings

Total revenues
Expenditures
Capital outlay
Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures

Other Financing Sources
Transfers in

Net change in fund balance
Fund balance, beginning of year

Fund balance, end of year

Final Variance with
Budget Actual Final Budget
$ - $ - $ -

1,000 2,294 1,294

1,000 2,294 1,294
300,000 91,784 208,216
300,000 91,784 208,216
(299,000) (89,490) 209,510
42,248 42248 -
(256,752) (47,242) 209,510
268,884 268,884 -

$ 12,132 $ 221,642 $ 209,510
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CITY OF ELKO, NEVADA

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
ENTERPRISE FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENTS
AND
BUDGET AND ACTUAL REPORTS

Enterprise funds are used to account for operations which are financed and operated in a manner similar
to private business enterprises — where the intent of the City Council is that the costs of providing goods
or services to the general public on a continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily through user
charges; or where the City Council has decided that periodic determination of net income is appropriate
for accountability purposes. The Enterprise Funds consist of the following:

Major Enterprise Funds

The Water Utility Fund is used to account for the provision of water services to the residents of
the City. All activities necessary to provide services are accounted for in this fund, including, but
not limited to, administration, operations, maintenance, financing and related debt.

The Sewer Utility Fund is used to account for sewer service and improvements to sewer
facilities for the residents of the City. All activities necessary to provide services are accounted
for in this fund, including, but not limited to, administration, operations, maintenance, financing
and related debt.

The Airport Fund is used to account for the Elko Regional Airport and associated costs. All
activities necessary to provide services are accounted for in this fund, including, but not limited
to, administration, operations, maintenance, financing and related debt.

The Landfill Fund is used to account for the regional landfill and associated costs. All activities
necessary to provide services are accounted for in this fund, including, but not limited to,
administration, operations, maintenance, financing and related debt.

The Golf Fund is used to account for the Elko Municipal Golf Course and associated costs. All

activities necessary to provide services are accounted for in this fund, including, but not limited
to, administration, operations, maintenance, financing and related debt.
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CITY OF ELLKO, NEVADA
Water Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position
Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017

Final Variance with
Budget Actual Final Budget
Operating revenues
Charges for services $ 3,363,705 $ 3268235 $ (95,470)
Other revenues 145,000 104,052 (40,948)
Total operating revenues 3,508,705 3372287 (136,418)
Operating expenses
Administration
Salaries 139,850 129,508 10,342
Employee benefits 68,350 75,182 (6,832)
Service, supplies and other 151,359 132,169 19,190
359,559 336,859 22,700
Operations
Salaries 637,300 635,076 2,224
Employee benefits 371,000 471,700 (100,700)
Service, supplies and other 823,243 819,069 4,174
1,831,543 1,925,845 (94.302)
Plant and facilities
Salaries 75,000 64,744 10,256
Employee benefits 25,100 23,356 1,744
Service, supplies and other 845,400 657,104 188,296
945,500 745,204 200,296
Depreciation and amortization 533,334 542,672 (9,338)
Total operating expenses 3,669,936 3,550,580 119,356
Operating income (loss) (161,231) (178,293) (17,062)
Nonoperating revenues (expenses)
Interest income 30,000 47,033 17,033
Gain/(loss) on disposals of capital assets - ~ (22,405) (22,405)
Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) 30,000 24,628 (5,372)
Income (loss) before contributions
and transfers (131,231) (153,665) (22,434)
Connection fees 500,000 196,010 (303,990)
Transfers out (16,250) - 16,250
Change in net position 352,519 42,345 (310,174)
Net position, beginning of year 23,424,354 23424354 -
Net position, end of year $ 23,776,873 $ 23466699 $ (310,174)
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CITY OF ELKO, NEVADA
Sewer Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position

Budget and Actual

For the Year Ended June 30, 2017

Operating revenues

Charges for services
Other revenues

Total operating revenues
Operating expenses
Administration
Salaries

Employee benefits
Service, supplies and other

Operations
Salaries
Employee benefits
Service, supplies and other

Plant and facilities
Salaries
Employee benefits
Service, supplies and other

Laboratory
Salaries
Employee benefits
Service, supplies and other

Depreciation and amortization
Total operating expenses

Operating income (loss)

Nonoperating revenues (expenses)

Sewer improvement fees
Interest income
Gain/(loss) on disposals of capital assets

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses)

Income (loss) before contributions
and transfers

Connections fees
Change in net position
Net position, beginning of year

Net position, end of year

Final Variance with
Budget Actual Final Budget
$ 2935638 $ 2915762 $ (19876)
17,500 20,324 2,824
2,953,138 2,936,086 (17,052)
178,750 176,673 2,077
91,200 83,434 7,766
177,041 163,291 13,750
446,991 423,398 23,593
50,000 17818 32,182
19,400 5270 14,130
215,625 227483 (11,858)
285,025 250,571 34454
507,000 456,113 50,887
277,300 241,001 36,299
1,388,713 1,301,029 87,684
2,173,013 1,998,143 174,870
71,000 70,343 657
37400 37,059 341
73,875 57,712 16,163
182,275 165,114 17,161
1,557,126 1,327,101 230,025
4,644,430 4,164,327 480,103
(1,691,292) (1,228,241) 463,051
2,982,005 2,936,882 (45,123)
35,000 85,316 50,316

- (128,574) (128,574)
3,017,005 2,893,624 (123,381)
1,325,713 1,665,383 339,670
600,000 220914 (379,086)
1,925,713 1,886,297 (39416)
39,098,835 39,098,835 -
$ 41,024,548 $ 40,985,132 $ (39416)
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CITY OF ELKO, NEVADA
Airport Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position
Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017

Final Variance with
Budget Actual Final Budget
Operating revenues
Intergovernmental $ 21,220 $ 19,108 $ (2,112)
Charges for services 268,000 242,000 (26,000)
Other revenues 665,690 1,198,935 533,245
Total operating revenues 954,910 1,460,043 505,133
Operating expenses
Airport administration
Salaries 73,900 70,565 3,335
Employee benefits 36,550 17,960 18,590
110450 88,525 21,925
Public Safety
Salaries 50,000 36,139 13,861
Employee benefits 36,000 14,701 21,299
86,000 50,840 35,160
Airport operations
Salaries 241,900 231,951 9,949
Employee benefits 129,100 68,347 60,753
Service, supplies and other 377,400 322,185 55,215
748,400 622,483 125917
Airport terminal operations
Service, supplies and other 156,700 91,668 65,032
Depreciation and amortization
City funded 248,893 359258 (110,365)
Federal unfunded 2,125,603 2009415 116,188
2,374,496 2,368,673 5,823
Total operating expenses 3,476,046 3222189 253,857
Operating income (loss) (2,521,136) (1,762,146) 758,990
Nonoperating revenues (expenses)
Interest income 1,000 4458 3,458
Gain/(loss) on disposals of capital assets - (23,783) (23,783)
Interest expense (130,837) (127,533) 3,304
Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) (129,837) (146,858) (17,021)
Income (loss) before contributions
and transfers (2,650973) (1,909,004) 741,969
Grant revenue 726,063 1,199,332 473,269
Transfers in. 618,287 484,261 (134,026)
Change in net position (1,306,623) (225411) 1,081,212
Net position, beginning of year 33,177,607 33,177,607 -
Net position, end of year $ 31,870984 $ 32,952,196 $ 1,081,212
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CITY OF ELKO, NEVADA

Landfill Fund

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position
Budget and Actual

For the Year Ended June 30, 2017

Operating revenues

Charges for services
Other revenues

Total operating revenues

Operating expenses
Administration
Salaries
Employee benefits
Service, supplies and other

Operations
Salaries
Employee benefits
Service, supplies and other

Depreciation and amortization
Total operating expenses

Operating income (loss)

Nonoperating revenues (expenses)

Interest income

Gain/(loss) on disposals of capital assets

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses)

Change in net position
Net position, beginning of year

Net position, end of year

Final Variance with
Budget Actual Final Budget
$ 1,742950 $ 1,750,667 $ 7,717
57359 52,877 (4,482)
1,800,309 1,803,544 3,235
68,050 59,478 8,572
34,300 31,257 3,043
37,726 42,138 (4412)
140,076 132,873 7,203
468,075 462,643 5432
252,000 239,654 12,346
782,000 637,531 144,469
1,502,075 1,339,828 162,247
170,864 201,530 (30,666)
1,813,015 1,674,231 138,784
(12,706) 129,313 142,019
5,000 7,841 2,841
- 1,615 1,615
5,000 9,456 4,456
(7,706) 138,769 146,475
2,991,927 2,991,927 -
$ 2984221 $ 3,130,696 $ 146,475
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CITY OF ELKO, NEVADA
Golf Fund

Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position

Final Variance with
Budget Actual Final Budget
Operating revenues
Charges for services $ 782,620 $ 641,040 $ (141,580)
Other revenues 11,000 6,045 (4,955)
Total operating revenues 793,620 647,085 (146,535)
Operating expenses
Administration
Salaries 22,700 21,905 795
Employee benefits 10,450 5,457 4,993
33,150 27,362 5,788
Operations
Salaries 277,950 230,674 47,276
Employee benefits 112,150 47221 64,929
Service, supplies and other . 363,550 235221 128,329
753,650 513,116 240,534
Depreciation and amortization 66,547 64,109 2,438
Total operating expenses 853,347 604,587 248,760
Operating income (loss) (59,727) 42,498 102,225
Nonoperating revenues (expenses)
Interest income 2,000 3219 1,219
Gain/(loss) on disposals of capital assets - 3,938 3,938
Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) 2,000 7,157 5,157
Income (loss) before contributions
and transfers (57,727) 49,655 107,382
Capital contributions - 2,663,015 2,663,015
Transfers in from other funds 25,793 25,793 -
Change in net position (31,934) 2,738,463 2,770,397
Net position, beginning of year 1,137,827 1,137,827 -
Net position, end of year $ 1,105,893 $ 3,876,290 $ 2770397
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CITY OF ELKO, NEVADA

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
INTERNAL SERVICE FUND

BUDGET AND ACTUAL REPORT

Internal Service Funds are used to account for the financing of goods or services provided by one
department or agency to other departments or agencies of the government and to other government units,
on a cost reimbursement basis.

The Health Insurance Fund is a partially self-insured health insurance program for City

employees, dependents and retirees. Revenues include City contributions, employee/retiree
contributions, and individual stop loss recovery.
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CITY OF ELKO, NEVADA
Health Insurance Internal Service Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position
Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017

Final Variance with
Budget Actual Final Budget
Operating revenues
Charges for services $ 2471040 $ 2,151,256 $ (319,784)
Total operating revenues 2,471,040 2,151,256 (319,784)
Operating expenses
Employee benefits 2,400,000 1,555,778 844222
Total operating expenses 2,400,000 1,555,778 844,222
Operating income (loss) 71,040 595,478 524438
Nonoﬁerating revenues (expenses)
Interest income - 4,045 4045
Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) - 4,045 4,045
Change in net position 71,040 599,523 528,483
Net position, beginning of year 358,206 358,206 -
Net position, end of year $ 429246 $ 957,729 $ 528,483
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CITY OF ELKO, NEVADA
Schedule of Revenue and Related
Capital Expenditures — Cash Basis
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017

Capital Construction Fund:
Beginning Balance July 1, 2016
Additions:
Revenue from Ad Valorem Taxes
Total Additions
Deletions:
Fairgrounds Sidewalk Construction
Cedar Street Reconstruction

Total Deletions

Funds remaining to be spent on Street Projects
based on Monies Collected from Ad Valorem Taxes

Water Fund:
Beginning Balance July 1, 2016
Additions:
Revenue from Connection Fees
Deletions:
Capital Expenses for Projects relating to Growth:
Exit 298 Water Line
N 5th Street R-O-W
Total Deletions

Funds remaining to be spent on Growth based
on Monies Collected from Connection Fees

Sewer Fund:
Beginning Balance July 1, 2016
Additions:
Revenue from Sewer Improvement Fees
Deletions:
Capital Expenses for Projects or Replacement
Equipment Replacement
NDOT Manholes & Valve Boxes
So. Reservoir liner Repair
Odor Control
Ruby Vista Effluent Line Replacement
Hot Springs Road Improvements
Golf Reuse Pipe Replacement
Slip Line Replacement
Potable Water Gap
Primary Digester Cleaning and Dome Repair
Reuse to New Sports Complex
Total Deletions

Funds remaining to be spent on Capital Projects
Monies Collected from Improvement Fees

Sewer Fund:
Beginning Balance July 1, 2016
Additions:
Revenue from Connection Fees
Deletions:
Capital Expenses for Projects Relating to Growth

Total Deletions

Funds remaining to be spent on Growth based
on Monies Collected from Connection Fees
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(571,190)

747,594

747,594

(20,506)
(1,343,559)

(1,343,559)

(1,167,155)

332,269

196,010

(317,297)
(9,436)

(326,733)

201,546

13,622,186

2,950,030

(99,983)
(51,125)
(34,486)
(1,157,547)
(162,965)
(385,143)
(6,092)
(158,446)
(12,790)
(110,359)
(39,414)

(2,218,350)

14,353,866

3,793,840

220,914

4,014,754




CITY OF ELKO, NEVADA - General Fund
Summary Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures
And Changes in Fund Balance — Budgetary Basis
For the Years Ended June 30

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
(Actual) (Actual) (Actual) (Actual) (Actual)
REVENUES
Taxes $ 2,053,557 $ 2,138,384 $ 2,239,938 $ 2,253,941 $ 2,373,842
Licenses and Permits 1,517,248 1,555,808 1,491,501 1,765,089 1,913,770
Intergovernmental Revenue 10,822,650 10,483,689 9,868,372 11,543,028 13,399,230
Charges for Services 619,864 577,488 575,032 769,662 876,366
Fines and Forfeits 225,240 250,115 199,207 209,940 185,480
Miscellaneous 287,861 171,484 86,388 105,473 101,462
Total Revenues 15,526,420 15,176,968 14,460,438 16,647,133 18,850,150
EXPENDITURES
General Government 1,793,403 2,108,515 2,111,813 2,099,734 1,895,752
Judicial 301,401 386,154 387,548 364,974 335,305
Public Safety 7,905,349 8,116,542 8,339,502 8,294,482 8,423,606
Public Works 4,273,874 3,362,015 3,307,233 3,059,259 3,008,660
Health 507,835 525,658 525,384 526,608 518,702
Culture and Recreation 952,538 1,028,101 1,027,251 977,659 900,388
Community Support 36,000 36,000 32,000 21,000 29,500
Contingency
Intergovernmental - - - - -
Total Expenditures 15,770,400 15,562,985 15,730,731 15,343,716 15,111,913
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES (243,980) (386,017) (1,270,293) 1,303,417 3,738,237
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers from other funds 234,298 246,256 406,136 1,021,168 223,508
Transfers to other funds (1,372,655) (397,690) (398,715) (1,061,631) (2,081,554)
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (1,138,357) (151,434) 7421 (40,463) (1,858,046)
Net Change in Fund Balance (1,382,337) (537,451) (1,262,872) 1,262,954 1,880,191
Fund Balance - July 1 4,931,270 3,548,933 3,011,482 1,748,609 3,011,563
Fund Balance - June 30 $ 3,548,933 $ 3,011,482 $ 1,748,609 $ 3,011,563 $ 4,891,754
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2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
(Actual) (Actual) (Actual) (Actual) (Actual) (Budget)

$ 2,473,737 $ 2,509,838 $ 2,666,813 $ 2,926,547 $ 2,990,916 $ 3,106,742

2,048,308 2,022,603 2,087,384 1,805,306 1,626,787 1,596,095
13,791,267 12,334,542 12,633,948 13,461,108 13,352,210 12,771,879
870,660 883,422 943,598 818,959 865,232 789,300
199,833 171,437 169,913 155,581 114,464 154,500
161,538 110,615 122,543 245,931 217,654 119,500
19,545,343 18,032,457 18,624,199 19,413,432 19,167,263 18,538,016
2,131,446 2,147,213 2,110,308 2,087,961 2,255,979 2,609,716
339,637 306,058 271,025 321,366 321,273 468,000
9,226,056 9,365,562 9,388,271 10,005,524 10,150,217 10,645,035
4,031,364 3,914,165 3,854,165 3,983,563 4,235,632 4,574,838
615,350 674,668 664,070 668,458 693,333 729,260
1,026,925 1,074,605 1,131,856 1,157,473 1,225,183 1,361,285
45,000 57,000 53,827 98,964 99,362 105,011
- 307,397
17,415,778 17,539,271 17,473,522 18,323,309 18,980,979 20,800,542
2,129,565 493,186 1,150,677 1,090,123 186,284 (2,262,526)
239,464 243,582 375,431 304,109 284,267 306,289
(1,272,049) (3,481,257) (1,187,606) (671,390) (276,085) (747,372)
(1,032,585) (3,237,675) (812,175) (367,281) 8,182 (441,083)
1,096,980 (2,744,489) 338,502 722,842 194,466 (2,703,609)
4,891,754 5,988,734 3,244,245 3,582,747 4,305,589 4,430,012

§ 5,988,734 $ 3,244,245 $ 3,582,747 $ 4,305,589 $ 4,500,055 $ 1,726,403
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CITY OF ELKO, NEVADA

Assessed Valuation — Secured and Unsecured Property

For the Years Ended June 30

Percent
Change

Fiscal Assessed
Year Valuation
1995 202,479,335
1996 218,662,312
1997 231,485,367
1998 247,881,803
1999 263,888,126
2000 272,263,390
2001 291,389,822
2002 295,123,546
2003 288,766,550
2004 297,619,553
2005 296,187,696
2006 296,750,239
2007 312,805,735
2008 337,353,408
2009 363,571,663
2010 389,109,714
2011 390,921,792
2012 386,309,054
2013 404,635,915
2014 427,797,045
2015 465,656,772
2016 482,389,245
2017 495,031,866
2018 513,337,800
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2.74%
7.99%
5.86%
7.08%
6.46%
3.17%
7.02%
1.28%
-2.15%
3.07%
-0.48%
0.19%
5.41%
7.85%
1.77%
7.02%
0.47%
-1.18%
4.74%
5.72%
8.85%
3.59%
2.62%
3.70%



CITY OF ELKO, NEVADA

Countywide Secured Tax Levies, Collection and Delinquencies
For the Years Ended June 30

Fiscal Net
Year Levy Roll
1995 $ 5,046,187
1996 5,653,208
1997 5,848,794
1998 6,184,268
1999 6,557,417
2000 6,916,989
2001 7,223,108
2002 7,515,678
2003 7,913,598
2004 8,168,939
2005 8,450,691
2006 8,806,052
2007 9,414,388
2008 9,416,173
2009 10,572,851
2010 10,983,383
2011 11,155,991
2012 11,210,243
2013 11,899,450
2014 12,816,924
2015 13,488,972
2016 13,944,505
2017 14,663,343

Total Taxes
Collected

Collected
as a % of
Taxes Levied

$
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5,000,696
5,430,161
5,777,337
6,091,667
6,422,643
6,769,209
7,145,453
7,352,732
7,773,886
8,089,734
8,391,493
8,764,671
9,357,982
9,285,228
10,270,543
10,580,559
10,850,072
11,077,462
11,747,688
12,681,650
13,400,822
13,858,661
14,583,800

99.1%
96.1%
98.8%
98.5%
97.9%
97.9%
98.9%
97.8%
98.2%
99.0%
99.3%
99.5%
99.4%
98.6%
97.1%
96.3%
97.3%
98.8%
98.7%
98.9%
99.3%
99.4%
99.5%



CITY OF ELKO, NEVADA
Ten Largest Property Owners
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017

[u—y

S O 03N NS WN —

Total Assessed Valuation of Elko City

Notes

$ 493,262,382

* The valuations for Mining are values provided by the Department of Taxation,

Centrally Assessed Division

* These assessed values do not account for any abatement applied

* These are Assessed Values as of November 22, 2017
* These values are from the Secured AND Unsecured Roll (Combined)
* Prepared by the Elko County Assessor's Office

108

Taxpayer Type of Business Total Value % of Value
. Elko Acquisitions LLC Gaming $ 10,763,822 2.2%
. PHC-Elko Inc. Community Healthcare 9,226,176 1.9%
. MP Elko LLC Real Estate/Commercial 7,775,464 1.6%
. KLO Global LLC Real Estate/Residential 7,400,093 1.5%
. Ruby Vista Apartments LLC Real Estate/Residential 5,300,932 1.1%
. NA Degerstrom Mining 5,169,705 1.0%
. Sonora LLC Real Estate/Commercial 4,853,538 1.0%
. Wal-Mart Real Estate Business Grocery Retail 4,664,159 0.9%
. Reality Income Properties 6 LLC Real Estate/Commercial 4,098,073 0.8%
. Riverside Villas Nevada LLC Real Estate/Residential 3,733,395 0.8%

$ 62,985,357



CITY OF ELKO, NEVADA
Statewide Average and Overlapping Tax Rates
For the Years Ended June 30

Average Statewide
Rate

City of Elko

Elko County

Elko County School District
Special Districts

State of Nevada

Total

2018

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 Budget

3.2162 3.1320 3.1171 3.1304 3.1212 3.1360 3.1360 3.1500 3.1615
0.9200 0.9200 0.9200 0.9200 0.9200 0.9200 0.9200 0.9200 0.9200
0.8386 0.8386 0.8386 0.8386 0.8386 0.8386 0.8386 0.8386 0.8386
1.5000 1.5000 1.5000 1.5000 1.5000 1.5000 1.5000 1.5000 1.5000
0.0681 0.0681 0.0537 0.0537 0.0537 0.0537 0.0537 0.0537 0.0537
0.1700 0.1700 0.1700 0.1700 0.1700 0.1700 0.1700 0.1700 0.1700
3.4967 3.4967 3.4823 3.4823 3.4823 3.4823 3.4823 3.4823 3.4823
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CITY OF ELKO, NEVADA
Statutory Debt Limitation
For the Years Ended June 30

Outstanding
General Additional

Fiscal Assessed Obligation Statutory
Year Valuation Debt Limit Debt" Debt Capacity
1995 202,479,335 $ 60,743,801 5,088,990 $ 55,654,811
1996 218,662,312 65,598,694 5,035,966 60,562,728
1997 231,485,367 69,445,610 6,106,422 63,339,188
1998 247,881,803 74,364,541 5,854,044 68,510,497
1999 263,888,126 79,166,438 9,356,291 69,810,147
2000 272,263,390 81,679,017 12,009,569 69,669,448
2001 291,416,822 87,425,047 11,679,464 75,745,583
2002 295,138,546 88,541,564 11,055,964 77,485,600
2003 288,780,550 86,634,165 10,616,125 76,018,040
2004 297,631,533 89,289,460 10,080,917 79,208,543
2005 296,207,696 88,862,309 9,681,808 79,180,501
2006 296,770,239 89,031,072 10,882,881 78,148,191
2007 312,816,735 93,845,021 10,204,260 83,640,761
2008 337,353,408 101,206,022 9,508,686 91,697,336
2009 363,571,663 109,071,499 8,775,724 100,295,775
2010 389,109,714 116,732,914 7,383,511 109,349,403
2011 390,921,792 117,276,538 17,427,471 99,849,067
2012 386,309,054 115,892,716 15,035,000 100,857,716
2013 404,635,925 121,390,778 14,385,000 107,005,778
2014 427,797,045 128,339,114 13,710,000 114,629,114
2015 465,656,772 139,697,032 16,025,000 123,672,032
2016 482,389,245 144,716,774 21,620,000 123,096,774
2017 495,031,866 148,509,560 20,370,000 128,139,560
2018 513,337,800 154,001,340 N/A N/A

Note: Legal debt limit per NRS 266.600.
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CITY OF ELKO, NEVADA
Outstanding Bonded Indebtedness
June 30, 2017

Bonds Payable

General Obligation Bonds:
General Government
2010 Limited Tax Street Bonds

2015 Limited Tax Recreational Facilities and Refunding Bonds
General Obligation (Lomited Tax) Bonds:
General Government
Medium-Term Public Safety Bond
Series 2014
Enterprise Fund

Airport Improvement Bonds
Series 2009A and Series 2009B

Total Bonds Payable

111

Date of
Issue

Issue Amount

Principal
Outstanding
June 30, 2017

10/5/2010

11/12/2015

7/30/2014

12/1/2009

8,055,000

7,360,000

2,455,000

2,500,000

$ 20,370,000




CITY OF ELKO, NEVADA
Annual General Obligation Debt Service Requirements

June 30, 2017
2010 Street Bonds 2009 Airport Improvement
Fiscal Limited Tax Limited Tax Bond

Year Principal Interest Principal Interest
2018 445,000 297,781 205,000 122,055
2019 465,000 279,581 215,000 112,475
2020 485,000 260,581 225,000 102,166
2021 505,000 240,781 225,000 91,290
2022 520,000 222,556 245,000 79,571
2023 540,000 205,656 250,000 66,980
2024 555,000 187,516 270,000 53,578
2025 575,000 168,375 270,000 39,400
2026 595,000 146,700 290,000 24,380
2027 620,000 122,400 305,000 8,265
2028 645,000 97,100 - -
2029 675,000 70,700 - -
2030 700,000 43,200 - -
2031 730,000 14,600 - -
2032 - - - -
2033 - - - -
2034 - - - -
2035 - - - -

TOTAL 8,055,000 2,357,527 $ 2,500,000 $§ 700,160
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2015 Recreational Facilities 2014 Public Safety Bond

Limited Tax Bonds Limited Tax Bond
Principal Interest Principal Interest Total
365,000 244,112 285,000 52,031 2,015,979
375,000 233,162 290,000 45,563 2,015,781
385,000 221,914 295,000 38,981 2,013,642
405,000 206,512 305,000 32,231 2,010,814
420,000 190,312 310,000 25,313 2,012,752
440,000 173,512 315,000 18,281 2,009,429
455,000 155,914 325,000 11,081 2,013,089
470,000 137,712 330,000 3,713 1,994,200
355,000 123,612 - - 1,534,692
365,000 112,962 - - 1,533,627
375,000 102,014 - - 1,219,114
385,000 90,762 - - 1,221,462
395,000 79,212 - - 1,217,412
410,000 67,362 - - 1,221,962
420,000 55,064 - - 475,064
435,000 42,462 - - 477,462
445,000 29,412 - - 474,412
460,000 14,950 - - 474,950
7,360,000 $ 2,280,962 § 2,455,000 § 227,194 $ 25,935,843
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CITY OF ELKO, NEVADA
Total and Unfunded Accrued Liabilities

Years Ended June 30
All Members
2017 2016
Total Actuarial Accrued Liability 48,459,200,000 46,070,157,029
Net Assests at Actuarial Value 35,896,200,000 | 34,610,720,184
Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability 12,563,000,000 11,459,436,845
Assets as % of Total Accrued Laibility 74.08% 75.13%

Source: June 30, 2016 Public Employees' Retirement System of Nevada Comprehensive Annual Financial Repor
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MEMBERS:

CHAD B. ATKINSON, CPA PHiLLIP S. PEINE, CPA
B KRiS J. BRAUNBERGER, CPA STEVEN D PALMER, CPA
A l N TO N . u R D l C K ROBERT S. Cox, CPA MICHAEL K. SPILKER, CPA
Tobb B. FELTNER, CPA KEevIN L. STEPHENS, CPA
K. MARK FROST, CPA MARK E. TICHENOR, CPA
C PAS & A DV l SOR S MORRIS J PEACOCK, CPA MICHAEL J. TORGERSON, CPA

Independent Auditors’ Report on Internal Control Over
Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters
Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed
in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards

The Honorable Mayor and City Council
City of Elko, Nevada

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental
activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of
the City of Elko, Nevada, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2017, and the related notes to the financial
statements, which collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements and have issued our report
thereon dated November 6, 2017.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the City’s internal control
over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control. Accordingly, we do
f not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
| management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
| detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination

of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement
| of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A

significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less
severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with
governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
| section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
| weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may

exist that were not identified. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any

deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses
may exist that have not been identified.
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City’s financial statements are free from
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be
reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly,
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

e iy PLLC.

HintonBurdick, PLLC
St. George, Utah
November 6, 2017
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Independent Auditors’ Report on Compliance for
Each Major Program and on Internal Control Over
Compliance Required by the Uniform Guidance and the
Passenger Facility Charge Audit Guide for Public Agencies

The Honorable Mayor and
City Council
City of Elko, Nevada

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program and Passenger Facility Charge Program

We have audited the City of Elko, Nevada’s compliance with the types of compliance requirements
described in the OMB Compliance Supplement and the Passenger Facility Charge Audit Guide for Public
Agencies, issued by the Federal Aviation Administration (Guide), that could have a direct and material
effect on each of the City of Elko, Nevada’s major federal programs and on its passenger facility charge
program for the year ended June 30, 2017. The City of Elko, Nevada’s major federal programs are
identified in the summary of auditor’s results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and
questioned costs.

Management’s Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions
of its federal awards applicable to its programs and its passenger facility charge program.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the City of Elko, Nevada’s major
federal programs and passenger facility charge program based on our audit of the types of compliance
requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits
contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; the
audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance); and the
audit requirements of the Guide. Those standards, the Uniform Guidance and the Guide require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal
program and on the passenger facility charge program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence about the City of Elko, Nevada’s compliance with those requirements and performing
such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major
federal program and the passenger facility charge program. However, our audit does not provide a legal
determination of the City of Elko, Nevada’s compliance.
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Opinion on Each Major Federal Program and Passenger Facility Charge Program

In our opinion, the City of Elko, Nevada, complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal
programs and on its passenger facility charge program for the year ended June 30, 2017.

Report on Internal Control over Compliance

Management of the City of Elko, Nevada is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal
control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and
performing our audit of compliance, we considered the City of Elko, Nevada’s internal control over
compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major
federal program and on its passenger facility charge program to determine the auditing procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major
federal program and passenger facility charge program to test and report on internal control over
compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance and the Guide, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not
express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City of Elko, Nevada’s internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal program or passenger facility charge program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal
control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over
compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program or passenger facility charge program will not be prevented,
or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance
is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program or passenger facility charge program that is less severe than
a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those
charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However,
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the
Uniform Guidance and the Guide. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

J e F by PLLC
HintonBurdick, PLLC
St. George, Utah

November 6, 2017
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CITY OF ELKO, NEVADA
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017

Section I - Summary of Auditor’s Results

Financial Statements

Type of auditor’s report issued: Unmodified
Internal control over financial reporting:

e Material weaknesses identified? yes X no
e Significant deficiencies identified? yes X no
Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? yes X_no
Federal Awards
Internal Control over major programs:
e Material weaknesses identified? yes X no
e Significant deficiencies identified? yes X_no
Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance
for major programs: Unmodified
Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported
in accordance with 2 CFR 200.516? yes _X no
Identification of major programs.
CFDA Number(s) Name of Federal Program or Cluster
20.106 U.S. Department of Transportation Airport Improvement Program
Dollar threshold used to distinguish between type
A and type B programs: $ 750,000
Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? yes X no
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CITY OF ELKO, NEVADA
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs, Continued
For the Year Ended June 30,2017

Section II - Financial Statement Findings

Material Weaknesses:

None noted.

Significant Deficiencies:

None noted.

Section I1I - Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs

No significant matters were noted.

Section IV — Passenger Facility Program Findings and Questioned Costs

No significant matters were noted.

Section V - Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings

No significant matters were noted.
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CITY OF ELKO, NEVADA
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017

Pass-Through

Federal Entity
Federal Grantor/pass-through CDFDA Identifying Federal
Grantor/program Title Number Number Expenditures
U.S. Department of Justice:
Direct Program:
Narcotics Seizure Funds - Equitable Sharing Program 16.922 n/a $ 21,725
Office of Community Oriented Policing Services (COPS) 16.710 2014UMWX0144 18,280
Passed through Nevada Department of Public Safety:
Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant Program:
Office of Narcotic Control Assistance 16.738 15-JAG-08 9,934
Office of Narcotic Control Assistance 16.738 16 -JAG-08 12,853
Direct Programs:
Office of Traffic Safety - Ecitations 20.616 LFD-2017-ELKOPD-00009 38,705
Bulletproof Vest Partnership program 16.607 n/a 7,416
Amor Plates and Shields 16.738 15-JAG-36 19,635
Total Department of Justice 128,548
U.S. Department of Transportation
Direct Program:
Airport Improvement Program 20.106 3-32-0005-045-2015 775,276
Airport Improvement Program 20.106 3-32-0005-046-2016 318,427
Airport Improvement Program 20.106 3-32-0005-047-2016 105,629
TOL199332
Passed through State of Nevada Department of Transportation
and Public Safety:
Highway Safety Cluster:
HWY Planning & Const. NTAP Safe Routes To School - Jennings 20.205 P90-14-063 479
Total Department of Transportation 1,199,811
The Department of Homeland Security
Direct Program:
Staffing for Adequate Fire and Emergency Response (SAFER) 97.083 50,760
Total Department of Homeland Security 50,760

Total Expenditures of Federal Awards
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CITY OF ELKO, NEVADA
Notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017

Note 1. Basis of Presentation

Reporting Entity:

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards presents the activity or expenditure of all federal
awards programs of the City of Elko, Nevada (the City) for the year ended June 30, 2017. The City’s reporting entity
is defined in Note 1 of the basic financial statements. All expenditure of federal awards received directly from
federal agencies as well as federal awards passed through other government agencies are included in the schedule.
Basis of Accounting:

This accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards has been prepared on the modified accrual basis of
accounting. The information in this schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements Title 2 U.S. Code of

Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for
Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance).

Relationship to Basic Financial Statements:

Expenditures of federal awards have been reported in the following funds:

Governmental-Type Activities:

General fund $ 113,106
Non-major funds:
Narcotics Task Force fund 27,497
Capital Equipment Reserve fund 38,705
Ad Valorem fund 479

179,787
Business-Type Activities:

Airport Fund 1,199,332
Total $ 1,379,119
Indirect Cost Rate:

The City did not elect to use the 10% de minimis indirect cost rate for fiscal year 2017.
Federal Loans:

The City did not have any federal loans for fiscal year 2017.
Subrecipients:

There were no subrecipients for fiscal year 2017.
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CITY OF ELKO, NEVADA
Schedule of Expenditures of Passenger Facility Charges
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017

September 30  December 31 March 31 June 30 Total

00-02-C-01-EKO $ 18,009 § 10,889  § 13,324  § 15,361  § 58,483

Total $ 18,909 $ 10,889  $ 13,324 § 15,361  § 58,483
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Independent Auditors’ Report on
State Legal Compliance

The Honorable Mayor and City Council
City of Elko, Nevada

We have audited the financial statements of the City of Elko, Nevada for the year ended June 30, 2016
and have issued our report thereon dated November 6, 2017. Our audit also included test work on the
City’s compliance with selected requirements identified in the State of Nevada Revised Statutes (NRS)
including, but not limited to, NRS section 354.624 and section 354.6241.

Management of the City is responsible for the City's compliance with all requirements identified above.
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance with those requirements based on our audit and
make specific statements regarding funds established and the status of prior year findings and
recommendations; accordingly, we make the following statements:

For the year ended June 30, 2017, the City of Elko has taken steps to act upon recommendations
made in prior years.

We noted one new instance of noncompliance during fiscal year 2017.
The City has established a number of funds in accordance with NRS 354.624 as follows:

Enterprise Funds:
Water Utility Fund
Sewer Utility Fund
Airport Fund
Landfill Fund
Golf Fund

Funds whose balance is required to be used only for a specific purpose or carried forward to
the succeeding fiscal year in any designated amount;
Special Revenue Funds: ’

Recreation Fund

Youth Recreation Fund

Municipal Court Administration Assessment Fund

Narcotics Task Force Fund

Elko Redevelopment Agency Fund

Debt Service Fund

Capital Projects Funds:
Ad Valorem Capital Projects Fund
Public Improvement Development Fund
Capital Equipment Reserve Fund
Capital Construction Fund
Facility Reserve Fund
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The City appears to be using the above listed funds expressly for the purposes for which they were
created and in accordance with NRS 354.624. The funds are being administered in accordance with
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles and the reserves, as applicable, appear reasonable and
necessary to carry out the purposes of the funds. Sources of revenues available and fund balances and net

position are reflected in the individual fund financial statements.

The statutory and regulatory requirements of the funds are as follows:

Water Fund

Sewer Fund

Airport Fund

Landfill Fund

Golf Fund

Recreation Fund

Youth Recreation Fund

Municipal Court Administration Assessment Fund
Narcotics Task Force Fund

Elko Redevelopment Agency Fund
Debt Service Fund

Ad Valorem Capital Projects Fund
Public Improvement Development Fund
Capital Equipment Reserve Fund
Capital Construction Fund

Facility Reserve Fund

City Resolution 12-96
City Resolution 12-96
City Resolution 13-02
City Resolution 12-96
City Resolution 14-02
City Resolution 12-96
City Resolution 21-98
NRS 268.4085

City Resolution 18-01

Component unit: NRS 279.382 through 279.685

City Resolution 12-96
NRS 354.598155

City Resolution 12-96
City Resolution 19-01
City Resolution 37-99
City Resolution 11-02

NRS 354.624 requires a schedule of all fees imposed by the City that were subject to the provisions of
NRS 354.5989. See the following page for the schedule.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
material noncompliance with the requirements referred to above occurred. An audit includes examining,
on a test basis, evidence about the City's compliance with those requirements. We believe that our audit
provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the City of Elko complied, in all material respects, with the requirements identified above
for the year ended June 30, 2017.

Other Matters

The results of our auditing procedures disclosed instances of noncompliance, which are required to be
reported in accordance with NRS 354.624 and 354.6241. Our finding is described in a separate schedule
of findings and recommendations, as item 2017-001. Our opinion on compliance is not modified with
respect to these matters.

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of the applicable compliance
requirements identified in the Nevada Revised Statutes (NRS) and the results of that testing based on the
state requirements. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

it Fobidie, PLLC

HintonBurdick, PLLC
St. George, Utah
November 6, 2017
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CITY OF ELKO, NEVADA

Schedule of Fees Imposed Subject to the Provisions of NRS
354.5989 — Limitation of Fees for Business Licenses
For the Year ended June 30, 2017

Flat fixed fees:
Business license revenue for the year ended June 30, 2016 $ 488,155

Adjustment to base:
Base year:
1. Percentage change in population of the local
government (June 30, 2017 data unavailable) 0.00%

2. Percentage increase in the Consumer Price Index for
the year ending on December 31, next preceding the

year for which the limit is being calculated 1.6%

Adjusted base at June 30, 2017 1.60% 495,965
Actual revenue for the year ended June 30, 2017 491,720
Actual amount over (under) allowable amount $ (4,245)
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Agenda Item IILD.

10.

11.

12.

13.

Elko City Council
Agenda Action Sheet

Title: Review, consideration, and possible approval to solicit bids for the City of
Elko Water Main Removal and Replacement Project, and matters related thereto.
FOR POSSIBLE ACTION
Meeting Date: January 9, 2018
Agenda Category: APPROPRIATION
Time Required: S Minutes
Background Information: This project is included in the current fiscal year budget.
There are four alley locations targeted for replacement in this project. These
locations have been selected based on the high volume of waterline repairs in these
areas (9 this past year). RL
Budget Information:

Appropriation Required:

Budget amount available: $ 297,000.00

Fund name: Water

Business Impact Statement: Not Required

Supplemental Agenda Information:

Recommended Motion: Move to approve soliciting bids
Prepared By: Ryan Limberg, Utilities Director
Committee/Other Agency Review:

Council Action:

Council Agenda Distribution:

Created on 12/13/2018 Council Agenda Action Sheet Page 10f 1



Agenda Item IILE.

10.

11.

12.

13.

Elko City Council
Agenda Action Sheet

Title: Review, consideration, and possible approval to solicit equipment bids for the
WRF- Emergency Diesel Generator Project, and matters related thereto. FOR
POSSIBLE ACTION
Meeting Date: January 9, 2018
Agenda Category: APPROPRIATION
Time Required: 10 Minutes
Background Information: The current generator (700 KW) in undersized to run all of
the necessary plant equipment during power outages and high flows or full plant
load. A minimum generator size of 1000 KW is required to do that. Staff desires to
solicit bids for a new, larger, 1250 KW generator. This project is budgeted for in the
current fiscal year. RL
Budget Information:

Appropriation Required:

Budget amount available: $500,000.00

Fund name: WRF
Business Impact Statement: Not Required

Supplemental Agenda Information:

Recommended Motion: Move to approve soliciting equipment bids for WREF-
Emergency Diesel Generator Project

Prepared By: Ryan Limberg, Utilities Director
Committee/Other Agency Review:
Council Action:

Council Agenda Distribution:

Created on 12/18/2018 Council Agenda Action Sheet Page 1of 1



Agenda Item IILF.

10.

11.

12.

13.

Elko City Council
Agenda Action Sheet

Title: Review, consideration, and possible approval to solicit construction bids for
the WRF- Emergency Diesel Generator Project, and matters related thereto. FOR
POSSIBLE ACTION
Meeting Date: January 9, 2018
Agenda Category: APPROPRIATION
Time Required: 10 Minutes
Background Information:
The current generator (700 kW) in undersized to run all of the necessary plant
equipment during power outages and high flows or full plant load. A minimum
generator size of 1000 kW is required to do that. Staff desires to replace this
generator with a larger unit (1250 kW) and solicit bids for the necessary related
construction work to remove and replace this unit. This project is budgeted for in
the current fiscal year. RL
Budget Information:

Appropriation Required:

Budget amount available: $500,000.00

Fund name: WRF
Business Impact Statement: Not Required

Supplemental Agenda Information:

Recommended Motion: Move to approve soliciting construction bids for WRF-
Emergency Diesel Generator Project

Prepared By: Ryan Limberg, Utilities Director
Committee/Other Agency Review:
Council Action:

Council Agenda Distribution:

Created on 12/18/2018 Council Agenda Action Sheet Page 1 of 1



Agenda Item II1.G.

10.

11.

12.

13.

Elko City Council
Agenda Action Sheet

Title: Review, consideration, and possible final acceptance of the Chilton Centennial
Tower Construction Project, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE
ACTION

Meeting Date: January 9, 2018

Agenda Category: APPROPRIATION
Time Required: 5 Minutes
Background Information: This project was awarded to YESCO in the amount of
$183,860.00 on August 22, 2017. This project had no change orders and was
completed on time and in conformance with the plans and specifications. BT
Budget Information:
Appropriation Required: $183,860.00
Budget amount available: $183,860.00
Fund name: Chilton Centennial Tower
Business Impact Statement: Not Required

Supplemental Agenda Information: Nene

Recommended Motion: Approve the final acceptance of the Chilton Centennial
Tower Construction Project, in the amount of $183,860.

Prepared By: Bob Thibault, Civil Engineer
Committee/Other Agency Review:
Council Action:

Council Agenda Distribution: YESCO, Gordie Rogers
grogers @yesco.com

Created on 12/26/2018 Council Agenda Action Sheet Page10of 1



Agenda Item IIL.H.

10.

11.

12.

13.

Elko City Council
Agenda Action Sheet

Title: Review, consideration, and possible approval for the Fire Department to
accept a Local Giving Grant of $2,500.00 from Wal-Mart Stores Inc. to assist with
cost associated with fire prevention education and matters related thereto. FOR
POSSIBLE ACTION

Meeting Date: January 9, 2018

Agenda Category: APPROPRIATION

Time Required: 5 Minutes

Background Information: Wal-Mart Stores Inc. has established grants to assist local
agencies to fund public education. The City of Elko Fire Department Prevention
Bureau has been selected as the recipient of a $2,500.00 grant for community fire
prevention education materials. Wal-Mart has been a great supporter of the Elko

Fire Department’s fire prevention efforts for many years. JH

Budget Information:

Appropriation Required: N/A
Budget amount available: N/A
Fund name: N/A

Business Impact Statement: Not Required

Supplemental Agenda Information: N/A

Recommended Motion: Recommend approval for the Fire Department to accept a
Local Giving Grant of $2,500.00 from Wal-Mart Stores Inc.

Prepared By: John Holmes, Fire Marshal
Committee/Other Agency Review: N/A
Council Action:

Agenda Distribution:

Created on 01/03/2018 Council Agenda Action Sheet Page 10of 1



Agenda Item IV.A.

10.

11.

12.

13.

Elko City Council
Agenda Action Sheet

Title: Review, consideration, and possible approval of a lease agreement between the
City of Elko and Elko Television District, for 2, 500 square feet of property located
at Elko Regional Airport, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION
Meeting Date: January 9, 2018

Agenda Category: UNFINISHED BUSINESS

Time Required: 5§ Minutes

Background Information: The Elko Television District is requesting to lease 2,500
square feet of property in the vicinity of the airport beacon, for the purposes of
installing a utility building and related Elko Television District equipment. A copy
of the proposed lease has been included in the agenda packet for review. CC

Budget Information:
Appropriation Required: N/A
Budget amount available: N/A
Fund name: N/A

Business Impact Statement: Not Required

Supplemental Agenda Information: A copy of the proposed lease.

Recommended Motion: Approve lease agreement between the City of Elko and Elko
Television District.

Prepared By: Curtis Calder, City Manager

Committee/Other Agency Review: City Attorney

Council Action:

Council Agenda Distribution: Mr. Paul Gardner
1800 Idaho Street
Elko, NV 89801

Email: paul @elkoradio.com

Created on 01/03/2018 Council Agenda Action Sheet Page 10of 1



LEASE AGREEMENT

THIS AGREEMENT (hereinafter “Lease” or “Agreement”) made this day of
, 2018 by and between the CITY OF ELKO, a special charter municipal
corporation of the State of Nevada, hereinafter referred to as the "Lessor," and ELKO
TELEVISION DISTRICT, a general improvement district organized under Chapter
318 of Nevada Revised Statutes, hereinafter referred to as "Lessee."

That for and in consideration of the rents, covenants and agreements herein contained, Lessor
hereby leases to Lessee, and Lessee hereby leases from Lessor, the following property upon
the terms and conditions described hereinafter.

I. PREMISES

Lessor does hereby lease to Lessee, and Lessee does hereby lease from Lessor, a portion of
that certain parcel of property (the entirety of Lessor’s property is referred to hereinafter as
the “Property”), located at Elko Regional Airport, Elko, Nevada, and being described as a
50 x 50° parcel containing 2,500 square feet (“Land Space”), as shown on the Tax Map of
the County of Elko as a portion of Assessor's Parcel Number 001-660-106, together with the
non-exclusive right of ingress and egress, seven (7) days a week, twenty-four (24) hours a
day, on foot or motor vehicle, including trucks, over or along a fifteen (15) foot wide right-
of-way extending from the nearest public right-of-way, being Terminal Way, to the demised
premises, and for the installation and maintenance of utility wires, poles, cables, conduits,
and pipes over, under, or along one or more ten (10) foot wide rights-of-way from the Land
Space. The demised premises and rights-of-way are hereinafter collectively referred to as the
"Premises." The Premises are described in Exhibit A attached hereto and made a part hereof,
and as shown on the plat of survey attached hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit B. In
the event any public utility is unable to use the aforementioned right-of-way, Lessor may, in
its discretion, grant an additional right-of-way either to the Lessee or to the public utility at no
cost to the Lessee.

II. TERM OF LEASE

A. Initial Term. Lessee shall have and hold the Premises for a term of ten (10) years (the “Initial
Term”), commencing on February 1, 2018 (the “Commencement Date””). The term “Lease
Year” shall refer to each consecutive twelve (12) month period during the Term, beginning with
the first Lease Year, which commences on the Commencement Date and ends on the last day of
the twelfth (12th) calendar month thereafter. The second and each succeeding Lease Year
commences on the first day of the year following the preceding Lease Year.



B. Extensions. Lessee at its option, shall be entitled to the privilege and option of three (3)
successive extensions of this Lease for a period of five (5) years each (each an “Extension Term”
and, collectively, the “Extension Terms”); provided, that Lessee's right to extend is subject to
the following conditions precedent: (i) this Lease shall be in full force and effect at the time
Lessee exercises its option to extend; (ii) no uncured Event of Default, beyond applicable notice
and cure periods, shall exist at the time notice is given or during the period from exercise of the
extension through and including the last day of the then current Term; (iii) prior to Lessee's
exercise of any extension option, Lessee shall not have abandoned the Premises; and (iv) Lessee
shall exercise its option to extend the Term by giving Lessor written notice thereof not less than
six (6) months, and not more than nine (9) months, prior to the expiration of the then-current
Term. Any exercise of an extension option as herein provided shall operate as an extension of
the Term hereof, so that this Lease and each and every covenant and provision thereof shall be
and remain in full force and effect during the Term as extended and with the same force and
effect as if the Term of this Lease were originally for such extended period, except that: (i) Lessor
shall have no obligation to make any improvement to the Premises or provide a tenant
improvement allowance to Lessee for improvements, and (ii) there shall be no further right to
extend the Term beyond the three (3) extension provided herein. “Term” shall mean and refer
to the period of time during which this Lease is in effect, including any Extension Terms.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, Lessor may, by resolution of the Elko City Council, at any time
after the Initial Term, waive the requirement for Lessee to provide written notice pursuant to
Subsection I1.B(iv), above.

III. TERMINATION BY THE LESSOR

The Lessee understands that the Lessor is developing and adjusting a master plan for the Elko
Regional Airport that may include, without limitation, future Airport expansion.

This Agreement shall may be terminated by Lessor in the event of either of the following:

A. The lawful assumption by the United States Government, or any authorized
agency thereof, of the operation, control or use of the Airport, or any substantial
part or parts thereof, in such a manner as substantially to restrict Lessee fora period
of at least sixty (60) days, from operating thereon. Termination pursuant to this
subsection III.A. may, in the Lessor’s sole discretion, be immediate and without
prior notice.

B. The Premises are needed for Airport and/or airline service purposes and/or
City purposes. Lessor shall give Lessee one hundred twenty (120) days
advance written notice of any cancellation under this Subsection III.B.

IV. TERMINATION BY LESSEE

This Agreement may be terminated by Lessee upon giving Lessor one hundred twenty
(120) days’ written notice prior to the termination date and by paying Lessor the rental
that would have been due through the date of termination.
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The initial annual rent shall be the sum of SEVEN HUNDRED DOLLARS
($700.00), calculated in the following manner: 2,500 square feet x $0.28/year.
The first annual rental payment shall be payable on February 1,2018.

Subsequent annual rental payments shall increase at the rate of three percent
(3%) per year, payable on February 1% thereafter during the Term, or
subsequent extensions of this Lease. Rental payments shall be delivered to
City Hall, 1751 College Ave., Elko, NV 89801, or whenever Lessor may
demand the same to be paid in writing.

ABANDONMENT

In the event the Lessee abandons the Premises at any time during the Term, or fails to begin
construction of the improvements within twenty-four (24) months from the Commencement
Date, the Lease shall immediately terminate without further notice and Lessee shall
thereupon immediately pay to Lessor all rent then due plus all amounts that would have
otherwise been due for the remainder of the Term then in effect, as calculated in Article V.

ALTERATIONS AND IMPROVEMENTS

A.

The Lessee shall not construct, erect or place any improvements to the leased
premises without the prior consent of the City of Elko. All construction shall be
in compliance with all applicable building and construction codes.

Lessor shall have the right to inspect and approve the plans and specifications
ofany improvements of Lessee prior to construction or installation thereof and
to refuse to permit such construction or installation if the external appearance
thereof does not meet Lessor's reasonable requirements of appearance of
structures on the airport, or if the manner or type of construction or installation
or the location thereof does not comply with the master plan or meet Lessor's
requirements for the safe use of the airport or if it does not comply with the
building or construction ordinances of the City of Elko. Any alteration,
modification or remodeling of any building or structure on the demised
pfémises shall be subject to the inspection and approval of the Lessor above
provided.

VIII. MAINTENANCE AND REPAIRS

Lessee shall maintain all improvements on the Premises in good order and repair and
shall keep the Premises in a clean and orderly condition. Upon termination of this Lease,
Lessee shall repair any damage caused to the Premises.



IX. APPLICABLE RULES AND LAWS

Lessee agrees to observe and comply with, during the Term, all laws of the State of
Nevada, and of the United States, and all applicable ordinances of the County of Elko
and the City of Elko, together with any applicable rules, policies or procedures
implemented by the City of Elko.

X. INTERFERENCE

Lessee agrees to install equipment of the type and frequency which will not cause harmful
interference which is measurable in accordance with the existing Federal Communications
Commission (FCC) standards to any equipment of the Lessor or other persons, to include
other lessees, utilizing Airport property as of the Commencement Date. In the event any
of Lessee’s equipment causes such interference, Lessee will take all reasonable steps
necessary to correct and eliminate the interference, including but not limited to, powering
down.

XI. WASTE

Lessee shall keep the Premises clean and shall dispose of all debris and other waste matter
which may accumulate, and shall provide proper containers, with proper covers, for waste
within the premises utilized by the Lessee.

XII. UTILITIES

Lessee shall promptly pay when due all charges for light, power, water, sewer and all other
utilities and services used upon or in connection with the Premises by the Lessee.

XIIL TAXES

Lessee will pay any city, county and state taxes levied or assessed against property placed
upon the premises by the Lessee, together with all necessary license fees.

XIV. IN ITY AND IN

A. The Lessee agrees to hold harmless, release, indemnify and defend the Lessor, its
officers, supervisors, employees, and agents from and against all fines, suits, claims,
demands, expenses, fees, liabilities, defenses and actions of any kind and nature by
reason of any and all of its operations hereunder and any and all negligence, acts and
omissions of the Lessee and its agents, employees, officers, and directors, and
hereby assumes all risk and liability of relating to its use of the Premises.



B. Lessee shall maintain with insurance underwriters satisfactory to the Lessor a
standard form policy or policies of insurance in such amounts as may from time to
time be approved by the Lessor protecting both the Lessee and the Lessor against
public liability and property damage. Lessee shall promptly, after the execution of
this Agreement, furnish such policy or policies for public liability and property
damage growing out of accidents occurring in or around the Premises in a minimum
amount of $500,000 for each person injured; $1,000,000 for any one accident or
event of loss; and $100,000 for property damage. The specified amounts of
insurance in no way limits the liability of Lessee and Lessee shall carry insurance
in such amounts as are reasonably necessary to indemnify and save harmless the
Lessor from all claims, suits, demands and actions.

XV. DEFAULT AND REMEDIES

This Lease is entered into by Lessor on the condition that Lessee shall perform all of the
covenants and agreements set forth in this Lease which are to be performed by the Lessee. If
at any time there is a default on the part of the Lessee in the payment of rent (the term rent
meaning all rentals and any other sums payable to the Lessor pursuant to this Lease), taxes,
assessments, utility charges or any other charges and payments by Lessee to be made, or any
part thereof, and if such default shall continue for a period of thirty-five (35) days after
written notice from Lessor as provided for herein; or if the Lessee shall fail, refuse or neglect
to forthwith cease the violation of any of the provisions of this Lease, or if there shall be
default on the part of the Lessee in the performance of any of the remaining covenants or
agreements of this Lease by the Lessee which are to be performed, and such default shall
continue for a period of thirty-five (35) days after written notice of such default being given
by the Lessor as provided for herein and Lessee has not diligently commenced action to cure
such default, the Lessor shall have the right to pursue all rights and remedies it may have at
law or in equity, including injunctive relief, or it shall have the right, without further demand
or notice (which is hereby waived) at its election, to terminate this Lease and to enter upon
the Premises with or without legal process and take immediate possession thereof. In
addition, Lessor may bring suit for and collect all rents and payments payable to the Lessor,
and all costs, expenses, attorney fees and damages incurred or suffered by the Lessor. From
the time of such entry, this Lease and all rights, privileges, easements and leasehold interests
herein granted shall terminate; provided, that for rents due and nonperformance of other
conditions, Lessor may sue at once and pursue all remedies that it may have at law or in
equity without being required to enter into possession and forfeit the Lessee's term as herein
provided. Lessor and Lessee further agree that in the event of any default, the defaulting
party shall pay all costs and expenses, including a reasonable attorney's fee, which may arise
or accrue from enforcing this Lease, or in pursuit of any remedies provided hereunder, or by
the statutes of the State of Nevada, whether such remedy is pursued by filing a suit or
otherwise.



XVI. QUIET POSSESSION

The Lessee, upon making the payments herein provided for and in the manner provided, and
complying with each, every and all of the terms, clauses and covenants of this Lease, shall
have the sole right and option of occupying said Premises under the terms of this Lease during
the full Term, without any let or hindrance by said Lessor. The occupancy for the Term is
subject to the rental and renewal provisions as set forth herein.

XVII. ASSIGNMENT AND SUBLETTING

Lessee shall not, at any time during the Term, or in any manner, either directly or indirectly,
assign, hypothecate or transfer this Lease or any interest therein, or sublet the Premises, or any
portion thereof, without the prior written consent of Lessor, which consent may be withheld for

. any reason or no reason.

XVIII. ESSEE'S PROPERTY

Lessee shall be solely responsible for loss or damage to Lessee's personal property or any
improvements placed upon the Premises by Lessee.

XIX. PECTI

Lessor reserves the right to enter upon the Premises at any reasonable time for the purpose
of making any inspection it may deem appropriate for the proper enforcement of any of the
covenants or conditions of this Lease. However, except in emergency situations, prior to
Lessor's exercise of this right, Lessor must first contact Lessee and advise Lessee of Lessor's
intent to inspect, thereby allowing Lessee the opportunity to be present at suchinspection.

XX. WAIVERS

No waivers by the Lessor of default, violation of or non- performance of any of the terms,
covenants or conditions hereof to be performed, kept and observed by the Lessee shall be
construed to or act as a waiver of any subsequent default, violation or non-performance. The
acceptance of rental or theperformance of all or any part of this Lease by Lessor for or during
any period or periods after a default, violation or non-performance of any of the terms,
covenants and conditions herein contained shall not be deemed a waiver of any right on the
part of the Lessor to cancel this Lease for failure of Lessee to so perform, keep or observe any
of the terms, covenants or conditions herein.

XXI. NOTICES

Any and all notices and demands by or from Lessor to Lessee, or by or from Lessee to Lessor,
required or desired to be given hereunder shall be in writing and shall be validly given or
made if served either personally or if deposited in the United States mail, certified or
registered, postage prepaid, return receipt requested. If such notice or demand is served by



registered or certified mail in the manner provided herein, service shall be conclusively
deemed given three (3) days after mailing or upon receipt, whichever is sooner.

A. Any notice or demand to Lessor shall be addressed to Lessorat:

City of Elko

Attention: City Manager
1751 College Avenue
Elko, Nevada 89801

B. Any notice or demand to Lessee shall be addressed to Lessee at:

Elko Television District
P.O. Box 456
Elko, Nevada 89803

C. Either party hereto may change its address for the purpose of receiving notices or
demands as herein provided by a written notice given in the manner aforesaid to the
other party hereto.

XXII. ATTORNEY FEES

In the event either party herein is required to file suit in order to enforce this Agreement, or
to obtain a judicial interpretation of this Agreement, the prevailing party shall be entitled to
reasonable attorney fees and court costs.

XXIII. BINDING EFFECT

Subject to any restrictions on assignments or subleasing, this Lease shall be binding upon
and inure to the benefit of the parties, and their successors and assigns and upon their heirs,
executors, successors, assigns and any sublessees of any portion of the Premises.

XXIV. GOVERNING LAW

- The validity, construction and enforcement of this Agreement shall be governed in all respects

by the laws of the State of Nevada.
XXV. ENTIRE A MENT: DIF] s WAIV

This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between Lessee and Lessor pertaining to the
subject matter contained in it and supersedes all prior and contemporaneous agreements,
representations and understandings. No supplement, modification or amendment of or to this
Agreement shall be binding unless executed in writing by all the parties. No waiver of any



of the provisions of this Agreement shall be deemed or shall constitute a waiver of any other
provision, whether or not similar, nor shall any waiver constitute a continuing waiver. No
waiver shall be binding unless executed in writing by the party making the waiver.

XXVI. COUNTERPARTS

This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts and each counterpart shall
constitute an original instrument, but all such counterparts shall only constitute one and the
same instrument.

XXVIIL. CAPTIONS

The captions of this Agreement do not in any way limit or amplify the terms and provisions
of this Agreement.

XXVIIL. MERGER

The obligations of Lessor and Lessee pursuant to this Agreement shall survive the close of
escrow contemplated hereunder, and shall not be deemed to merge with the deed of
conveyance.

XXIX. SEV LITY

Each provision of this Agreement is severable from any and all other provisions of this
Agreement. Should any provision(s) of this Agreement be for any reason unenforceable, the
balance shall nonetheless be of full force andeffect.

XXXI. AUTHORSHIP

This Agreement has been reviewed by attorneys representing the respective parties and
therefore shall not be construed in favor of or against any party hereto based on the sole or
primary authorship of this Agreement being the work of one party hereto.



ATTEST:

Shanell Owen, City Clerk

LESSOR:
CITY OF ELKO

By:
Chris J. Johnson, Mayor

LESSEE:
ELKO TELEVISION DISTRICT

By:

Title:




EXHIBIT A
LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF ELKO TV DISTRICT LEASE AREA

A portion of Parcel No. 3, as shown on the Parcel Map for The City of Elko, Nevada, recorded as file no.
528401, in the office of the Elko county Recorder, on December 10, 2004, further described as follows;

Beginning at a point that bears South 1°22°04” East, a distance of 1,199.76 feet, from the west quarter
corner of said Section 16;

Thence, North 89°12°07” East, a distance of 50.00 feet;
Thence, South 0°47°53” East, a distance of 50.00 feet;
Thence, South 89°12°07” West, a distance of 50.00 feet;

Thence, North 0°47°53” West, a distance of 50.00 feet, more or less, to the point of beginning.

This lease area contains an area of 12,500 square feet.

The basis of bearings for this description is the Parcel Map for The City of Elko, Nevada, recorded as file
no. 528401, in the office of the Elko county Recorder, on December 10, 2004.

Description prepared by:
City of Elko

Robert Thibault, P.E., P.L.S.
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Agenda Item V.A.

10.

11.

12.

13.

Elko City Council
Agenda Action Sheet

Title: Review, consideration, and possible action to accept the resignation of Arts
and Culture Advisory Board Member Simone Turner, and matters related thereto.
FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

Meeting Date: January 9, 2018

Agenda Category: NEW BUSINESS

Time Required: 5§ Minutes

Background Information: Ms. Simone Turner’s letter of resignation has been
included in the agenda packet for review. CC

Budget Information:
Appropriation Required: N/A
Budget amount available: N/A
Fund name: N/A

Business Impact Statement: Not Required

Supplemental Agenda Information: Resignation Letter from Ms. Simone Turner

Recommended Motion: Accept the resignation of Arts and Culture Advisory Board
Member Simone Turner

Prepared By:
Committee/Other Agency Review:
Council Action:

Council Agenda Distribution: Ms. Simone Turner
simonemariet @gmail.com

Created on 12/18/2018 Council Agenda Action Sheet Page 1of 1



From: Simone Turner [mailto:simonemariet@gmail.com]

Sent: Wednesday, November 01, 2017 2:41 PM

To: Jeremy Draper <jdraper@elkocitynv.gov>; Catherine Wines <gatherine @r6studio.com>; Kim
Wilkinson <kwilkinson@elkocitynv.gov>

Subject: My resignation.

Hello all,

I am tendering my resignation as of today 11/1/2017. I can no longer fulfill my duties as a
chairperson on the Arts and Cultural advisory board. As some of you may know I am care giver
to my father, and I need to be closer to home more. Also I am an artist first and foremost and 1
worry about conflicts of interest with my membership on the board. I can and intend to serve the
rest of this year, and December 31st. will be my last day. Thank you for allowing me to serve,
and I do look forward to contributing my time and efforts to helping advance the arts and culture
in Elko, but as a private citizen. Sincerely

Simone Turner



Agenda Item V.B.

10.

11.

12.

13.

Elko City Council
Agenda Action Sheet

Title: Review, discussion, and possible authorization to advertise for one (1) vacant
position on the Arts and Culture Advisory Board, and matters related thereto. FOR
POSSIBLE ACTION

Meeting Date: January 9, 2018

Agenda Category: NEW BUSINESS
Time Required: 5§ Minutes
Background Information: Arts and Culture Advisory Board Member Simone
Turner has submitted her resignation from the Board, which leaves one vacant
position. CC
Budget Information:

Appropriation Required: N/A

Budget amount available: N/A

Fund name: N/A

Business Impact Statement: Not Required

Supplemental Agenda Information: Letter of Resignation submitted by Ms. Simone
Turner

Recommended Motion: Authorize Staff to advertise for one (1) vacant position on the
Arts and Culture Advisory Board

Prépared By: Curtis Calder, City Manager

Committee/Other Agency Review:

Council Action:

Council Agenda Distribution: Catherine Wines, Chairperson

Arts and Culture Advisory Board
catherine @ré6studio.com

Created on 12/18/2017 Council Agenda Action Sheet Page 1of 1



From: Simone Turner [mailto:simonemariet@gmail.com]

Sent: Wednesday, November 01, 2017 2:41 PM

To: Jeremy Draper <jdraper@elkocitynv.gov>; Catherine Wines <catherine @réstudio.com>; Kim
Wilkinson <kwilkinson@elkocitynv.gov>

Subject: My resignation.

Hello all,

I am tendering my resignation as of today 11/1/2017. I can no longer fulfill my duties as a
chairperson on the Arts and Cultural advisory board. As some of you may know I am care giver
to my father, and I need to be closer to home more. Also I am an artist first and foremost and 1
worry about conflicts of interest with my membership on the board. I can and intend to serve the
rest of this year, and December 31st. will be my last day. Thank you for allowing me to serve,
and I do look forward to contributing my time and efforts to helping advance the arts and culture
in Elko, but as a private citizen. Sincerely

Simone Turner



Agenda Item V.C.

10.

11.

12.

13.

Elko City Council
Agenda Action Sheet

Title: Review, consideration, and possible action to modify the fees currently
charged for reuse water as defined in Resolution 2-08, and matters related thereto.
FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

Meeting Date: January 9, 2018

Agenda Category: NEW BUSINESS
Time Required: 15 Minutes
Background Information: At the December 12, 2017 Council meeting, ‘“a Motion was
made by Mayor Johnson, seconded by Councilwoman Simons, to direct Staff to
solicit bids for the WREF Fill Station less the scope of work of the electronic reader
that the City of Elko would not bill for effluent water”.
Currently, construction water is the only use which we bill for reuse water. RL
Budget Information:

Appropriation Required:

Budget amount available:

Fund name:
Business Impact Statement: Not Required

Supplemental Agenda Information: Resolution 2-08

Recommended Motion: My recommendation would not be to waive the fee, but
rather increase this fee to $.75/1000 gallons (1/2 the potable water rate). RL

Prepared By: Ryan Limberg, Utilities Director
Committee/Other Agency Review:
Council Action:

Council Agenda Distribution:

Created on 12/21¢/2017 Council Agenda Action Sheet Page 1 of 1



Upon introduction by Councilman Jay Elquist, seconded by Councilman Jim Conner following
Resolution and Order was passed and adopted: ‘

CITY OF ELKO
Resolution No. 2-08

A Resolution Establishing a Fee for Treated Effluent Construction Water pursuant to Title
9, Chapter 5, Section 30 of the Elko City Code, and matters related thereto.

WHEREAS, the Elko City Code Title 9, Chapter 5, Section 30, provides that the City
Council may, by resolution, establish a fee for treated effluent construction water; and

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Elko has deemed it necessary WHEREAS,
In order to recover costs and meet demands of the public, the City has determined a need to
adopt Treated Effluent Construction Water Metered Rates.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED AND ORDERED by the City Council of
the City of Elko that fees for treated effluent construction water be added as follows:

TREATED EFFLUENT CONSTRUCTION WATER METERED RATES

Deposit: The applicant shall deposit, in advance, the estimated cost of installing and
removing the facilities required to furnish said service, exclusive of the cost of salvageable
material. Upon discontinuance of service, the actual cost shall be determined and an
adjustment made as an additional charge, refund or credit. If service is supplied through a fire
hydrant, the applicant will be charged in accordance with the following rate schedule:

Flat charge per connection, for both installation and removal of service facilities, $75.00
including meter

Each additional move of facilities to another location
$25.00

Rates: The rate for metered service shall be forty cents ($.40) per one thousand (1,000)
gallons. The minimum charge for water shall be fifteen dollars ($15.00) per month. Water
charges shall be billed monthly.

IT IS FURTHER RESOLVED, that upon adoption of this Resolution by the City Council, it
shall be signed by the Mayor and attested to by the City Clerk and shall be in full force and effect
April 1, 2008.



PASSED AND ADOPTED this 11th day of March, 2008.

CITY OF ELKO

Gt ey

/YYﬁCHAEL LF zgu( Maygt

ATTEST:

_ Nl Oue-

SHANELL OWEN, City Clerk

AYES: Mayor Mike Franzoia, Councilmen: Jay Elquist, Jim Conner, Chris Johnson, John
Patrick Rice

NAYS: None
ABSENT: None

ABSTAIN: None



Agenda Item V.D.

10.

11.

12.

13.

Elko City Council
Agenda Action Sheet

Title: Review, consideration, and possible action to initiate an amendment to Title 4,
Chapter 6 of the Elko City Code entitled “Room Tax” and matters related thereto.
FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

Meeting Date: January 9, 2018

Agenda Category: NEW BUSINESS

Time Required: 10 Minutes

Background Information: City Staff is recommending several changes to the Room
Tax Code to assist with reporting deadlines and auditing compliance. SO

Budget Information:
Appropriation Required: N/A
Budget amount available: N/A
Fund name: N/A

Business Impact Statement: Not Required

Supplemental Agenda Information: Draft Ordinance

Recommended Motion: Approve initiation of Title 4, Chapter 6 of the Elko City Code
entitled “Room Tax’’ and refer the matter for first reading.

Prepared By: Shanell Owen, City Clerk
Committee/Other Agency Review:
Council Action:

Agenda Distribution:

Created on 12/21/2017 Council Agenda Action Sheet Page 1 0of 1



CITY OF ELKO
ORDINANCE NO.

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING TITLE 4, CHAPTER 6 OF THE ELKO CITY CODE,
ENTITLED “ROOM TAX” AND MATTERS RELATED THERETO

WHEREAS, the City of Elko desires to amend the Elko City Room Tax Code pertaining
to room tax due dates and penalties;

WHEREAS, the City of Elko has determined that the proposed amendments will assist
with transient fodging audits;

WHEREAS, the City of Elko has determined that the proposed amendments will provide
clarification for transient lodging twenty-eight (28) day exemptions.

WHEREAS, the City of Elko has determined that the proposed amendment will assist in
meeting the State requirements for transient lodging tax distributions and required reporting;

WHEREAS, the City of Elko has determined that promotional packages associated with
transient lodging are no longer needed;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE
CITY OF ELKO, NEVADA

For amendment purposes, words which are in bold and underlined are additions to the
Ordinance, and words which are lined through and bold are deleted from the Ordinance.

SECTION 1. Title 4, Chapter 6, Section 1 of the Elko City Code is hereby amended as follows:
4-6-1 DEFINITIONS:

RENTAL BUSINESS:

A. Rent: The act of permitting a person to use or occupy any portion of a transient lodging
rental business in exchange for a fee paid, or the compensation paid for such use or
occupancy. The terms “rent” and “lease” shall have the same meaning in this Chapter.

B. Transient Lodging Rental Business: The operating of any business which provides
“transient lodging”, wherein a room, space of other accommodation is rented for a period
of less than twenty-eight (28) days for use by the same tenant, to include any room, space
or other accommodation which is rented to the same tenant in successive terms, the total
of which is less than twenty-eight (28) days each, but not to include any room, space or
other accommodation which is rented, for a tenant, who is a natural person, that signs,
prior to their stay, a Transient Occupancy Tax 28 Day Exemption Form to stay at
that Transient Lodging facility for a term of twenty-eight days (28) or longer. The fact
that the guest may have actually stayed for twenty-eight (28) days or longer is not in
itself sufficient to claim exemption from the tax. In the event a business rents a portion
of its rooms, spaces or other accommodations for terms of less than twenty-eight (28)
days and another portion of its rooms, spaces or other accommodations for terms of
twenty-eight (28) days or more, only those rooms, spaces or other accommodations

1



rented for terms of less than twenty-eight (28) days shall constitute a “transient lodging
rental business”.

TRANSIENT LODGING: The following types of lodging:

I. Any other establishment that rents rooms, spaces or other accommodations to temporary
or transient guests having three (3) four-(4} or more rooms, spaces or other
accommodations for rent.

SECTION 2. Title 4, Chapter 6, Section 2 of the Elko City Code is hereby amended as follows:
4-6-2: TAX ON TRANSIENT LODGING:

There is hereby fixed and imposed on every licensee operating a transient lodging rental business
within the city a transient lodging tax in the total amount of fourteen percent (14%) to be
collected as follows:

Fourteen percent (14%) of the gross income actually received, excluding the lodging tax, by each
licensee for transient lodging rentals. Complimentary transient lodging (transient lodging which
is provided at no cost to the occupant) is nontaxable. To be considered complimentary transient
lodging, the transient lodging must be provided on an individual basis and not as part of any
established package, advertised or otherwise, which includes other products or services.
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SECTION 3. Title 4, Chapter 6, Section 4 of the Elko City Code is hereby amended as follows:

There shall be, and hereby is, exempted from the license tax on transient lodging, each rental by
any lessee of a room, space or other accommodation when the room, space, or other
accommodation is paid for, directly, from a federal, state or local governmental entity provided
that a Governmental Agency Exemption Claim Form is completed.

A Licensee is entitled to an exemption for any Lessee who is a natural person, that signs,
prior to their stay, a Transient Occupancy Tax 28 Day Exemption Form to stay at that
Transient Lodging facility for a period of at least 28 days. If the Lessee does not honor the
Exemption Form and leaves before staying at least 28 days, the Licensee will owe the
Transient Lodging Tax for the period the room was occupied. The fact that the guest may
have actually staved 28 or more days is not in itself sufficient to claim exemption from the
tax.

SECTION 4. Title 4, Chapter 6, Section 9 of the Elko City Code is hereby amended as follows:

4-6-9: PAYMENT OF TAX, INTEREST AND PENALTIES:

Every licensee shall pay the transient lodging tax to the city clerk on or before the tenth day of
the month when such tax shall accrue. Payment of the transient lodging tax shall become
delinquent on the sixteenth eleventh day of the month. Such tax becomes payable to the city
clerk by the licensee pursuant hereto. All electronic payments must be transmitted and
received by the City on or before the tenth day of the month. Mailed payments must be
postmarked on or before the tenth day of the month.

SECTION 5. Title 4, Chapter 6, Section 11 of the Elko City Code is hereby amended as
follows:

4-6-11: EXAMINATION OF BOOKS AND RECORDS:

The tax administrator and his duly authorized agent are empowered to examine and audit the
books, papers and records of any licensee or person operating a transient lodging rental business

and to make investigations in connection therewith. Audits will cover a three (3) year period.

The audit will be conducted at no expense to the Licensee.

A. Required Records. Each Licensee is required to maintain daily records which support
amounts reported on the Operator’s Transient lodging tax returns. Records shall
include, but may not be limited to the following minimum information:

3



1. Total rooms available and occupied.

2. Receipts, guest folios, registration detail, including the name of the property, name
of the guest occupying the room, room number, date paid, dates of occupancy, and
breakdown of what was paid for by the guest with Transient Lodging Tax stated

separately.
3. Total daily Gross Receipts.

4. A detailed listing of claimed nontaxable/exempt room revenue that include name of
suest, room number, dates and amounts paid, and date(s) of occupancy.

5. Total amount of Transient Lodging Tax collected.

6. Number of non-revenue or Complimentary Rooms.

7. Folio and other documentation for all exemptions and adjustments to revenue to

include proof of payment directly from governmental entity per Section 4-6-4.

8. Records supporting Complimentary Rooms revenue.

9. Transient Occupancy Tax 28 Day Exemption Forms.

10. Government Exemption Claim Forms.

11. All documentation used to complete the Operator’s Transient lodging tax return
and retained as backup to the return.

Acceptable methods of maintaining the above list include bound receipt books, guest
folios, registration cards, daily transaction reports, general ledgers, cash journals,

register and/or computer tapes, computerized records, and any other hooks and
records deemed necessary to complete the Transient Lodging Tax audit. In addition,

Licensees shall provide documents that can be used to support revenues and
exemptions. Failure to provide adequate documentation supporting transient lodging

tax returns may result in revocation, suspension or termination of Business License. All
information provided during the course of an audit, including tax returns, audit
records, etc., will be kept confidential.

. Retention of Records. Every Licensee shall keep all financial records, receipts, invoices,
and other pertinent documents as listed and described in Required Records for a period
of not less than four (4) years from the close of the accounting year to which the returns
relate.

. Availability of Records. Upon written notification of a Transient Lodging Tax audit,
the Licensee shall provide all records supporting Transient lodging tax returns filed

with the City of Elko. These records shall be available to the Room Tax Auditors at the
property location or the offices of the City of Elko within ten (10) business days unless

other arrangements are made with the City of Elko.

If the Transient Lodging Tax audit is conducted at the property, the Licensee shall
provide reasonable accommodations for the Room Tax auditors.

4
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Auditors will make copies or request that the property make copies of original records
to be retained as part of the audit work papers which substantiate the audit findings.

Records may also be provided electronically either through e-mail, cd or flash drive.

Failure to retain or refusal to furnish such records as described in this section shall not
affect the City of Elko’s authority to assess a deficiency for such periods. The City may
utilize and apply available data to those periods in which records are unavailable.

1. Failure to Cooperate with a Transient Lodging Tax Audit. Upon notification to
the City by the Auditor that a Licensee is failing to cooperate with a Transient
Lodging Tax Audit, the City Council may terminate, suspend or revoke the
Licensee’s Business License as outlined in City Code 4-1-14. Failing to cooperate
is defined as refusing to provide sufficient information to the auditor in order to
conduct the audit.

D. Notice of Audit Determination. Following the completion of a Transient L.odging Tax
audit, the Licensee will be advised in writing of the audit findings. The notice may be
served personally, by certified mail, and/or e-mail.

E. Time Limitation. If an assessment for underpayment or nonpayment of Transient
Lodging Tax is made, the Licensee has thirty (30) calendar days in which to make
payment and/or file a written appeal of the findings. If payment and/or written appeal
of the assessment is not received within thirty (30) calendar days, the City of Elko shall
place a lien against the property. Appeals shall be placed on a City Council agenda for
consideration.

Should a credit for overpayment be due, the credit will be refunded within thirty (30)
calendar days.

SECTION 6. Title 4, Chapter 6, Section 12 of the Elko City Code is hereby amended as
follows:

4-6-12: PENALTIES AND INTEREST:

If the transient lodging tax is not paid on or before the fifteenth tenth day of the month in which
it becomes due, or if such day falls on a Saturday, Sunday or legal holiday, on the next
succeeding day not a Saturday, Sunday or legal holiday, then the licensee shall pay a penalty of
fifteen percent (15%) of the unpaid, due and delinquent transient lodging tax, and the licensee
shall also pay the costs of collection of the tax, penalty, court costs and attorney fees. If
payment of the transient lodging tax is not received within sixty (60) calendar days
following the tenth day of the month, the City of Elko shall place a lien against the
property. Further action beyond seventy (70) calendar days may include termination,

suspension or revocation of the Licensee’s Business License as outlined in City Code 4-1-14.

SECTION 7. Title 4, Chapter 6, Section 15 of the Elko City Code is hereby amended as
follows:



4-6-15 FORMS, AND COSTS AND REQUIRED REPORTING :

A. The city clerk is hereby empowered and authorized to designate the form of and have
prepared or printed all stationery, supplies, records, notices, receipts, licenses and other
forms that the city clerk deems necessary or advisable in connection with the collection,
administration and disbursement of the proceeds of this transient lodging tax, and to
obtain all supplies, records and other property and equipment deemed necessary by the
city clerk in connection with the collection, administration, use and disbursement of the
said transient lodging tax proceeds. All costs, expenses, charges and debts incurred by the
city, or by the city clerk under the provisions of this chapter, in connection with the
imposition, collection, administration, use and disbursement of this transient lodging tax
and the proceeds thereof shall be paid out of the recreational fund provided for in this
chapter.

=

The Licensee shall complete all noted “required information” on transient lodging
forms in their entirety. The Licensee may complete all noted ‘“‘optional
information” on transient lodging forms.

SECTION 8. All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby repealed, but
only to the extent of such conflict.

SECTION 9. If any section, paragraph, clause or provision of this Ordinance shall for any
reason be held to be invalid, unenforceable or unconstitutional by any court of competent
jurisdiction, the invalidity, unenforceability of such section, paragraph, clause or provision shall
not affect any remaining provision of this Ordinance.

SECTION 10. Upon adoption, the City Clerk of the City of Elko is hereby directed to have this
ordinance published by title only, together with the Councilman voting for or against its passage
in a newspaper of general circulation within the time established by law, for at least one
publication.

SECTION I1. This Ordinance shall be effective April 1, 2018.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this day of , 2018, by the following vote
of the Elko City Council.

VOTE:
AYES:

NAYES:

ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:




APPROVED this day of , 2018.

CITY OF ELKO

By:

CHRIS JOHNSON, Mayor
ATTEST:

SHANELL OWEN, City Clerk



Agenda Item V.E.

10.

11.

12.

13.

Elko City Council
Agenda Action Sheet

Title: Review, consideration, and possible initiation for the adoption of the ‘2018
International Existing Building Code’ and possible amendments to related existing
City Code sections and/or the model IEBC, and matters related thereto. FOR
POSSIBLE ACTION

Meeting Date: January 09, 2018

Agenda Category: NEW BUSINESS

Time Required: 15 Minutes

Background Information: The Council took action at its meeting on April, 11 2017
directing Staff to adopt the 2018 Building Code. Currently the City has adopted the
2009 Building code. During the 2015 code change cycle the international code
council membership voted to delete Chapter 34, Existing Structures, from the 2015
IBC code and reference the International Existing Building Code (IEBC). As a
result, the City will be required to adopt the International Existing Building Code as
a separate model code. The 2015 IEBC contains more extensive provisions than
Chapter 34 of the 2009 IBC, such as seismic and energy requirements. Staff will
evaluate the appropriateness of the level of adoption and make a recommendation to
the Council. JF

Budget Information:
Appropriation Required: N/A
Budget amount available: N/A
Fund name: N/A

Business Impact Statement: Not Required

Supplemental Agenda Information: Agenda Action Sheet Referencing motion made
for adoption of 2018 Model Building Codes.

Recommended Motion: Direct Staff to initiate the adoption of the <2018
International Existing Building Code’ and possible amendments to related existing
City Code sections and/or the model IEBC.

Prepared By: Jeff Ford, Building Official

Committee/Other Agency Review: Scott A. Wilkinson; Assistant City Manager;
David Stanton, City Attorney

Council Action:
Agenda Distribution:

Created on 01/03/2018 Council Agenda Action Sheet Page 1 of 1



Agenda Item # V.C.

10.
11,

12.

*&

Elko City Council
Agenda Action Sheet

Title: Discussion and possible direction to Staff to pursue adoption of the 2018
Model Building Codes, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

Meeting Date: April 11, 2017

Agenda Category: UNFINISHED BUSINESS

Time Required: 15 Minutes

Background Information: At a recent NOBO (Nevada Organization of Building
Officials) meeting a proposal was presented to the members to have a statewide
adoption of the 2018 Model Building Codes. This would be a combined effort of all
jurisdictions to develop common amendments, and have the entire State
implementing a common code. The goal is to adopt the 2018 Model Building Codes
by July of 2018. TS

Budget Information: NA

Business Impact Statement: Not Required

Supplemental Agenda Information: NA

Recommended Motion: Pleasure of the Council for possible preparation for possible
adoption of the 2018 Model Building Codes.

Prepared By: Ted Schnoor, Building Official
Committee Other Agency Review: NA

Council Action:
A motion was made by Councilwvoman Simons, seconded by Councilman

Schmidtlein, to direct staff to prepare for possible adoption of the 2018 Model Building

Codes.

13.

The motion passed unanimously. (4-0)

Agenda Distribution;

Created on 04:04:2017 Council Agenda Action Sheet



Agenda Item V.F.

10.

11.

12.

13.

Elko City Council
Agenda Action Sheet

Title: Review, consideration, and possible initiation for the adoption of the ‘2018
International Property Maintenance Code’ and possible amendments to related
existing City Code sections and/or the model IPMC, and matters related thereto.
FOR POSSIBLE ACTION
Meeting Date: January 9, 2018
Agenda Category: NEW BUSINESS
Time Required: 15 Minutes
Background Information: The Council took action at its meeting on April 11, 2017
directing Staff to adopt the 2018 Building Code. Currently the City has adopted the
2009 Building Code. The 2018 Building Code contains a section entitled
“International Property Maintenance Code”. Enforcement of this code will require
additional staff and training. As a result, Staff is not recommending adoption of this
model code. In addition, the adoption process would require a business impact
statement. JF
Budget Information:

Appropriation Required: N/A

Budget amount available: N/A

Fund name: N/A
Business Impact Statement: Required
Supplemental Agenda Information: Overview of Code & Additional Information
Recommended Motion: Pleasure of the Council.

Prepared By: Jeff Ford, Building Official

Committee/Other Agency Review: Scott A. Wilkinson, Assistant City Manager; David
Stanton, City Attorney

Council Action:

Agenda Distribution:

Created on 01/03/2018 Council Agenda Action Sheet Page10f1



CODE OVERVIEW

The International Property Maintenance Code (IPMC) establishes minimum requirements for the
maintenance of existing buildings through model code regulations that contain clear and specific
property maintenance and property improvement provisions. The IPMC is a maintenance
document intended to establish minimum maintenance standards for basic equipment, light,
ventilation, heating, sanitation and fire safety. Responsibility is fixed among owners,
operators and occupants for code compliance. The IPMC provides for the regulation and safe
use of existing structures in the interest of the social and economic welfare of the community.

GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

1.

Exterior Property Areas: Exterior property/premises shall be maintained in a clean, safe
and sanitary condition. Grading and drainage shall be maintained to prevent erosion.
Sidewalks and driveways, parking spaces and similar areas shall be kept in a proper state
of repair. Property shall be maintained free from weeds or excessive plant growth.
Premises shall be kept free from rodent harborage and infestation. Assessory structures,
fences and walls shall be maintained structurally and in good repair. Motor vehicles that
are inoperative or unlicensed shall not be parked, kept or stored on any premises in a state
of major disassembly, disrepair, or in the process of being stripped or dismantled
(vehicles may only be painted in an approved spray booth).

Swimming Pools, Spas and Hot Tubs: Pools shall be maintained in clean/sanitary
condition/good repair. Private pools, hot tubs and spas enclosures compliance items
apply.

Exterior Structure: Exterior of structures shall be maintained in good repair, structurally
sound and sanitary so as not to pose a threat to public health, safety or welfare. This
includes insect screens on windows, all windows (except fixed) must be openable and
capable of being held in position by window hardware. Roofs shall have no defects,
chimney, stairways, decks, porches and balconies, overhang extensions, exterior walls,
foundation walls, structural members, premises identification, exterior coverings, doors,
basement window guards, building security, hatchways and gates would all be regulated
by this code.

Interior Structure: The interior of a structure and equipment therein shall be maintained
in good repair, structurally sound and in a sanitary condition. Occupants shall keep that
part of the structure that they occupy or control in a clean and sanitary condition. Every
owner of a structure containing a rooming house, housekeeping units, a hotel, a
dormitory, two or more dwelling units or two or more nonresidential occupancies, shall
maintain, in a clean and sanitary condition, the shared or public areas of the structure and
exterior property. This section of the code regulates unsafe conditions, structural
members, interior surfaces (including peeling, chipping, flacking, or abraded paint), stairs
and walking surfaces, handrails and guards and interior doors.

Component Serviceability: This section regulates unsafe conditions of components such
as concrete, soil, aluminum, masonry, steel and wood.

Handrails and Guardrails: Existing stairs/guardrails/handrails would have to be
maintained to currently IRC/IBC regulations.

Rubbish and Garbage: This section regulates the accumulation of rubbish or garbage,
rubbish disposal, rubbish storage facilities, refrigerators, garbage disposal, garbage
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facilities and containers. Leak-proof covered containers for rubbish/garbage (at all times)
are some of the requirements of this section.

8. Pest Elimination: Structures shall be kept free from insect and rodent infestation. All
insects/rodents have to be exterminated by approved processes that are not injurious to
human health. The owner shall be responsible for pest elimination within the structure
prior to renting or leasing the structure. The occupant of a one-family dwelling or of a
single-tenant nonresidential structure shall be responsible for pest elimination on the
premises. The same applies for multiple occupancy dwelling units.

LIGHT, VENTILATION AND OCCUPANCY LIMITATIONS

Provisions in this section regulate light and ventilation requirements. The owner of the structure
shall be responsible for providing and maintaining light, ventilation and space conditions in
compliance with these requirements. A person shall not occupy as owner-occupant, or permit
another person to occupy and premises that do not comply with the requirements. This section
requires spaces to be maintained to more modern codes. This includes habitable spaces, common
halls and stairways, bathing and toilet rooms, cooking facilities, and other spaces. Minimum
room widths and heights and occupancy limits would be enforceable.

PLUMBING FACITLITIES AND FIXTURE REQUIREMENTS

Minimum plumbing systems, facilities and plumbing fixtures shall be governed under this code.
The owner of the structure shall provide and maintain such plumbing facilities and plumbing
fixtures in compliance with the requirements. A person shall not occupy as owner-occupant or
permit another person to occupy any structure or premises that does not comply with the
requirements. Required facilities would be enforced for existing dwelling units, rooming houses,
hotels, employees’ facilities, drinking facilities and public toilet facilities. Water systems,
sanitary drainage system and storm drainage compliance items are also covered in this code.

MECHANICAL AND ELECTRICAL REQUIREMENTS

Minimum mechanical and electrical facilities and equipment show be governed by this code.
The owner of the structure shall provide and maintain mechanical and electrical facilities and
equipment in compliance with the requirements. A person shall not occupy as owner-occupant
or permit another person to occupy any premises that does not comply with the requirements of
this code. Heating facilities shall be regulated for residential occupancies and occupiable work
spaces. Minimum temperatures of 68 degrees Fahrenheit in all habitable rooms, bathrooms and
toilet rooms (excluding exceptions) shall be maintained from dates set by jurisdiction for
residential occupancies. Minimum temperatures of 65 degrees Fahrenheit in all indoor
occupiable work spaces shall be maintained from dates set by jurisdiction for residential
occupancies. Mechanical equipment, appliances, fireplaces, solid fuel-burning appliances,
cooking appliances and water heating appliances shall be properly installed and maintained in a
safe working condition, and shall be capable of performing the intended function. Electrical
facilities shall be provided in every occupied building in compliance with this code. Electrical
equipment, wiring and appliances shall be properly installed and maintained in a safe and
approved manner. Conditions are set forth for receptacles, luminaires and wiring. Elevators,
escalators and dumbwaiters are regulated in this code. Duct systems shall be maintained free of
obstructions and shall be capable of performing the required function.
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FIRE SAFETY REQUIREMENTS

Minimum conditions and standards for fire safety relating to structures and exterior premises,
including fire safety facilities and equipment provisions apply. A safe, continuous and
unobstructed path of travel shall be provided. Means of egress shall comply with the
International Fire Code. Aisles, locked doors and emergency escape openings requirements
apply. Fire-resistance rating provisions such as fire-resistance-rated assemblies, unsafe
conditions, maintenance, fire blocking and draft stopping, smoke barriers and partitions, fire
walls, fire barriers and fire partitions shall apply. Fire detection, alarm and extinguishing
systems, mechanical smoke exhaust systems, and smoke and heat vents shall be maintained in
accordance with the International Fire Code in an operative condition at all times, and shall be
replaced or repaired where defective. Multiple provisions/requirements pertaining to these items
are outlined in this code. Provisions are in place for carbon monoxide alarms and detection.

ENFORCEMENT or IMPACT:
This code would be enforced by a code official.

Fees and administrative provisions would need to be established and adopted for violations and
administration of the codes.

- Pros

General safety and health of the population against unsafe conditions/environments. Property
value increase may be expected. Regulation and enforcement of existing codes to existing
properties/premises. Improvement of living conditions to owners/lessee’s/visitors. Accessibility
and fire/life safety improvements to existing property and premises.

Cons

The owner of the premises shall maintain the structures and exterior property in compliance with
these requirements. Vacant structures and premises thereof or vacant land shall be maintained in
clean, safe, secure and sanitary condition as provided herein so as not to cause a blighting
problem or adversely affect the public health or safety. This would entail costs to the premise
owner and could cause a monetary hardship to property owners. There would be a cost to the
City of Elko for additional personnel to enforce the provisions of this code.
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Code OQutline/Table of Contents

Before applying the requirements ofthe IPMC it may be beneficial to understand its
arrangement and format The IPMC, like other codes published by ICC, is arranged and
organized to follow sequential steps that generally occur during an inspection. The IPMC is
divided into eight different parts:

Chapter 1 Scope and Administration: This chapter contains provisions for the application,
enforcement and administration of subsequent requirements of the code. In addition to
establishing the scope of the code, Chapter 1 identifies which buildings and structures
come under its purview. Chapter 1 is largely concerned with maintaining 'due process of
law" in enforcing the property maintenance criteria contained in the body of the code
Only through careful observation of the administrative provisions can the building official
reasonable expect to demonstrate that “equal protection under the law” has been provided.
Chapter 2 Definitions: Where understanding of a term’s definition is especially key to or
necessary for understanding of a particular code provision the term is shown in italics. This is
true only for those terms that have a meaning that is unique to the code.

Chapter 3 General Requirements: Chapter 3, ‘General Requirements,’ is broad in scope. It
includes a variety of requirements for the exterior property areas as well as the interior and
exterior elements of the structure. This chapter provides requirements that are intended to
maintain a minimum level of safety and sanitation for both the general public and the
occupants of a structure, and to maintain a building's structural and weather-resistance
performance. Chapter 3 provides specific criteria for regulating the installation and
maintenance of specific bulldlng components; maintenance requirements for vacant
structures and land; requirements regulating the safety, sanitation and appearance of the
interior and exterior of structures and all exterior property areas, accessory structures;
vehicle storage regulations and establishes who is responsible for complying with the
chapter's provisions. This chapter also contains the requirements for swimming pools, spas
and hot tubs and the requirements for protective barriers and gates in these barriers.
Chapter 3 establishes the responsible parties for exterminating insects and rodents, and
maintaining sanitary conditions in all types of occupancies.

Chapter 4 Light, Ventilation and Occupancy Limitations: The purposes of Chapter 4 are
to set forth these requirements in the code and to establish the minimum environment for
occupiable and habitable buildings, by establishing the minimum criteria for light and
ventilation and identifying occupancy limitations including minimum room width and area,
minimum ceiling height and restrictions to prevent overcrowding. This chapter also
provides for alternative arrangements of windows and other devices to comply with the
requirements for light and ventilation and prohibits certain room arrangements and occupancy
uses.

Chapter 5 Plumbing Facilities and Fixture Requirements: Chapter 5 establishes the
minimum criteria for the installation, maintenance and location of plumbing systems and
facilities, including the water supply system, water heating appliances, sewage disposal
system and related plumbing fixtures. Sanitary and clean conditions in occupied buildings
are dependent upon certain basic plumbing principles, including providing potable water to
a building, providing the basic fixtures to effectively utilize that water and property
removing waste from the building Chapter 5 establishes the minimum criteria to verify
that these principles are maintained throughout the life of a building.
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Chapter 6 Mechanical and Electrical Requirements: The purpose of Chapter 6 is to
establish minimum performance requirements for heating, electrical and mechanical
facilities and to establish minimum standards for the safety of'these facilities. This chapter
establishes minimum criteria for the installation and maintenance of the following: heating
and air-conditioning equipment, appliances and their supporting systems; water heating
equipment, appliances and systems; cooking equipment and appliances; ventilation and
exhaust equipment; gas and liquid fuel distribution piping and components; fireplaces and
solid fuel-burning appliances; chimneys and vents; electrical services; lighting fixtures;
electrical receptacle outlets; electrical distribution system equipment, devices and wiring;
and elevators, escalators and dumbwaiters.

Chapter 7 Fire Safety Requirements: The purpose of Chapter 7 isto address those fire
hazards that arise as the result of a building's occupancy It also provides minimum
requirements for fire safety issues that are most likely to arise in older buildings. This
chapter contains requirements for means of egress in existing buildings, including path of
travel, required egress width, means of egress doors and emergency escape openings.
Chapter 7 establishes the minimum requirements for fire safety facilities and fire protection
systems, as these are essential fire safety systems.

Chapter 8 Referenced Standards: The code contains numerous references to standards
that are used to regulate materials and methods of construction. Chapter 8 contains a
comprehensive list of all standards that are referenced in the code. The standards are part of the
code to the extent of the reference to the standard. Compliance with the referenced standard
is necessary for compliance with this code. By providing specifically adopted standards,
the construction and installation requirements necessary for compliance with the code can
be readily determined. The basis for code compliance is, therefore established and available on
an equal basis to the code official, contractor, designer and owner.

Chapter 8 is organized in a manner that makes it easy to locate specific standards It lists all
of the referenced standards, alphabetically, by acronym of the promulgating agency of the
standard Each agency's standards are then listed m either alphabetical or numeric order
based upon the standard Identification. The list also contains the title of the standard; the
edition (date) ofthe standard referenced; any addendums included as part of the ICC
adoption; and the section or sections of this code that reference the standard.
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Agenda Item V.G.

10.

11.

12.

13.

Elko City Council
Agenda Action Sheet

Title: Review, consideration, and discussion for the appointment of one (1) new
member to the Parks and Recreation Advisory Board, and matters related thereto.
FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

Meeting Date: January 9, 2018

Agenda Category: NEW BUSINESS

Time Required: 5 Minutes

Background Information: Council authorized Staff to advertise for one (1) open
position on the Parks and Recreation Advisory Board at a previous meeting in early
2017. Since then, Staff has received three letters of interest from Ms. Katie
Archuleta, Mr. Christopher Kentopp, and Ms. Amber Fox. All have expressed a
desire to serve as a member on the Board. The appointment will be for the

remainder of the vacant term through June 30, 2019. JW

Budget Information:

Appropriation Required: N/A
Budget amount available: N/A
Fund Name: N/A

Business Impact Statement: Not Required

Supplemental Agenda Information: Letters of Interest from Ms. Katie Archuleta, Mr.
Christopher Kentopp, and Ms. Amber Fox

Recommended Motion: Pleasure of the Council. Appoint either candidate to serve on
the Parks and Recreation Advisory Board for remainder of the vacant term through
June 30, 2019.

Prepared By: James Wiley, Director of Parks and Recreation

Committee/Other Agency Review:

Council Action;

Council Agenda Distribution: Ms. Katie Archuleta
karchuleta@elkocitynv.gov

Mr. Christopher Kentopp
ci.kentopp@gmail.com

Ms. Amber Fox
Amberfox11@ gmail.com

Created on 12/28/2018 Council Agenda Action Sheet Page 1 0of 1



December 14, 2017

James Wiley

Park & Recreation Department
723 Railroad Street

Elko, NV 89801

Dear James,

I am writing to express my desire to volunteer for Parks & Recreation Advisory Board. | believe | would
be a great candidate for this position. { offer the ability to serve the term. | have been involved in Elko
for over 20 years. | am willing to meet and conduct such appointments of the Advisory Board and
Nevada Open Meeting Law.

| believe my perspective offers this position a fresh forward approach. My willingness to be of service
with over 20 year in customer relations. | enjoy being engaged in new and pioneering projects. | excel
in organizing and paying attention to detail.

I would be an asset as a volunteer because of my personal interest,

Sincerely,

Katie Archuleta



To whom it may concem:

I am interested in the vacant position currently open with the Parks and Rec. | feel like | would
be a good addition to the board with all the previous experience | have being involved in Parks
and Recreational Programs since 1 was a youth.

My past has sports all around it, starting at the age of 4 when | participated in my first triathlon
with the Ironkids. | wish | had photos of me back then, I'm sure they are covered in dust in my
mother’s attic right now. After that, | played soccer, t-ball and baseball for Elk Grove Park and
Rec. | fell in love with baseball when | figured out my hand-eye coordination, I'm not much of a
runner, with soccer, there’s definitely a lot of that. Looking back, | should have tried soccer
again, it's a sport i love playing with my children. As | leamed the sport of baseball, | became a
fanatic. The San Francisco Giants are my team. Growing up watching Barry Bonds and JT
Snow crush home runs, Jeff Kent turn doubles that looked like magic before he turned in the
orange and black for blue and white. | never got to attend any games at Candlestick, but the
games | have attended at ATT Park are that much sweeter. As | grew up, | was constant pick for
the All Star teams that got to play on the 4th of July at our local parks. Nothing beat the heat of
the day with a huge Slurpee and hot dog from 7Eleven after the games, then lighting sparklers
for all the neighbors in my dirty uniform. At the age of 10, | started swimming competitively with
a local US swim team. | continued swimming until | was 18. It was an experience worth being a
part of. Getting to travel around the state for meets was exhilarating. On occasion, my team
would have a team campground during the summer months. Singing songs and eating s'mores
after a day in the sun was killer. In high school, | swam on the Franklin High School team, | went
to Sections all four years. Sections was the district's meet for all the hot times in each event. |
also played water polo in the fall, but it was more for fun. The school didn't have that many
swimmers who could take a punch to the face, if you know what I'm saying. Water polo can be a
brutal sport. The worst injury | ever got was a cut to my cornea of my right eye. It could have
been worse if the referees didn't enforce the short finger and toe nails. | still have a scar to
prove it.

Atfter high school, the only sport | played was setting up a men’s softball team for a Elk Grove
Parks and Rec. Managing a team of serious misfits was educating. | hadn't met with any of
them before and ended up with a team that was organized from the Free Agent list the league
had provided me.

After having children, | always wanted to coach, but at the time, work had me too far from home
to make it to any practice or games. Now that my family is in Eiko, | can't wait to start coaching
my children. My daughter is the only one old enough to participate, but | see my boys itching to
chase down a ball.

As for my contributions towards being on a council, i don't know what to expect. It would be a
learning experience at first, no doubt. | don’t have a perfect memory, but one thing I've leamed
from school is how to take good notes. Hopefully that can contribute towards the overall
direction of the council.

CJm istoplr  Kendopp



AMBER FOX

=

AMBERMFOXI | @GMAIL.COM

e

775-397-3003

1231 2ND STREET
ELKO, NV 89801

ELKO CITY COUNCIL
CITY OF ELKO PARKS AND RECREATION
1751 COLLEGE AVENUE
ELKO, NV 89801

Dear Elko City Council,

| am writing to express my interest in the vacancy on the Elko Parks
and Recreation Committee. | have lived in the Elko area for 20+
years, and | care greatly for our community. Like many members of
the community, my friends and family utilize and enjoy the various
parks and recreational facilities in our area. | would like to be able to
contribute to ensuring these amenities continue to enhance the
experiences of our community members.

As a long-time resident in our area, | enjoy giving back to my
community. | have served on the board for Soroptimist International
of Elko as Secretary and Treasurer. In addition, | currently serve on
the Advisory Board for Communities in Schools of Northeastern
Nevada. | have taught Junior Achievement at Elko High School, as
well as participated in Elko High School's Junior Career Interviews
Program.

I have worked for Nevada State Bank for the past |0 years, serving
various roles for the Corporate Banking Group.

| believe | can bring valuable and unique perspective to the
committee.

I thank you for your time and consideration in this matter.

Sincerely,

Amber Fox




1231 2nd Street

Elko, NV 89801
775-397-3003
ambermfox11@gmail.com

OBJECTIVE

I wish to provide valuable and efficient support to the City of Etko Parks and
Recreation Committee. I like to be part of a highly productive, dynamic team
thatis able to successfully execute tasks/projects.

SKILLS & ABILITIES

Proficient in Microsoft Word, Excel and Outlook

¢ Analyzing financial data and making informed decisions
» Analyzing risk and making recommendations

¢  Good written and oral communication skills

« Highly organized and ambitious

¢ Customer service and problem solving

e Type 100+ WPM

EXPERIENCE

RELATIONSHIP MANAGER - VP, NEVADA STATE BANK

July 2016 - Current

Managing existing commercial loan portfolio and associated risks. Networking to bring in new
business. Training and managing under-staff to build team strength. Supporting Ag Lending

team in underwriting and loan portfolio management. Managing and keeping reports updated
with accurate/current information.

ASSISTANT RELATIONSHIP OFFICER ~ AVP, NEVADA STATE BANK
June 2010 - July 2016

Responsible for evaluating, analyzing and forming opinions for the approving or denying of
business banking and/or commercial loan applications according to business unit standards.
Gathering information as necessary to make sound decisions. Ensuring credit requests are
processed in accordance with bank policies. Responding to internal and external customer
inquiries while performing other duties as necessary to support the goals and objectives of
the department and business unit, Seeing loan applications through the process in its entirety.
Monitoring and reporting on Ag budget variances on a monthly basis. Partnering with the
Farm Service Agency for government guaranteed loan requests.

Received reward within the Bank for “Development - Living Core Values”



COMMERCIAL LENDING ASSISTANT, NEVADA STATE BANK
January 2008 - June 2010

Responsible for receiving and processing loan applications, financial documents, entity
documents and file organization. Preparing loan files and packages for loan signings.
Preparing various tracking reports for loan officers.

TRAFFIC/BILLING MANAGER, HOLIDAY BROADCASTING
September 2004 - January 2008

Responsible for receiving and processing insertion orders and scheduling
commercials for two radio stations. Tracking of accounts receivable,
reconciling accounts and handling collections. Producing basic radio ads,
voiced and music added.

EDUCATION

GREAT BASIN COLLEGE — ELKO, NV / FALL 2015
Accounting and Business Management classes

NEVADA STATE BANK~ ELKO, NV / 2010-CURRENT
Various lending related courses offered through the Bank

Farmer Mac seminars
Business Writing/Communication
Leadership seminars with Rena Hanks

SPRING CREEK HIGH SCHOOL — SPRING CREEK, NV / 2000-2003
Diploma

LEADERSHiP

I currently serve on the Advisory Board for Communities in Schools of
Northeastern Nevada.

[ previously participated in the Colleague Companion Program at Nevada
State Bank. This is a program that was implemented for new hires and
employee retention,

I previously served on the board for Soroptimist International of Elko as

Secretary from September 2013-2014 and as Treasurer from September
2014 through 2015,

EXTRACURRICULAR

JDRF Ride for the Cure - bike ride in Death Valley, CA ~ fundraising for Juvenile Diabetes

American Diabetes Foundation Tour de Cure - bike ride in Utah - fundraising for Juvenile
Diabetes

REFERENCES

AVAILABLE UPON REQUEST




Agenda Item VLA.

10.

11.

12.

13.

Elko City Council
Agenda Action Sheet

Title: Review, consideration, and possible action to accept a petition for annexation
of property to the City, filed and processed as Annexation No. 3-17 by Swire Coca-
Cola, Inc, consisting of approximately 3 acres of property located on the north side
of West Idaho Street, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION
Meeting Date: January 9, 2018

Agenda Category: PETITION

Time Required: 10 Minutes

Background Information:

Budget Information:

Appropriation Required: N/A

Budget amount available: N/A

Fund name: N/A
Business Impact Statement: Not Required
Supplemental Agenda Information: Application and Map
Recommended Motion: Pleasure of the Council
Prepared By: Cathy Laughlin, City Planner
Committee/Other Agency Review:
Council Action:
Agenda Distribution: Swire Coca-Cola, USA

Attn. Mr. Dan Reid

12634 South 265 West
Draper, UT 84020

Created on 12/19/2017 Council Agenda Action Sheet Page 10of 1



To:

* CITY OF ELKO
DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT

X 1755 COLLEGE AVENUE
** ELKO, NEVADA 89801
(775)777-7210

(775)777-7219 FAX

City Council

From: Jeremy Draper, Development Department
Copy: Planning Department

Date:

Re:

December 27, 2017
Annexation Petition 3-17, Swire Coca Cola

BACKGROUND INFORMATION:

1.

2.

s

7.
8.

The petition includes that portion of APN 006-09G-036 lying approximately 3,100 east
of Idaho Street and Interstate 80 containing more or less 3.00 acres of land.

The area is not identified as having annexation potential as shown in the adopted
Development Feasibility, Land Use, Water Infrastructure, Sanitary Sewer Infrastructure,
Transportation Infrastructure and Annexation Potential Report dated November 2012.
However this should not exclude the area for consideration for annexation.

The area fronts W. Idaho Street.

A project in which developers will extend City water to the edge of the property has been
approved and is expected to be constructed in the spring of 2018. The property lies within
the 5400 water service zone. City sewer does not exist in this area, however preliminary
design has been completed by the City of Elko Engineering Department, the development
would be required to install a dry sewer until such time as a force main is install to
provide sewer services to this area of the City.

Other non-city utilizes are located in the immediate area.

The area was included in the land use component of the master plan showing the area as
Highway Commercial. A recommendation from the Planning Commission was made at
their December 5, 2017 meeting to modify the Land Use Map in this area to an Industrial
Business Park Land Use due to the use of the existing facilities.

The applicant has submitted a rezone application for a Light Industrial Zone.

The proposed annexation appears logical and orderly.

RECOMMENDATION:

1.

Accept the petition for annexation 3-17, to include APN 006-09G-036 and refer the
matter to the Planning Commission for further consideration and recommendation to the
City Council.

C:\Users\sknopp\Downloads\EF03WUO.docx
Created by Jeremy Draper
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A CITY OF E LKO Website: www.elkocity.com

¥ .
* * Pla n Nl ng De pa rtment Email: planning@ci.elko.nv.us

1751 College Avenue - Elko, Nevada 89801 - (775) 777-7160 - Fax (775) 777-7119

Memorandum
To:  City Council
From: Cathy Laughlin —City Planner
Date: December 20, 2017
Meeting Date: Tuesday, January 9, 2018

Agenda Item:

1. Review, consideration, and possible action to accept a petition for annexation of property to the
City, filed and processed as Annexation No. 3-17 by Swire Coca-Cola, Inc, consisting of
approximately 3 acres of property located on the north side of West Idaho Street, and matters related
thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

Additional Information:
1. The area is identified as having annexation potential.
2. The area fronts West Idaho Street and is approximately 3 acres.
3. The property is currently developed within the County as Swire Coca-Cola.
4

. The property owner has entered into an agreement with Golden Gate on the water line extension
to the property so the property can be served with City of Elko water and will abandon their
existing well.

5. The property owner is planning an expansion to the building and will provide dry sewer along the
frontage as well as the new water line. City sewer does not exist in this area, however preliminary
design has been completed by the City of Elko Engineering Department.

6. The existing property is in conformance with the Master Plan Transportation document.

7. In conjunction with the annexation, the property o